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Corporate Information
NGIE=¢

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Mr. Henry Tan

Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert

Mr. Tse Kam Hung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of America, N.A.

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
China Construction Bank Corporation

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
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Mallesons Stephen Jaques
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
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2nd Floor, Harbour View 1
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Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park
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Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
The Harbour Trust Co. Ltd.

3rd Floor
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P.O. Box 1787
George Town
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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Tricor Secretaries Limited
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Financial Highlights
IBREE

Revenue E2 |
Underlying profit before tax* BT A=A

Net profit attributable to shareholders % 5 FE {5 4l F

— Underlying net profit* — EARGR
— Reported net profit —REAT)
Basic earnings per share BRELBRR
— Based on underlying net profit* — AEARLFIGE
— Based on reported net profit —ABREAFIFE
Full-year dividend per share BR2ERE
— Interim dividend per share —BRPERE
— Proposed final dividend per share —ERERRKRE
Dividend payout ratio RELL=E
Net asset value per share BREEFE
Net gearing FEELE
*  Excluding: o AEEE
2009: (1) net loss on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$82.6 million —TThEF

(2)  gain on disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries of
HK$340.0 million

) impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of
HK$111.8 million (net of the portion shared by minority
shareholders)

(4)  discount on acquisition of HK$11.4 million (net of the portion
shared by minority shareholders)

2008: (1) loss on disposal of convertible bond and interest in an ZERBNF:

associate of HK$189.7 million

2 impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of
HK$253.2 million
(38)  discount on acquisition of HK$45.1 million
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Financial Highlights BE1 &2

Revenue Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
e AR TR AT
HK$ Million HK$ Million
"EBT BEET
24000 F - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - B2l 2,700
22500 | — - - - -
21,000 - 9P A - 2,400
19500~~~ FH S -
18000 — - - - B A2 - 2,100
16500 =T -
15000 - QX7 - 1,800
13500 | - ¢~ - - - 1,500
12000 -~ -
10500 | 7~ — - - - 1,200
9,000 | — — - - -
7500 - - - 900 |- -
6000 -
4500 - 600 oo
000 f -~ = s0 |
1,50g g ma—eio- 518 78+ 899 975 o L2 0 6 s 102 11112

Note:

>k

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 | 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

ZZZ-FMAZE+Z A" April-Dec 2002"

Changed financial year end to December from March 2002 onwards

Excluding the gain from the spin off of copper foil business of HK$178.4 million
Annualized

Excluding the gain from the spin off of laminate business of HK$4.8 billion and
discount on acquisition of HK$49.7 million

Excluding the gain on fair value change of conversion and redemption option
derivative of HK$182.4 million; loss on disposal and deemed disposal of
interest in an associate of HK$23.7 million and discount on acquisition of
HK$1.0 million

Excluding:

(1) loss on disposal of convertible bond and interest in an associate of
HK$189.7 million

(2) impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$253.2 million
®
Excluding:

(1) net loss on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$82.6 million

(2) gain on disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries of HK$340.0 million

(3) impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$111.8 million (net
of the portion shared by minority shareholders)

discount on acquisition of HK$11.4 million (net of the portion shared by
minority shareholders)

discount on acquisition of HK$45.1 million
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

It gives me great pleasure to report to the shareholders that
Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (“the Group”) delivered
solid financial performance for the financial year ended 31
December 2009. Despite a tough start in the first quarter of 2009,
the Group saw impressive operational improvement in three core
businesses from the second quarter of 2009 due to massive
stimulus packages implemented by governments worldwide. The
Group continued to gain growth momentum in China as a result
of our strategic focus on expanding the domestic China market,
which was less affected by the global economic downturn.

Export demand for consumer products progressively improved
in the second half of 2009 (“2H 2009”) and domestic China
market delivered sustained growth against the previous year.
The Group’s laminate business continues to maintain its number
one position in the global laminate market and the printed
circuit board (“PCB”) division is the largest PCB manufacturer
in China. Both divisions were able to leverage on their unrivaled
market position to advance market share and made significant
contributions to Group’s earnings. Underpinned by rebound in
construction and industrial activities in China, chemical division’s
performance turned around sharply in 2H 2009 with higher
revenue and profit. As a result, both Group revenue and profit
grew substantially in 2H 2009 against the first half of 2009 (“1H
2009”). Group revenue for the full year was 0.4% higher than the
previous year at HK$23,772.5 million while underlying net profit
(excluding non-recurring items) increased 6% to HK$2,239.0
million. Underscoring the Group’s strategy of building a balanced
business portfolio, these excellent achievements empowered
the Group to ride out of the financial crisis with outstanding
performance.

With over 60 manufacturing plants — most of them located in
China and sales offices stretching over 3 continents, the Group
has established a strong foothold in the past 20 years with
total asset value over HK$43.4 billion. With our experienced
and dedicated management team, excellent business model
with robust financial position, the Group is in an advantageous
position to seize business opportunities and deliver attractive
returns to our shareholders in future.
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Chairman’s Statement FfER %

Revenue Breakdown by Product & 2%55 %

3%

FY 2009
—EENFHBRFE
Laminates Chemicals
BINER {ETESR
PERFORMANCE

With better than expected export demand and a thriving
domestic China market, laminate business volume surged 30%
in 2H 2009 against that in 1H 2009 with improved capacity
utilization. Domestic consumption was effectively stimulated by
the implementation of “home appliances to the country side”
subsidy programme by PRC government which in turn boosted
demand for paper laminates. China was our single largest
geographic market with domestic sales denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) reaching approximately 40% of the Group laminates
sales in 2009. Average selling price (“ASP”) of laminate products
was lower than the previous year. As a result, revenue (including
inter-segment sales) for the laminate division declined 10% to
HK$9,420.6 million. Volume sales increased around 4% with
average monthly shipment reaching 8.1 million square meters.
Earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”) increased substantially
by 28% against 2008 to HK$1,955.8 million.

FY 2008
—EEN\FHRFE
Printed Circuit Boards Others
ENRIARBE AR Hith

RERB

MR OB RETEHIEE - I EPBEARLTAISHER
&3 At BRERBPIVEER-_FTAFT
FER FHF FFB0% - BT FRE R RS
REFHENE - PREBRT R KE T MHRER
B ARARBALEE - UHEARERERAE
MFER o BB AT AR EERERPFIFAOE—
M5 AREHERE ST NFNMPIHERD
40% - AR TR NFBREARNFHEBR_F
TNFE  BRERBANEEB(BREOEL
HE) THRI0%ZENTHE-FTER+EET - #
BRBIEMNN4%  BEANTHNEEENBE—+8
FIK - RNBFEMERBBEZ BB _FT\F
AiEER28%Z T NELATABENTEET -
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Chairman’s Statement £ fERE

Similar to the laminate division, utilization rates for the Group’s
PCB plants improved to over 90% since Q3 2009. Due to lower
ASP of PCB products against the previous year, PCB division’s
revenue declined 8% to HK$7,236.6 million. EBIT increased
by 3% to HK$607.2 million. EBIT margin improved to 8.4%.
The strategic move to invest in two dedicated high density
interconnect PCB (“HDI”) plants in Kaiping, Guangdong province
and Kunshan, Jiangsu province proved to be a successful one.
HDI sales increased by over 3 times against the previous year
and contributed positively to the PCB division earnings. Our
acquisition strategy continued to work well. The two PCB shops
named Express at Suzhou and Dongguan acquired by the Group
in February 2008 and March 2009 respectively integrated well
with the Group. These two PCB plants contributed positively to
the division’s earnings in the current year.

EE AR EBPIEIE RIS - ENRIAR B AR R 6
SEEAXE_EENFE-ZHELAZEB
90% ° AR ENRIARERE M FHEBREASF
FHEAE  EDRIARIEIREFT 2 & BT %e%E
T ZE=FARAEATEST - KINBRFERFIE
ZBIAEMNI%ENESTLEZTEBT - ROk
FERBMIBZ B EMNELREE84% - KEKE
REREATRIGEELAOMREMEESE
[ B ENRIAREEAR (THDI ) B R 55 BRAS 55 S 1 A9 AR
1 o HDIZ & BB AFILM=1F - W AIBPIHR
FEHNBFER - KB ZWERETHKD) - D5
R-ZEZENE-ARBR-ETHFE= AHUEEN
RRZEMEIEE RIS R - I EEEmRE -
SR R A ERPI A SR IR A D 2 FI B o

Our HDI plants located in Kaiping, Guangdong province and Kunshan, Jiangsu province successfully capture the growing HDI market segment
URERERTRIFHERILZ @B E LR NRIRERMA A% E LR HRIGERT S ER
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Chairman’s Statement FfER %

With strong demand for chemical products in 2H 2009, most
of the Group’s chemical plants operated near full capacity and
achieved higher ASP. In order to secure stable feedstock supply
for Huizhou phenol/acetone plant and further strengthen our
vertically integrated business model, the Group strategically
increased its stake in the chemical refinery plant in Yangzhou,
Jiangsu province from 25% to 76% at the end of September
2009. Shortly after the take-over by the Group, the plant started
to generate positive contributions to the chemical division
earnings in the last quarter of 2009. In addition, Hebei acetic
acid plant commenced trial production in September 2009 and
continued to ramp up throughout Q4 2009. Back by additional
output from these two projects, revenue (including inter-segment
sales) for chemical division increased 24% to HK$9,490.1
million. Consequent to lower chemical ASP in 1H 2009 and
lower capacity utilization at the initial startup at Hebei acetic acid
plant in Q4 2009, EBIT of the chemical division reduced 11%
to HK$590.9 million. Share of associates results (bulk of which
contributed by our natural gas based methanol joint venture with
China BlueChemical Limited) was down 83% to HK$64.3 million
for 2009 mainly due to lower methanol ASP against last year.

AR —ZETAF T EFCIEMITRAEY T
EmRTHEEESIEE - REETABACIHR
BHEImEE - AREMNREREBMNOEBR L
WMW% SIETE RV EHLEME — PR L EEE

EREERS - FERZZENFNARKE
\*I*imig#mlﬁa%é BINRIE IR 2 % - 7R L] e
25%EETE% © A B EEEFLERE - AR
—ETNFENFE AL TIPSR EANEFE
Bi o poh AL ERBME R T T AFE N AR
SE - WHRENEEERLSIRAEL - XRE Ll
MEZTIE B EIMEE TS (L THPIEERE(R
EOBEZEEERU%ENTHBATEE
BT BRZZEZENF ¥ FIERNTHEE
EBEE - METtREBERN SN FENER
MG EMAERBAEES - (CITHMPIRMERF
BEBENAEMNELTH®KI1%ZERENLTEAT
EET - ARNFAFEERREAFAR - EEEN
B RN B BRI (KA 5 R 8 g At 2Rk G5
BRAREE ZRARETFEIER) T%83% * 2
ANTHUE=1+EET -

The chemical refinery plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu province provides new impetus to our chemical division

RTERE B 2 RICBAE TR EH ML RE N
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Chairman’s Statement FERsE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our financial and liquidity position continued to be strong. As at
31 December 2009, net current assets and current ratio of the
Group were approximately HK$9,520.2 million (31 December
2008 — HK$5,264.4 million) and 2.05 (31 December 2008 —1.72)
respectively.

The net working capital cycle lengthened from 65 days as at 31
December 2008 to 81 days as at 31 December 2009 on the
following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, increased
to 67 days (31 December 2008 — 48 days) as the Group
stocked up key raw materials strategically in anticipation
of rising commodity prices.

- Trade receivables, in terms of debtors turnover days,
increased to 68 days (31 December 2008 — 61 days).

- Trade and bills payables, in terms of creditors turnover
days, increased to 54 days (31 December 2008 — 44
days).

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest bearing
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents to total equity) was
approximately 22% (31 December 2008: 23%). The proportion
of bank borrowings between short term and long term stood at
30%: 70% (31 December 2008: 27%: 73%). About 10% of the
bank borrowings was denominated in RMB and the rest in Hong
Kong or US dollars. In 2009, the Group invested around HK$2.6
billion in new production capacities. As at 31 December 2009,
the Group had approximately HK$1.98 billion properties held for
development. As the Group set up over 60 manufacturing sites
at various provinces in China in the past 20 years with good
reputation, the Group has been invited recently by local provincial
authorities to participate in certain urban redevelopment projects.
With strong cash inflow generated from our core businesses
together with our dedicated and experienced management team,
the Group is confident that these projects will generate stable
and attractive return to our shareholders in future.
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Chairman’s Statement FfER %

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial management
policy including the use of interest rate swap contract to minimize
exposure to fluctuation in interest rates movement. At the end
of 2009, we had entered into interest rate swap agreements
of notional amount of HK$4.3 billion with reputable financial
institutions for a weighed average duration and interest rate of 1.18
years and 2.99% respectively. We also entered into commodity
forward contracts to manage the Group’s exposure to fluctuation
in commaodity prices. The fair value of these contracts amounted
to HK$11.6 million as at 31 December 2009. Other than
derivative financial instruments in connection with our daily
operations as mentioned above, the Group had not entered
into any other type of derivative financial instruments throughout
2009. There was no material foreign exchange exposure to
the Group during the year under review. The Group’s revenue,
mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirement of operating
expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a global workforce
of over 45,400 (31 December 2008: 40,800). The increase in
headcount was in line with improved business volume against
last year. In addition to offering competitive salary package, the
Group grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible
employees based on our overall financial achievement and their
individual performance.

SEAERDBEROVBEERER - 2EFN AN XS
R LOREN KB PIHREER - R=ZFTN
FE SEEARNEEZSREBRITEER
M+ =EATZAEERAH - BREAHZIEF
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Chairman’s Statement FERsE

PROSPECTS

Laminate order bookings in the first two months of 2010
reflected continuous improvement against Q4 2009 with an
uptrend of ASP against the previous quarter. Looking ahead,
the Chinese government will continue to implement the subsidy
policy of household appliances and automobile purchases in
2010. These measures will definitely have a positive impact
on domestic consumption of electronic products which will
translate into thriving demand for laminates. To capture buoyant
growth in China domestic market and the recovering export
market, the Group will scale up laminate production capacities
by about 15% in 2010. Monthly capacity of paper laminates will
expand by 400,000 sheets in 1H 2010, while monthly capacity
of glass epoxy laminates and paper laminates will be raised by
400,000 sheets each in Jiangyin, Jiangsu province in 2H 2010.
These additional capacities will enable us to achieve further
market share gain in the global laminate market. To promote
economic growth and achieve sustainable urban development,
the Chinese government has initiated a new pilot scheme for the
redevelopment of “Three Olds” — old towns, old villages and old
factory buildings in Guangdong province. The Group has been in
active discussions with local authorities in Shenzhen to explore
the feasibility of redeveloping our plant in Longhua, Shenzhen.

PCB division also enjoyed good order intake momentum
since the beginning of 2010 and most of our PCB plants
were operating at full capacity in the first two months of 2010.
Improving consumer confidence is expected to push demand
growth for electronic products in most end market segments
in 2010. PCB division will continue to enhance its product mix
and technical capabilities especially on HDI business so as to
meet customer requirements for quality products at competitive
costs. In addition to organic capacity growth of approximately
15% planned in 2010, the Group will actively seek potential co-
operation possibilities with other PCB shops in the market.

12 Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement £ fERE

Massive government stimulus and infrastructure plans boosting
economic growth and domestic consumption are expected to
continue in China in 2010 which in turn will stimulate the demand
for key chemical products including coke, methanol, phenol and
acetone. Additional contribution from the Yangzhou chemical
refinery plant and the Hebei acetic acid plant will definitely be the
key growth drivers for chemical division in 2010. Furthermore,
Huizhou phenol/acetone plant delivered attractive returns for
the Group in 2009 due to strong demand for these specialty
chemical products in China. Modification plans are currently
underway to improve the production efficiency of the Huizhou
plant with the aim to reduce energy consumption and emission
by the end of 2010.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
banks, the management and employees for their unreserved
support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Kwok Wing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 March 2010
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
EERENEBAEZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wing, aged 54, is the chairman and a co-
founder of the Group, the chairman of Kingboard Copper Foil
Holdings Limited (“KCFH”) as well as Elec & Eltek International
Company Limited (“EEIC”), both of which are subsidiaries of the
Company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Cheung is the brother of Ms. Cheung Wai
Lin, Stephanie, the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the
brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.
Mr. Cheung had over 13 years’ experience in the sales and
distribution of electronic components including laminates prior
to the establishment of the Group. Mr. Cheung is responsible for
the overall strategic planning of the Group and sets the general
direction and goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung won the Young
Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 1993, which was organized by
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and was described as
“far-sighted, enterprising, and having insight in the business”. Mr.
Cheung was the winner of the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award, accredited with the Owner-Operator Award in 2006.

Mr. CHAN Wing Kwan, aged 64, is the managing director and
a co-founder of the Group, the managing director of KCFH and
a non-executive director of EEIC. Mr. Chan acquired a degree
of Doctor of Business Science from Pacific Western University
L.A.. Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Chan had over
22 years’ experience in the sales and distribution of electronic
components, industrial chemicals and printed circuit boards. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the overall implementation of the strategic
plans and goals of the Group.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong Kwan, aged 45, is the cousin of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He
joined the Group in 1988 and has been working in the PCB
industry since 1984 with particularly extensive experience
in marketing components and materials required for PCB
production. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the Group’s chemical
business operations and property developments in the southern
region of China.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies EE R SR EIRAE 2 ER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. CHANG Wing Yiu, aged 43, is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He
joined the Group in 1989 and has over 20 years’ experience in
laminates production. Mr. Chang graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in marine electronics.
He is responsible for the Group’s methanol plant in Chongaing,
chemical refinery plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu province and
phenol/acetone plant in Huizhou, Guangdong province. He is
also a non-executive director of EEIC.

Mr. MOK Cham Hung, Chadwick, aged 45, joined the Group in
2000. Prior to this he worked in the financial services industry for
over 11 years. Mr. Mok is an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds an MA in Electrical and Information Engineering from
the University of Cambridge and an MBA with distinction from
Imperial College, the University of London. He is also an executive
director of EEIC and responsible for the strategic planning of
EEIC.

Mr. HO Yin Sang, aged 55, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He joined
the Group in 1989 and is responsible for the Group’s chemical
business operations in Hebei and Shanxi province. He is also a
non-executive director of KCFH.

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Lin, Stephanie, aged 39, is the sister of
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing. She joined the Group in 2002 and is
responsible for the business operations of Techwise PCB group.
Prior to joining the Group, she worked as an administration
assistant manager in a listed company for about 5 years.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies EE R SR EIRBAE 2 ER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHENG Wai Chee, Christopher, aged 61, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director in 2007. He holds
directorships in various listed companies in the last three years.
He is currently the chairman of two listed companies in Hong
Kong, namely USI Holdings Limited and Winsor Properties
Holdings Limited. He is an independent non-executive director of
New World China Land Limited and NWS Holdings Limited. Mr.
Cheng is also an independent director of DBS Group Holdings
Limited which is listed in Singapore. He is the Chairman of
the Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions
of Services. Mr. Cheng was appointed a Justice of the Peace
in 1985, and awarded an OBE in 1992 and a Gold Bauhinia
Star in 2004. He is a member of the Exchange Fund Advisory
Committee of the HKSAR Government and a Steward of the
Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is also a non-executive director of
Temasek Foundation CLG Limited.

Mr. Henry TAN, aged 56, is the chief executive officer of Luen
Thai Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Tan has over
25 years of experience in apparel and logistics industries. Mr.
Tan is an active leader and contributor to charity and community
programmes. He is the former chairman of the board of directors
of Po Leung Kuk of the year 2004-2005, an authorised charitable
organization in Hong Kong. He also acts as a committee member
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
Fujian province, the PRC, the member of Standing Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
Qingyuan City of Guangdong province and is a member of
Election Committee (Textiles and Garment Subsector). Mr. Tan
obtained his Master’s Degree in Business Administration in
1980 and Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration in 1975
from the University of Guam, the United States of America. Mr.
Tan was also an independent non-executive director of China
Resources Peoples Telephone Company Limited, a company
formerly listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tan was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in 2005.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies EE R SR EIRAE 2 ER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. LAl Chung Wing, Robert, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in February
2009. He has more than 25 years of experience in trading
and investment and was previously the managing director of
Seaunion Holdings Ltd (now known as South Sea Petroleum
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He
holds a Bachelor-of-Laws (Honours) degree from the University
of London and is currently involved in business consultancy
work in the Asia-Pacific region. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Kee Shing (Holdings) Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai was an
independent non-executive director of KCFH, from 29 November
1999 to 27 February 2009. He is a brother of Mr. Larry Lai Chong
Tuck, an independent non-executive director of EEIC.

Mr. TSE Kam Hung, aged 58, has over 30 years of experience
in the field of electronic industry. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 36, the Company Secretary, joined
the Group in May 1999. Prior to that, he was an accountant
at an international accounting firm. Mr. Lo is a fellow member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Professional Accountancy from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the
company secretarial work of the Group. He is a non-executive
director of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL"), a
71.53%-owned subsidiary listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors’ Report

= +
BEEEHRE
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure

in presenting their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of associates, jointly controlled entities and principal
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Notes 23, 25 and 44
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 53.

An interim dividend of HK30 cents per ordinary share was paid to
the shareholders of the Company during the year. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK45 cents
per ordinary share to the Company’s shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 26 April
2010, and the retention of the remaining profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed
securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

18 Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
—TENEFFHR EELIER

ARREEE([EFE )MAREAEERE_F
TNFE+ A=+ RLEFEZFRRLERGS
MEEwE -

EEEH

RATAREERAR - HEE AR - LEIEHE
BREEENBARZEEEBD RIHNGE SR
KMIFE23 - 25144 -

RER 7K
REE A FEEENNESCERAWHERA -

FA - ARRRIRA S RS S E BR30E1L
FTARAKRR - EEHFFAN_FT-FTFMA
ZHARBRIARBBIRA M Z BRI RS
BROEBIRAGEL - WRBREGRHENN AR

BRE
ARBEBETRANRFAZ BB BEHR RS U
HARMFESS -

fRHE - HEXREARG

FA - ARBRSEEFAMHBEARBEBE - HEX
BREARRNESMARZMARRRN ([
Z LW -



Directors’ Report =& 3%

RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the
Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 57 and 58.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share
premium and the special surplus account of the Company are
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2009, the sum of the retained profits, the
share premium and the special surplus account of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$5,024 million.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 December 2009, resulting in an increase in fair value of
approximately HK$51,425,000 which has been credited directly
to profit or loss.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Expenditure of approximately HK$2,636 million was incurred
during the year primarily to expand the production capacity of the
Group. Details of all the changes during the year are set out in
Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2009 are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling HK$4,403,000.
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Directors’ Report B2 & 3%

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher
Mr. Henry Tan
Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert
(appointed on 27 February 2009)
Mr. Tse Kam Hung
Mr. Cheng Ming Fun, Paul
(resigned on 27 February 2009)

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Cheung Kwong Kwan, Chang Wing Yiu,
Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick and Ho Yin Sang, being executive
Directors, will retire from directorship by rotation and will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the
section “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” on
pages 14 to 17.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report =& 3%

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2009, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as
follows:

EEzkiiEa
RZFTNF+_A=1—H EXZREEIHE
ATRARBREREZE(ERRBFLHEHK
BI(TE 7 R BRI ) EXVER) 2 Bty - BRI
HEHFT - HEARRIREE S L AEEHIE352
fFFEz ERMATaik s e - JRE EMEITA
EFETEFRXHNBRETHENE AR R RER
Pz iEsmin T

Long position RE
(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company  (a) AR A FREEOA10E T2 Zid AR ([
(“Shares”) /)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number share capital
of issued of the Company
Shares held N |
Name of Director Capacity Fiise 1T BRITBRAZ
EERE EEME R EE BROEIL
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 3,301,725 0.39
REIER S EREAA
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,080,250 0.12
PRk 88 55 A (P 3ET) BEHEEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 563,200 0.06
REELE BEHEEAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner 3,355,274 0.39
Bk S A (MiEE2) BEEBEAA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner 2,194,129 0.25
fa] A S A (M EE3) BEHEEAA
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 1,810,000 0.21
SRR BEHEEAA
Notes: e
(1) Out of the 1,080,250 Shares, 1,020,250 Shares were held by Mr. (1) 71,080,250/ &5 & - H 1,020,250 % %

Chan Wing Kwan and 60,000 Shares were held by his spouse.

) QOut of the 3,355,274 Shares, 2,677,074 Shares were held by Mr.
Chang Wing Yiu and 678,200 Shares were held by his spouse.

©)] Out of the 2,194,129 Shares, 1,026,629 Shares were held by
Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 1,167,500 Shares were held by his spouse.

13 Ty BRK R A AR ASSH 60,0008 A% Al
mERESEE -

(2)  M#%3,355 274N EH - H2,677,0748% %
PIREKREERAREE + M678,200 A7
B ERBIES -

@) H#Z2,194,120M M EH - HA11,026,6290% A%
I ERMAEAELERARE - 1,167,500 i
HRIRERBES -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) EEZERIER )

Long position (continued) RE(E)
(b) Share options of the Company (“Share Options”) b) KR GBI ([1BE AR ])
Interest in
underlying Shares
pursuant to
Share Options
under the 2002 Scheme
Name of Director Capacity —EE_FEETR
EEpnE ERME BEBREMERR GRS
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan Beneficial owner 966,600
BRAER S BHEAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 859,800
KRRt BEHEEAA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner 2,294,600
fa] 64 S A (B EE) EmEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 1,109,600
REESLE BREAA

22

Note:  Out of the 2,294,600 Share Options, 978,600 Share Options
were held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 1,316,000 Share Options
were held by his spouse.

The Company adopted its first share option scheme
on 11 May 1998, and such share option scheme was
terminated upon the adoption of its second share
option scheme (“2002 Scheme”) on 2 July 2002 for
the duration of 10 years. In view of the recent changes
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), a new share option
scheme was approved by shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 23 March 2009. The 2002 Scheme was accordingly
terminated on the same day without affecting the rights of
holders of any options granted and outstanding under the
2002 Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(c) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (“KLHL Shares”) in
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”), a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EFZERELS)
RA#)

AR A2 EHBNE L Al E TR ERIE

RERAE]([EEEER ) FRETEO.10
BITZ BB ([ EREERAKL )

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
SREISR A EmEAA
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note 1) Beneficial owner
PR SR ST A (P EET) BmEAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner
BBk RS & (MiEE2) EREAA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner
a3 A 5 A (Ff9EE3) EmEA
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner
REELLT BEmEAA
Notes:
@) The 100,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Chan
Wing Kwan.
) The 100,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr.
Chang Wing Yiu.
Q) The 540,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Ho
Yin Sang.

1,641,500 0.05
100,000 0.003
100,000 0.003
540,000 0.01
804,000 0.02

BRoK SR SE 4 2 BLAB 575 7% 100,000 B3R H A B AR
Betn

Bk i 5 A 2 BC {8 5 7% 100,000 B2 E 1 fE AR
fetn

fa] 36 AE 5 A 2 BR 4B 45 A 7% 540,000 % 325 & /B R
B o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(d) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in the share
capital of Kingboard Laminates Limited, a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

EFCRinER =)
RE(E)
AR AHEEHENER A EEAERE
IR A FIRAH SR EE 1ETT 2 MR ENRE
AR

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
REIZR A BHEEAA
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan Beneficial owner
BRoKSRSEA EREBA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner
REELRLE BERBEBA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner
(CIF: e EmfBA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner
KRR EREEA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates
Limited are held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no
rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of Kingboard Laminates Limited and have practically no
rights to dividends or to participate in any distribution on winding
up.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

EEZERRES 2
ERE)

share options of EEIC accepted by the Directors on 24 June
2005. The number of share options were subsequently adjusted
pursuant to the 1 for 5 bonus issue effected on 13 October
2005. The relevant Directors are entitled to subscribe for EEIC
Shares at an adjusted subscription price of US$2.033 per EEIC
Share. The share options are exercisable in whole or in part at
the staggered manner within 5 option periods, commencing on
26 November 2006, 26 November 2007, 26 November 2008, 26
November 2009 and 26 March 2010 respectively and all ending
on 24 May 2010.

(e) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of (e KR a2 BB E L Al F L iEE
Elec & Eltek International Company Limited (“EEIC”), a non BHRARE]([EEIC))E7A .2 ZiEIR([EEIC
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company BR17])

Approximate

percentage

Number of of the issued

issued EEIC share capital

Shares held of EEIC

Name of Director Capacity FriE B B{TEEIC {LHEEICEE{TRA

EERE EEME R EE ZERNES

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 160,000 0.09
SREIER S BHEEAA

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 147,000 0.08
SRS BEHEEAA

() Share options of EEIC Ui EEICZ (B fEIRIE

Interest in

underlying EEIC

Shares pursuant

to share options of EEIC

(Note)

Name of Director Capacity EEICEtEREET

EERE EEME 1EBAEEICHR 17 fE 2

(i)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 973,200
REIER S EREAA

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan Beneficial owner 973,200
PRAER S BEEEAA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 973,200
1PN BEEAA

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 973,200
SRR BEEBEAA

Note:  The interests are held by virtue of an aggregate of 3,244,000 Mz : BEEFEREER-_ZTTRAE~NA-1MHE

A#E A $£3,244,00017 EEICHE 5t 88 Ak i
B BEBRERR  HER-_ZTREF+
A+=BE—t REEEIT 2 AR EITM A
® - FRESIRECAEREETREEICHK
132.033Z TR IEEEICHR S - Bk ERIED B
BE_ZTTXFE+—A=+<B  _TTLF
F+—AZ+A<H8  ZZ2ENF+—A=+RX
A ZZZhF+—AZ+A"BR-ZT—ZF
AT+ ARBEZZ—ZFRAA-tTWMALTR
(BB S AR TE AR A D BR AT R 2 Eh sl E AP

#5 -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(9) Ordinary shares (“KCFH Shares”) of US$0.10 each in the
share capital of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited
(“KCFH”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EFZRES )
RAE#)

KL FIFEE & F R E 2 5] Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited([KCFH /)%
b 2R ET1EO. 10,2 Zi# K ([ KCFH/R
)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
KRB e 4 BERBEBA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner
f) e A e A (Y EE) EmEAA
Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert Beneficial owner
REKTE BEHEEAA

Note:  The 2,000 KCFH Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Ho Yin
Sang.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2009.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company, EEIC
and KLHL are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Share Options
under the 2002 Scheme during the year:

B
A7)~ EEICKZEEBR 2 BB 817
BENERE M IRRIE36 -

TREBR-_FT_FHIETEABRENFAZ

Category 1: Directors 1 ES
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan PN SR ST 1,341,600 (375,000) 966,600
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan RESB A 1,734,600 (625,000) 1,109,600
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu B4 1,234,800 (8375,000) 859,800
Mr. Ho Yin Sang EEL 3 1,003,600 (925,000) 978,600
6,214,600 (2,300,000) 3,914,600
Category 2: Employees FEo%E BB 8,407,400 (3,178,000) 5,229,400
Total all categories FrEfERI&RT 14,622,000 (5,478,000) 9,144,000

The weighted average closing price of the Shares on the five
trading days immediately before the dates on which the Share
Options were exercised was HK$13.10.

REBRTEELEREZATEEZS A - iz
HEFHUHEA13.1078 T °
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
The following table discloses movements in EEIC’s share options
during the year:

B 2

TRIVBEEICEERBBIENFAZEE

Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
1.1.2009 Lapsed 31.12.2009
R-ZEZENEF during R-ZEZNF
—HA—H the year +=—BA=+—H
i RATHE ERFERKRK e RATHE

Category 1: Directors F1fE-ES
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing SREIS LA 973,200 - 973,200
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan BRoKER T4 973,200 - 973,200
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu KBS A 973,200 - 973,200
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick B5381 5t 4 973,200 - 973,200
3,892,800 - 3,892,800
Category 2: Employees EofE BB 5,441,000 (207,600) 5,233,400
Total all categories FTEERIA 5T 9,333,800 (207,600) 9,126,200

During the year ended 31 December 2009, no share option was
granted pursuant to the employees’ share option scheme of
KLHL.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2009, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Long position
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

EBRBE

BEARAEES RS HHIES6HATELE
ERREEMATE  R-TBAF+=A=+—
B - THRR(EXAEEE TEE 2 EERINE
MEARRRERRDTEBITRAH FH 2 A
i

o

E\I

=3}
A2 B REEO. 108 T2 BB

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital

issued of the Company

Shares held 1EARRAF]

Name of shareholder Nature of interest e 1T B RITRA

RERERE EEME R EE ZERNES

Hallgain Management Limited Beneficial owner 261,131,929 30.97

(“Hallgain”) (Note) (F{3T) EnEEA

Capital Research and Investment manager 93,334,040 11.05
Management Company B g il

FIL Limited Investment manager 50,703,100 6.00
REKIE

FMR LLC Investment manager 50,190,400 5.94
REKR

Value Partners Limited Investment manager 42,970,500 5.09
REKIE

Note:  As at 31 December 2009: (i) no shareholder of Hallgain is entitled to
exercise, or control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more
of the voting power at general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its
directors are not accustomed to act in accordance with any shareholder’s
direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wing and Chan Wing Kwan,
being Directors, are also directors of Hallgain.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2009.

Mtz REZZTAF+=A=+—8  ()fEHallgainlREH#E
MHallgainA& B A& 1T sk B sk HIiTE =9 —3k
LA Z FR4E - MHallgain 2 H 8 E I NMEHRE T
MREAERITE ¢ Je(ii)E FoR S e £ RBROKER AN A

Hallgainz &% -
Br R EEE SN - AAREENERN —STNF
T A=+ —BIZARRBEITRAZ ERHME
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2009,
save for the deviation that the independent non-executive
Directors were not appointed for specific terms pursuant
to code provision A.4.1 of the Code. Notwithstanding the
aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation
and will be eligible for re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2009.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales or purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers combined or suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the Group’s sales or purchases
respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, Techwise Circuits Company Limited (“Techwise”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Techwise
Group”) sold printed circuit boards (“PCBs”) to and purchased
laminates from Shirai Electronics Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shirai”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Shirai
Group”) amounting to approximately HK$326,862,000 and
HK$92,468,000 respectively. The Techwise Group also sub-
contracted the services of the Shirai Group, namely the drilling of
laminates by the Shirai Group on the Techwise Group’s behalf,
amounting to approximately HK$2,712,000 during the year.
Techwise is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
while Shirai is a substantial shareholder of Techwise Shirai
Circuits Limited (a 70% owned subsidiary of Techwise). As
such, Shirai and its subsidiaries are connected persons of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The sale of PCBs to the Shirai Group and the subcontracting
transactions with the Shirai Group did not exceed the revised
corresponding annual caps for the financial year ended
31 December 2009 amounting to HK$818,079,000 and
HK$57,350,000, respectively, which was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting
held on 10 December 2007. The purchase of laminates from the
Shirai Group during the year did not exceed the corresponding
annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 as
announced by the Company on 27 October 2006, namely an
amount of HK$315,560,000.

The Directors have engaged the auditor of the Company to
perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group. The auditor
of the Company has reported its factual findings on these
procedures to the board of Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors, for the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing
Rules, have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
and the report of the auditor and have confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been entered
into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business, on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

REXZ 5

FR - BESEERAB(RE]) REKBAR
(% FE[ Rl=%® | ) AShirai Electronics Industrial
Co., Ltd.([Shirail) R EE AT (4 Shiraisk
B |) & A8 #326,862,00078 7T 2 EN R 47 B& 1R
(TENRIAREEIR |) R EE B A #1492,468,0008 02 &
AER - BIEEBSHRFEAMRShiraie BN A
#92,712,000%8 702 B 7% + BDfAShiraits A EIERSE
BEABIREMIRETL - BEEARRRIE2ERBIE
AR] - MShirai Bl ARIEEA70% RS 2 HE QA
MEOHERERAAZEERE - Ft - IRE L
TRBIZE14AZE - Shirai R EWB AR AARRA AR
BAL-

R Shiraife [ 5 ENRIARHE R & £2Shiraisk MAETTIM
HZZ DR TBRAARBRRR-_FFLF+ A
TRRITZERENAGMILEREZE-FTNF
TZ A=+ HUEMBFELETHRTE LR
818,079,000/ 7L 57,350,000/& 7T © % A[mShirai
KEBEERRERTEBENATNR_FTAFTA
—tHEHAMERBE-_FTNAFTA=+t—HL
BT 2 AR /E L BR 315,560,000/ T ©

EXCEAARRRBMEAEE 2 HERERS
ETETEBERRF - ARRRBMITEMES
EREMFRTFABCERER - RLEMRAE
14A37IRM S - BUIFNTEFCEMBERE
R RIZHE 2 HE - WHER L ERER ST
HARERN —REBBEFIIL - BIR—REEE
R FRZER S PE] bk 2 IRCETT - BRIGNE
RFERE - WAFERABRRZ BN -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has also provided
guarantees to financial institutions to secure general credit
facilities for a non wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Techwise, in
the amounts of approximately HK$364 million during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme is set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under company laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2009.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wing
CHAIRMAN

1 March 2010

BHERE « R SEAITRARA BB 2R
FERBNARFRERRBEFAG LIR2UAHAR
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

The Board of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
recognises the importance of corporate governance practice
of a listed company. It is in the interest of the stakeholders and
shareholders for a listed company to operate in a transparent
manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory policies,
procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

During the year under review, the Board has complied with the
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except with a deviation from code
provision A.4.1 of the Code. Under code provision A.4.1 of
the Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, the Company
does not have any non-executive director and the independent
non-executive directors of the Company were not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and are
eligible for re-election.

In addition to the Code, which is mandatory in nature, the
Board also observes certain recommended best practices
(“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules and has adopted certain Recommended Best
Practices which are suitable to the Company’s current situation.
The Board will continuously enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company by reference to the Recommended
Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions adopted by the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the management of the business and the
affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted internal
guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the
Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial
performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s
business and ensures implementation of appropriate
systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated
to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman
of the Board and distributed to the Board members
within reasonable time before the meetings. Relevant
meeting papers are also sent to directors well before
the meetings, informing them of the background and
giving explanation on matters to be brought before the
Board. All directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To ensure the
directors make decisions objectively and in the interests
of the Company, the Company’s articles of association
provide that any director shall abstain from voting on any
resolutions in which he or his associates is/are materially
interested nor be counted in the quorum of the meeting.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings
are sent to all directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meetings and are kept by the Company Secretary.

EF
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DIRECTORS (continued) A EFE®
The Board (continued) BEEg(E)
During the year under review, the Board had held four REBEFEAN  EFFRITTHRAGH
meetings and the directors’ attendance at Board meetings EFNEFeeaNEESEeem
and Board committees’ meetings were as follows: JEEERINT -
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Bzg ENZEE REZEE ¥WzEE
) &3 EE ] ]
Number of Meeting EEHE 4 3 1 2
Executive directors HTES
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) REAR(ZE) 4 - - -
Chan Wing Kwan (Vanaging Director) — BRoKiE(ZZ4£457) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE 4 - - -
Chang Wing Yiu B2 4 - - -
Mok Cham Hung, Chadiwick SRl 4 - - -
Ho Yin Sang (GF:2a 4 - - -
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie KA 4 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BV EHTES
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher B 4 - - -
Henry Tan A 4 3 1 2
Lai Chung Wing, Robert BEE (W_ZENF 3 2 1 2
(appointed on 27 February 2009) ZAZtHEREZT)
Tse Kam Hung Eifps 4 3 1 2

The directors have observed the importance of directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs at a more regular
interval. After consulting all directors, Board meetings
have been preliminarily scheduled to be held at quarterly
interval and no less than four times in the coming year.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities

The Board is headed by the Chairman whose role differs
from that of the Managing Director of the Company.
The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the
following:

o schedule meetings that enable the Board to
perform its duties and responsibilities and
to ensure all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner without
interfering the Company’s operations;

o prepare meeting agenda after consultation with
the Managing Director;

o exercise control over quality, quantity and
timeliness of the flow of information between
Management and the Board and to ensure
decisions are made on a fully informed basis by
the directors; and

o assist in ensuring compliance with the Listing
Rules and the Company’s guidelines on corporate
governance.

The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the
overall strategic planning and day-to-day management of
the Group.

BEF

PIRBE

EEeRFEEY  HBBERRARA
EEOEE - TREREFHLEEEEY
75 - BIERR—BATEM -

TRBE /AR

. THERAREFTSRTRE I
BREFGLHIRFAEEER
HEEH MTETEARFZE
78

. REERREEERRERERZ

=

. EHEEERERE 2 HRFETT
BRMEEE  BREENAEE
MTHEHIRE © R

. BN RER BN MR RARRZ

RERES -

EEREETIZAABRRRRRINAE
BEEEETHF-

Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 37

“EENFFE BECIRE



I

Corporate Governance Report {t3¥E 78R E

38

DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises eleven members, four of
whom are independent non-executive directors who are
expressly identified in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of directors of the Company. One
of the independent non-executive directors possesses
appropriate professional qualifications (or accounting or
related financial management expertise) as required by
the Listing Rules. The composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Chan Wing Kwan (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwong Kwan

Chang Wing Yiu

Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick

Ho Yin Sang

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Independent non-executive Directors
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher
Henry Tan
Lai Chung Wing, Robert
(appointed on 27 February 2009)
Tse Kam Hung
Cheng Ming Fun, Paul
(resigned on 27 February 2009)

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie is the sister of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan is a
cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai
Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang
are brothers-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms.
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie.

Currently, the Company does not have any non-executive
director and the independent non-executive directors
of the Company were not appointed for specific terms
but are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible
for re-election. The Board considers that although such
arrangement deviates from code provision A.4.1 of the
Code, sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those in the Code.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board comprises directors who collectively provide
core competencies, sales and marketing experience
and technical knowledge in laminates, printed circuit
boards, property developments and chemical products,
administration and management experience in the PRC
factories, financial and accounting skills, as well as in-
house advices to comply with international laws and
regulations. The current Board size of eleven directors
with a balance of skills and experience is appropriate for
effective decision making, taking into account the nature
and scope of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s Articles of Association set out a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. Any director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy
or as addition to the Board, shall retire and be eligible
for re-appointment at the next following annual general
meeting after appointment. The appointment of directors
are not fixed for a specified term, but at every annual
general meeting one-third of the directors, including
the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-appointment by shareholders. The directors
appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-appointment as mentioned above shall be taken
into account in calculating the total number of directors
for the time being but shall not be taken into account
in calculating the number of directors who are to retire
by rotation. All directors eligible for re-appointment
shall have their biographical details made available to
the shareholders to enable them to make an informed
decision on their re-appointment. Any appointment,
resignation, removal or re-designation of director shall be
timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement
and shall include in such announcement, the reasons
given by the director for his resignation.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each director to
keep abreast of his responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every director is required
to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs
of the Board and the material matters of the Company
and to serve the Board with such degree of care and
due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

Every newly appointed director shall receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment. All directors shall
be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a
proper understanding of the operations and the business
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.
The Board has a procedure for directors, either individually
or as a group, in the furtherance of their duties, to take
independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the directors
to make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance
coverage for directors’ and officers’ liability has been
arranged against possibility of legal action to be taken
against the directors and the management.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation
to furnish the Board with complete, adequate and
appropriate information in such form and such quality in a
timely manner so as to enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities
as directors of the Company. All the directors are given
separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Supply of and access to information (continued)

All the directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company Secretary, whose role includes
ensuring that Board procedures are observed and
followed, and that applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is
responsible for drafting minutes and keeping minutes
records which can be accessed by any director for
inspection.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) which comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Tse
Kam Hung (Chairman), Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert and
Mr. Henry Tan, to formulate policies and procedures for
determining the remuneration of directors and senior
management and other remuneration related matters.
The Remuneration Committee is set up with written
terms of reference which set out clearly its duties and
authorities delegated by the Board of directors, including
the following specific duties:

o formulate the framework or Board policy for
determining the remuneration of the Company’s
Board and senior management. The objective
of such policy should ensure that members of
the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance and are, in a fair and
reasonable manner, rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of the Company;
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

o recommend specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances,
bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive payments,
and share options, if any, for each executive
director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is
designated to consider;

° recommend targets for any performance-linked
pay schemes operated by the Company, taking
into account remuneration and employment
conditions within the industry and in comparable
companies; and

° recommend to the Board the remuneration of
independent non-executive directors (including
non-executive directors, if any), taking into
account factors such as effort, time spent and
responsibilities.

When recommending the remuneration package for each
individual director, the Remuneration Committee will
consider his qualification and experience, specific duties
and responsibilities assigned to him by the Board and the
prevailing market packages available for similar position.
The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the
year under review is set out on page 126 and 127 in Note
16 to the financial statements. Review and comparison in
terms of Directors’ emoluments package and net profits
of the Group are made from time to time with comparable
listed industrial companies with similar capitalisation to the
Group. Considering all such factors, the Remuneration
Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation
with the Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee had convened two meetings during which,
among other things, the remuneration packages for all
Directors were considered.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s account which gives a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Company deploys appropriate and sufficient resources to
prepare unaudited half-yearly account and audited yearly
account. Senior management is required to present and
explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial
performance and operations of the Company to the Audit
Committee and the Board and respond to the queries
and concerns raised by the Audit Committee and the
Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditor of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 51 and 52 of this annual report.

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the
key elements of which are as follows:

° formal policies and procedures are in place,
including the documentation of key processes,
procedures and rules relating to the delegation of
authorities. These allow the monitoring of controls
and restrict the unauthorised use of the Group
assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take
responsibility for important business functions.
Annual appraisal procedures have been
established to maintain standards of performance;

o monthly business and financial reports are
prepared, providing relevant, timely, reliable and
up-to-date financial and other information; budget
variances are investigated as appropriate; and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly
to the Audit Committee, is in place to determine
whether the above procedures are properly carried
out.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Internal controls (continued)

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of
the above internal control system of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management and will conduct such review at least once
a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and
the Group’s assets are properly safeguarded. The Board is
satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled
with its own observations and with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk
management processes are satisfactory for the nature
and size of the Group’s operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has
established an internal audit team that reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
independently audit various functions, operations and
systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the
priority list recommended by the Audit Committee. The
internal audit team will prepare an internal audit report
highlighting the deficiencies and weaknesses in existing
audit functions, operations and systems for discussion by
the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on these
findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference setting out duties,
responsibilities and authorities delegated to them by the
Board of directors. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the following:

° review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of
the system of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit
procedures;
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

review the statement of financial position and
income statement of the Company and the
consolidated statement of financial position and
income statement of the Group and submit them
to the Board;

nominate persons as auditor;

review with the internal and external auditors their
findings on their evaluation of the Company’s
system of internal controls for the purpose of
assisting the Board in developing policies that
would enhance the controls and operating
systems of the Company; and

review connected transactions and examine the
adequacy of internal controls of the Group as part
of the standard procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued) C. MEREE#
Audit Committee (continued) EREEER(E)
The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the EREZEevEBEORRRE o HE
scope and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness, ERARK ARz - LARARRIMNEZE
and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s F=g) e BE=MR A LETRITT 2B ERE
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The Audit Committee Bt - BERZEEEFEL—RRIEAA
will review the independence of the Company’s auditor, BIONBRZEED 2B - PR Bk A
the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function, BRAER LB - MEXEARAR A
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supply REEZERG  TESNSRTZER
non-audit services to the Company, the Committee Bz EERTSRE  BRERESREME
will keep the nature and extent of such services under KRR 2 FEGFE - REIBFERN - 3t
review, seeking to balance between the maintenance of AR A INEEAZ BREM A AN R E IR 2 R B
objectivity and value for money. During the year under BRI MO BN AR B ZEEE
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor BT
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
Company’s auditor to the Group were as follows:
Amount (HK$)
Nature of services BRI HEE SHE(ET)
Audit services ZHRTS 10,062,000
Non-audit services FERZHBRTE
() Tax services (i) % R 7% 768,500
(il Other services (Note) (i) HAb AR (MRE) 5,714,700

Note:  This mainly relates to the professional services fee rendered
in connection with the proposed spin off of Hebei CoalChem
Holdings Limited.

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the
non-audited services provided by the Company’s auditor
and concluded that in their opinion such services did
not affect the independence of the auditor. The Board
has appointed an accountant to be responsible for the
accounting and financial matters of the Group and the
Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial
and relevant information which enable them to discharge
their audit committee function effectively and efficiently.
Besides internal assistance being available, the Audit
Committee may request for assistance and advice from
external auditor as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee
shall meet with external auditor without the presence
of executive directors to discuss the Group’s financial
reporting and any major and financial matters arising
during the year under review at least once a year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

o to investigate any matter within its written terms of
reference;

o to have full access to and co-operation by the
management;

o to have full discretion to invite any director or

executive officer to attend its meetings; and

° to have reasonable resources to enable it to
discharge its functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit
Committee are appropriately qualified to discharge their
responsibilities and at least one member has accounting
and related financial management expertise or experience.
The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Tse Kam Hung and Mr. Henry Tan.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters, including the review of the
audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company'’s articles of association set out matters
which are specifically reserved to the Board for its
decision. Executive directors normally meet on an
informal basis every two weeks and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group
and to monitor and ensure the management carry out the
directions and strategies set by the Board of directors
correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are given to
the management as to the matters which should bring to
the attention and be determined by the Board on behalf
of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees,
namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, each chaired by different
independent non-executive director, to assist the Board
in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each
Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements
which are substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members
who are independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Henry Tan (Chairman), Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert,
and Mr. Tse Kam Hung. According to the written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee, the major
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

o regularly review the structure, size and composition
of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board with regard to any adjustments that are
deemed necessary;

o review whether or not an independent non-
executive director is independent for the purpose
of the Listing Rules on annual basis;
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

Board committees (continued)

. be responsible for identifying and nominating for
the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board
vacancies as and when they arise;

o assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution by each individual director to
the effectiveness of the Board; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard
to the director’s contribution and performance,
including, if applicable, as an independent director.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
had convened one meeting during which, among other
things, considered the directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s articles of association
and the Code. The Nomination Committee had resolved
that Messrs. Cheung Kwong Kwan, Chang Wing Yiu,
Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick and Ho Yin Sang, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. All the above-named
directors were nominated by the Nomination Committee
to stand for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend
the general meetings to have personal communication
with shareholders. In annual general meeting, Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each committee
are required to attend and answer questions from
shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
is also required to be present to assist the directors in
addressing any relevant queries by shareholders. The
Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their
questions, comments and opinions in relation to the
Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) provide good
opportunities for shareholders to air their views and
ask directors and management questions regarding
the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and
EGM and other corporate communications. The notices
are also published on the Company’s website at
www.kingboard.com. Separate resolutions are required at
general meetings on each distinct issue. Each shareholder
is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his
stead.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 HEN RS

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 53 to 203, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial information based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

FEELCISEERR
(RESHSEMATAERAA])

EEDERERHANES3E203 AN REL TEE
(TERBDEEMB LR (G 88 DEEME
BER o WEGEMBHREABEN-_FTAF+ A
=+ HNGEEMBIRNER MBEZ R EFENE
BRER  FEZHEER  FARREBRIER
BREMERNAN T B GHPORME M E MR
-

EEMGESHMERRARIBENRE

BERRESARBREBERESHMASHMNES
MBRRENRBEERARPINERERELEE
MmAFIHRAZFFEEMBFEREK - ERERER
At B REEERREAEM AP HRR AR
BRFRAAEOANEES] - UEMEHRRTFEAR
AP ERR M E B B AR : BIZFERE
ENEEER - MEBERMEL A BN EFHAR

ZBET R RE

BEENRLEBRINENERIEKRREEFHR
EMBRRMELER - LR AEREABRORR
HE o BRUEAN - BEENREE NI AELMA
& o BERTERAREENAR - FHEAEMA
TEEIABEREME - BEFCREFESHIR
SRMNBEENERETER - ELBERERE
FETEERE WREIRNITER - LSBT
B EREWBBREDNFH TR EAERRML -
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Independent Auditor’s Report 183 #% B Eh R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

1 March 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

ek

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & = —

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Distribution costs
Administrative costs
Impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments
Loss on disposal of convertible bond
and interest in an associate
Gain on disposal of partial interests
in subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Discount on acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of results of jointly
controlled entities

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

e
SHERA
EH
HAb WA
7 SRR
TR
AHHEREZ

(B RER
HEMBRES R —F
BERAER BB
HEME AR #R
Z Wk
HEMBAR Y
HEMEARZER
LTI UNSTEEE
s YTiE
WEEHTE A B2 Hrig
BERA
L WNCIE S

JEfR LRG| B EE
FR#5 AR F
e
IR 5 A
AEEGFIELDEE

ARRFAA
DY R s

ZRAEMN
- YIN

ey

EENFS A=+ —HIFE

10

11

12

38
38

37
13

18

23,681,401
(19,431,259)

4,250,142
374,622
(652,752)

(1,285,350)

(253,158)

(189,697)

33,711

11,395
(329,369)
369,807

(3,849)

2,325,502
(194,231)

2,131,271

1,705,850
425,421

2,131,271

HK$2.0267% 7T

HK$1.9865# 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AEXERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 # &~ EE N F+ - H=—+—HI F/Z

Profit for the year REERF 2,131,271
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2R
Cash flow hedge: RS TEA -
Loss on cash flow hedges R mEEE (153,678)
Deferred tax recognised in relation RREMEPEEMER 2
to change in cash flow hedges EIEFH IR 18,525
Reclassification adjustment relating HIRE R PR MEL 2
to transfer of cash flow hedges EFHEAR 16,717
Reclassification adjustment relating R TR TEE M
to deferred tax on transfer of HZEHNDERRL
cash flow hedges ERERIR (1,746)
Investment revaluation reserve: REShRHE -
Fair value changes of available- AHEEREZ
for-sale investments REEEF (390,833)
Reclassification adjustment RAENEREY
relating to impairment loss HEBEMEL
on available-for-sale investments ENDERE 253,158
Reclassification adjustment relating g ETHEEREmMELZ
to disposal of available-for-sale ENDERE
investments 36,846
Property revaluation reserve: MESHERHE
Fair value changes on properties VEEREREMER L
transferred to investment properties NS 4,705
Translation reserve: BEE A
Exchange differences arising A EIMDLE = 2 REE
on translation of foreign operations A& 2 [ 5 =50
and to presentation currency 745,085
Share of changes in reserve of associates ~ JE{GH & A B E B 22,980
Exchange differences released upon HE—EREARRE
disposal of an associate N Z%E (773)
Other comprehensive income REEHMEEME(REE)
for the year (net of tax) 550,986
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2ANERE 2,682,257
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2 E IS EBFEIE D 4E ¢
Owners of the Company VA/NCIESY=DN 2,123,455
Minority interests DY EER 558,802
2,682,257
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Non-current assets

Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill

Investments in associates
Available-for-sale investments

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Non-current deposits

Intangible assets

Properties held for development
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties held for development

Trade and other receivables
and prepayments

Bills receivables

Prepaid lease payments

Derivative financial instruments

Taxation recoverable

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bills payables

Derivative financial instruments

Taxation payable

Bank borrowings — amount due
within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

REWE

W% - BB &R
TafEEFIE
mE
REE RN R ZIRE
AR ERE

RHERESER 2 S

FREEIE
BVEE
(SEidELVES
EAETRIRE &

MBEE

&

(SELESVES

B 5 MAEMmEK
BRF TR IR
EES
FEREERIE
PTHEEZMTA
QEEE
RITREBMRE

mBAE
B 5 MM AR

ANES
ITHEEMTA
FEBHIR
RITEE——FR
B 2 508

MBEEFE
BERERRBAR

33

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ll‘/_\élﬁ\ji%ﬂﬁiﬂf%

At 31 December 2009 R —ZEZENFE+—-H=+—H

1,327,165
16,888,278
1,499,021
2,005,658
686,133
780,248
10,435
1,413,450
770,142
233,135
32,660

25,646,325

2,561,334

4,990,317
775,582
32,103
3,468
7,063
4,225,273

12,595,140

3,733,140
615,362
1,940
383,261

2,596,995

7,330,698

5,264,442

30,910,767
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #r& B &R =

At 31 December 2009 R = FEENF+-H=+—H

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAAE
Derivative financial instruments MTESMIA
Bank borrowings — amount due RITEE ——F1&
after one year BIHR 2 B
Capital and reserves AR A R A
Share capital A& 7R
Share premium and reserves B A0 3 (B K ik
Equity attributable to owners of KATRFEBA
the Company Gt
Share option reserve of —HNB AR Bk
a subsidiary IR
Minority interests DER R
Total equity B4R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 203 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 1
March 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Kwok Wing
RE
DIRECTOR
2
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34
31

33

51,329
136,961

7,105,276

7,293,566

35

36

FE3EEF2BAZHFANBRERCN T —TF
A REE=SENREETE  YhTIES

REREE -

Chan Wing Kwan
BR K 2
DIRECTOR
BE

23,617,201

83,926
19,270,120

19,354,046

13,715
4,249,440

23,617,201




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rERnEER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=1+—HIFFZE

Balance at 1 January 2008 RIZTNE

—-A-Bukk 83810 4505828 897 [791) 10504 31728 - 6,583 (68403) 1067425 12640032 18277,703 12862 3936231 20.226,7%
Decrease n fa values of avalble- THEHERENTE
for-sale investments a0 - - - - - - - - 083 - - (39083 - - (39083
Shre of changes nreserve of associaes RIS ATEEST) - - - - - - - - - 2% - 2% - - 2%
Loss on cash fow hedges ReneEe - - - - - - (144780) - - - - (144780) - (Bgse) (153678)
Defered taxrecopnised invelion o~ ESFEHAEHED
changein cash fow hedges JETHE - - - - - - 185 - - - - 18 - - 185
Bxchange diferences arising on B EMEEE2E
ransiaton offoregn operations EEMELZER
and to presentation currency EH - - - - - - - - - 602806 - 602806 - 140219 745085
Fairvelue gan on properes tenslered 1 BRZHRENE
toinvestment properies Ak - - - - - - - 4T - - - 46 - - A4
Proffor the year TEEER - - - - - - - - - - 1706850 1,705,850 - 45 213121
Reserves released upon disposal of HE-ERBELT
an associale BHZEE - - - - - - - - - m - m - -
Transfer o proft orloss on i
cash flow hedges & - - - - - - 1677 - - - - 1677 - - 16717
Deferred tax on transfer to proft or B
Joss on cash flow hedges BHELIBLHE - - - - - - (1) - - - - (1) - - (1)
Impaiment loss on avalable- TLERE,
for-sale investments HEER - - - - - - - - 283158 - - 8318 - - 5318
Investment revaluaton reserve LERB/RE
relased on disposal e - - - - - - - - % - - % - - %8
Totel comprehensive income for theyer ~ AEE2FNEEE - - - - - - (111284) 4705 (100829) 625013 1705850 2,123456 - 558802 2682267
Issue of ew shares from exercise of B rRkE
share options [ikGE 0] 130 41 - - - - - - - - - 0w - - Dw
Shere repurchased and canceled RABEREE (1014) (1628%8) 104 - - - - - - - (10M) (163907) - - (1e3%n)
Recogriton of equity-settled BRI
share based payments hGES - - - - - - - - - - - - 286 - 816
Finalchidend fr the year ended HECTRHE
31 December 2007 t2A=1-A

LEEz KRS - - - - - - - - - - (5%0,183) (5%0,183) - - (%0183
Interi hidend for the year ended HEZZI)E
31 December 2008 t-R=t-B

LHEEZhERE - - - - - - - - - - (33r.247) (337.247) = - ()
Aoguistion ofsubsidries Note 37) WEHELA ) - - - - - - - - - - - - - 7S 47586
Acquistion of adltonal nterests WEHEATENES
n subsicaries - - - - - - - - - - - - - (B3%n)  (B8e)
Contribution from minorty shareholders P ERELEZE - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1R 1343
Diidend peid o minorty shareholders D BRE RS - - - - - - - - - - - - - T3ET8) B738TS)
Transfer upon lepse of share option REtEREsmER - - - - - - - - - - 1963 193 (1,963) - -
Transfers i - - - - - 857 - - - - [55774) - - - -

16 (01761 101 - - Em - - - SR (0TI 8B (45599) [1291852)

Belance at 31 December 2008 H-FEN\F+2A

-z 83,926 4,384,067 1911 (791) 10504 &7500 (111284) 11288 (159,282 1,682.438 13363627 19354046 13715 4249440 23617201
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Zr SRS B R
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EZEHE+ - H=+—HIFEZF

Balance at 1 January 2009

R-ERAE-A-H
bii

i

norease i e value of aveleble-forsle.— TEHHERAATE
nvestments b2 |

Shere of changes nresenve of associaes F{ﬁ%‘*‘"?f%ﬁﬁiﬂ

Loss on cash flow hedges SREUNER

Deferred tax recognised in reefon fo Eﬁﬁ%m;ﬁﬁgﬁﬁéﬁ
change In cash flow hedges ELHE

Bxchange diferences arising on ranglation ﬁﬁ& e
of forelgn operations and to presentation  2REWAEEZ
curency EXZE

Fairvalue gain on propertes transfered to - ¥ BAZRANZE
nvestment propertes 20TEE

Proft forthe year R

Tansfertoproftorossoncash fow BG4 RUHTFEEE
hedges s

Deferred tax on transfer to proft or loss on Eﬁmmmﬁﬁﬂ
cash flow hedges ELELHE

Impaiment loss on avalable-for-sale 'IM%&QZ&{EE}E
investments

Ivestment revaluation resenve eeased  HEREZREEREE
on disposal

Totd comprehensieincome for theyear ~ AEE2AMBEE

Issue of ew shares flom exercise of RiFEAERER
share optons IHRA

Recogriton of equity-setfled share based AR5
paymens

Final dhicend forthe year ended HE-TI)\ECR
31 December 2008 ; BItERZ

Interi lidend for the year ended BEo ggﬂﬁ A
31 December 2009 SRR

hiRE

Aoguistion of subsidiaries Note 37) WEHEAT ()

Acquiston of adctonal nerests n WENER ISR
subsidiaries

Disposal of partalinterests n subsidiaries  \HETBAT RS

Disposal ofsubsiciaries (Note 3) HEHBAF3E)

Divdend paid to minorty shershlders 0 ) ERE2HE

Reserves released upon cisposalof HENBATE
subsicaries AOgE

Resenves released upon disposel of paril B AR S ELR
interests n subsiries AEEE

Transfer upon apse of share option RETERELATER

Transfers a3

Balance at 31 Decemoer 2009 RoERAETA

S-BZEH

Notes: it -

() Special surplus account represents the difference between the nominal (@ BHRRBREARARRBITHROBEALQARR
amount of the shares issued by the Company and the nominal amount of —NN=FREEFSHWREZ MEARSEITRAE
the issued share capitals of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the B2ZERE -

Company under the group reorganisation in 1993.

(b) Statutory reserve represents the Enterprise Expansion Fund and General (b) AR EEIRE THBARREREARINBEREER
Reserve set aside by certain subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant FERBHZ CERBFTESM—REES -
laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China.

(©) The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on (© AEBYXSERBERNEETVERERZYE -
revaluation of certain properties for own use of the Group as a result BRE MR BEREREMEMES 2 b -
of transfer of those properties for own use from properties, plant and
equipment to investment properties.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

-~ s =
HmERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=1+—HIFFZE
2009 2008
—EETAE ZEE)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Profit before taxation MR RS A 3,214,180 2,325,502
Adjustments for: AR
Share of results of associates A= YNIES (64,252) (369,807)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities G ERIEHI TR A 2,325 3,849
Amortisation of intangible assets B ARSI 688 750
Depreciation of properties, plant M - BEREETE
and equipment 1,811,320 1,589,648
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HE SR E M EUIER
trade and other receivables BRREBE 90,070 40,474
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AMEHEREZIRE (32,124) (22,566)
Discount on acquisition of additional WEE PR B A RS MERS
interests in subsidiaries i (14,580) (33,711)
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEKTB AR 2 ik = (11,395)
Interest expenses and other finance charges METHEREMREER 221,256 329,369
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYE IR - (143,745)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz W (24,242) -
Gain on disposal of partial interests HEMRB AR B MHiER
in subsidiaries 2 Wi (340,038) -
(Gain) loss on disposal of HEAHRPEREZ
available-for-sale investments (Uzs) Esi8 (111,564) 36,846
Gain on fair value changes of REMENTEES 2 W
investment properties (51,425) (5,992)
Gain on fair value changes of SMNEERBE AT EEE
foreign currency forward contracts Pl (370) (318)
Loss (gain) on fair value changes of AREHENATEE
commodity forward contracts 2R (M) 11,628 (2,454)
Release of prepaid lease payments TBRHEEFIERE 20,047 26,863
Interest income FBIA (50,575) (62,309)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHERE ZREEE
investments 156,367 253,158
Imputed interest income on AR EHEET R BUA
convertible bond = (602)
Loss on disposal of convertible HE AR ES &K —H
bond and interest in an associate BERNRERZEBE = 189,697
Loss on disposal and write off of HE R - B &
properties, plant and equipment B BB 15,539 3,713
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARZEBE 106,814 -
Share based payment expenses AR A A R 1,427 2,816
Operating cash flows before Rt e EE2FHR KL
movements in working capital BEME 4,962,491 4,149,786
(Increase) decrease in inventories FECEM)m> (388,500) 164,443
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 REMEYERT R
other receivables and prepayments TBATRIE GE )R A (1,444,570) 1,695,555
(Increase) decrease in bills receivables JEW B (B )R (486,384) 81,926
Decrease in trade and other payables E 5 REMEM RN (517,077) (1,394,891)
Increase (decrease) in bills payables FENZIEE MO 139,922 (265,630)
Net increase in derivative financial instruments  $T4 & g T B30 %4 1,898 270
Increase in properties held for development FRREYELN (763,152) (233,135)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &R &mE &
For the year ended 31 December 2009 # % —EE L F+ - H=+—HI F/ZF

2009 2008
—EThE ZETN\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE T#T FHIT
Cash generated from operations SRS S 1,504,628 4,198,324
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BHEBFEH (239) (1,288)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BRFENER 138 46,907
Other taxes paid HiBHFHIA (219,838) (197,441)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHESREFHE
ACTIVITIES 1,284,689 4,046,502
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEH
Purchase of available-for-sale BEUHHERE
investments (1,309,428) (752,707)
Purchase of properties, plant and equipment BEWME  BE&ERE (1,989,166) (3,286,469)
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, BEWE  BEKRE
plant and equipment i HER (373,242) (676,673)
Consideration paid for acquisition of W B A BRI ME RS
additional interests in subsidiaries NI (291,412) (20,216)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B RITIEROL N (105,622) -
Prepaid lease payments made oNFENTRERE (21,824) (61,622)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (7,460) (360,302)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HENBAREZE 38 1,062,242 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERE Y
investments S TIE 1,026,876 146,283
Proceeds from disposal of partial HEMBA RSB HER
interests in subsidiaries PS8 RUR 848,660 -
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEME  BEMEREZ
plant and equipment FTiS 58 172,877 47,729
Dividend received from an associate Bl —MEBERRRE 111,156 349,360
Interest received B U FIE 50,575 62,309
Dividends received from available-for-sale BRATHEEERERS
investments 32,124 22,566
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B A ) 37 20,065 (259,351)
Capital injection/acquisition of associates BB NERE AT - (29,907)
Purchase of intangible assets EEEVEE = (261)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties &% &M% 1S HIE - 503,000
Proceeds from disposal of convertible bond HE R B IRES TS aE - 109,333
Proceeds from disposal of interest HE—HBE A RS
in an associate FTS3UA - 120,777
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBFAARSFEE
ACTIVITIES (773,579) (4,086,151)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 &

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &R E&RER

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Proceeds from exercise of share options

Repayment of bank borrowings

Dividend paid on ordinary shares

Dividend paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries

Interest and other finance charges paid

Capital contribution from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Payment on repurchase of shares

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

Less: Pledged bank deposits

Balances of cash and cash equivalents

2_-F

ENFF A= —HIEFE

BMEEE
FIRRITIEE
TTEEEBRRMERA
BERITEE
BiREBBEE
XNTFHBARZ PBIERZ
BS
ENMERAMEEER
MERABZ PBBRHERR
BERBRMTE
BETBAEREFE
RERRESEER
BEE

FOzREREEEEER

ExEHE

FRZREREEEEER

RERRESEEREHIN

RiITRESBEAS

RITEX

B BERRITER

RE& KRS FEABEH

8,199,044
42,262

(5,852,605)

(927,430)

(373,573)
(349,228)

134,321
(163,907)

708,884

669,235

3,494,011

62,011

4,225,257

4,225,273
(16)

4,225,257

4,225,257
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R IR AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=1+—HIFFZE

1.

62

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company and its operating
subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB”) while the consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"), which the management of the Company
considered is more beneficial for the users of the
consolidated financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
of laminates, copper foil, glass fabric, glass yarn, bleached
kraft paper, printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), chemicals,
liquid crystal displays (“LCDs”), magnetic products and
property developments.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation
and disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology
changes (including revised titles for the financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of the
financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has not resulted in
a redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments (see
Note 8).

Improving disclosures about financial instruments
(amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The amendments also expand and amend the disclosures
required in relation to liquidity risk. The Group has not
provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision
set out in the amendments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.
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HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as
part of improvements to
HKFRSs 2008!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
20092

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures®

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate
financial statements!

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of right issues*

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedged items!

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC)* - INT 14

(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - INT 17

HK(IFRIC) - INT 19

Additional exemptions for
first-time adopters?

Limited exemption from
comparative HKFRS 7
disclosures for first-time
adopters®

Group cash-settled
share-based payment
transactions®

Business combinations'

Financial instruments’
Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirements®

Distributions of non-cash
assets to owners!

Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective from 1 January 2013,
with earlier application permitted. The Standard requires
all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and (i) have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9
might affect the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets.
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66

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. The amendments will
be effective from 1 January 2010, with earlier application
permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees
were required to classify leasehold land as operating
leases and presented as prepaid lease payments in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendments have removed such a requirement.
Instead, the amendments require the classification of
leasehold land to be based on the general principles set
out in HKAS 17, that are based on the extent to which
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased
asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. The application
of the amendments to HKAS 17 has no effect on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s leasehold
lands.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
using the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up
to 31 December each year. Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

On acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries,
goodwill arising is calculated as the difference between
the consideration paid for the additional interest and the
carrying amount of the net assets of the subsidiaries
attributable to the additional interest acquired. If the
Group’s additional interest in the net assets of the
subsidiaries exceeds the consideration paid for the
additional interest, the excess is recognised immediately as
income in profit or loss.

On disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries, the
difference between the proceeds from the disposal of
partial interest in subsidiaries and the carrying amount
of the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
—TENEFFHR EELIER

3.

FEEHBE 2

FEREEE(E)
FAMBAREEFEZ DB RS R
AEERERZEBENFEY - REFE
EFEZLERRESBRERERSG G
Pz EREZHE  URaas AR
FOBBRRER 2 EEEE o DERRE
R D B RN B A B 2 AR A
SR ERARERDEE - DB
REBHURNEEREBRENELRING
BABMBZEEIERIRIN o

WM B AR EIMERR - TEECHE
1Rk RSN s PN AU(E B AT RIS 2 RE M
SEEMBAREEFEZREERER
AE - WAKRBEEEHBEAREEFELZ
BIMESBAEIMER T 2 RE
HEFR RS ANES fERR A 1B s

HEMBARIE D SR - HEHERR]
Mo RSRREMLENBARNE
EFEREEZRNEZE  REsRER
HHER

ES =
WREXGRABE S EIEAAR - B
KARLZXGERAMGTZEE - TELS
AEZAE  URAREBIEHIREET
MEBTRATAZ AFEARE - SNE
BEHEREEZERNKATE - HEFE
B ER IR RIS IR K AF A O JRER IRMT
ZHRWEET 2T BAEE BEREIARA
& BUAKE A2 D FEER -



-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or jointly
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the net assets of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment as a single asset. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment in associate. Any reversal of impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which ventures have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEHBK®
(continued)
Jointly controlled entities (continued) HEZEHER(E)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties,
comprising prepaid lease payments for lands and
development costs, are included in properties held for
development until such time when they are completed.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment (other than properties,
plant and equipment under construction) are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
properties, plant and equipment (other than properties,
plant and equipment under construction) over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method
(see Note 20 for the depreciation rates per annum of the
items of properties, plant and equipment).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
Properties, plant and equipment under construction,
representing properties, plant and equipment in the
course of construction for production or for its own
use purposes, are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Properties, plant and equipment under
construction is classified to the appropriate category of
properties, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An owner-occupied property is transferred to investment
property at fair value when it is evidenced by end of
owner-occupation. The difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount at the date of transfer is
recognised in property revaluation reserve in accordance
with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
Leasehold land and buildings under development for
future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course
of development for production or for administrative
purposes, the leasehold land component is classified as
a prepaid lease payment and amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. During the construction period,
the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets (other than mining right) with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (continued)
Amortisation for mining right with finite useful life is
amortised using the units of production method over the
total proven reserves of the coal mines.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the profit or loss in the period when
the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IEEHEBE®
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued) BEEEE)
Research and development expenditure (continued) HFREEEH (&)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such
intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired (see the accounting policies in respect of
impairment losses (other than goodwill) below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill (see the
accounting policies in respect of goodwill))

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction
of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z

BB RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE

(continued)

Leasing (continued) HH(E)

Leasehold land and building A £ R EF

The land and building elements of a lease of land and RHEESEmME  HOLHWREFH L
building are considered separately for the purpose of WREREFHED IOHTE  BRIEAES X

lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire contract is treated as
a finance lease and accounted for as properties, plant
and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted as operating leases and amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for
those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under fair value model.
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Foreign currencies ShEE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual BEIREETE B RmERE - TR
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the NEEBEAINERE (INE)VET 2R ST
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are AN B (TR T BLE 7 KBRS
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the ZEBIVAR S HEE R 2 EREEE o AR

currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.
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80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
before 1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign
currency items of the acquirer and reported using the
historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the costs for which
they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHB%®
(continued)
Borrowing costs EERA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sales, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported
in consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into (i) financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), (i)
loans and receivables and (iii) available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including non-current deposits,
trade and other receivables, bills receivables and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or counterparty; or default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or it becoming probable
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 120 days and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and
other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise
financial liabilities held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bills payables and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in the profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading and are classified as current
assets or current liabilities.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of
the cash flow of floating-rate bank borrowings (i.e. interest
rate swap contracts).

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument that is used
in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as other gains or
losses.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (hedging reserve)
are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item is recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group
revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain
or loss accumulated in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or
loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IEEHEBE®
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) $RITAE)
Derecognition Sl R

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted on or before 7 November 2002,
or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the value of
option granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded in the share premium
account. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior
to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Share options granted and vested on or after 1 January
2005

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees of
the Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve.

At end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivables for goods sold and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts, return and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when
services are provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies which are described in Note 3, management has
made the following estimation that have significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
At 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of goodwill
arising from acquisition of subsidiaries was approximately
HK$2,288,149,000 (2008: HK$2,005,658,000). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation of subsidiaries are
disclosed in Note 22.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4.

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Income taxes

At 31 December 2009, deferred tax assets of (i)
approximately HK$12,522,000 (2008: HK$8,628,000)
in relation to unused tax losses; (i) approximately
HK$15,650,000 (2008: HK$16,779,000) in relation to loss
on cash flow hedges recognised in hedging reserve; and
(iiiy approximately HK$15,185,000 (2008: HK$13,589,000)
in relation to write-down of inventories have been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$177,694,000 (2008:
HK$92,286,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
stream. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future assessable profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future assessable profits
generated are less or more than expected, a reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal or recognition takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Group review the capital structure on
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 # = — =&

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) - held for trading
— derivative financial
instruments

Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash
equivalents)

- non-current deposits

— trade and other
receivables

— bills receivables

- bank balances and cash

Available-for-sale investments

Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) - held for trading

Derivative instruments in
designated hedge
accounting relationships

Amortised cost
— trade and other payables
— bills payables
- bank borrowings

6. ®MIA
SMIAEH

MEEE
FEERARATE
ARG HBEE
—THEEmMIA

ERLEKER (BERE
MR eEEER)

—RBEIE

— B REM

— YRR
—RITREBR IR

A ERE

MaE
FEEE AR AFERA
BamzBBaE

HRETHEFRIE
ZOTETA

— B 5 RAEMEMNERK
eS|
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6a.

3,468

1,413,450

4,057,994
775,582
4,225,273

10,472,299

780,248

1,940

136,961

2,435,335
615,362
9,702,271

12,752,968
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity investments, derivative financial instruments,
non-current deposits, bank balances and cash,
bank borrowings, trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, trade and other payables and bills
payables. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately
27.9% (2008: 39.0%) of the Group’s sales
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity making
the sale, whilst almost 37.8% (2008: 33.8%) of
purchases are denominated in currencies other
than the group entity’s functional currency.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in respective notes. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should the need arise.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United
States dollars (“US$”), Euro and Japanese Yen
(“JPY”). The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 10% (2008: 10%) increase and
decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. 10% (2008: 10%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for
a 10% (2008: 10%) change in foreign currency
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes trade and
other receivables, bills receivables, bank balances
and cash, available-for-sale investments, trade
and other payables, bills payables as well as bank
borrowings. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit for the year where RMB
strengthen 10% (2008: 10%) against the relevant
currency. For a 10% (2008: 10%) weakening of
RMB against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit for the year.
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6b.
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THT FHET

Uss$ ETT (262,419) (160,988)
Euro & 7T (5,616) 22,958
JPY HE 6,130 2,964
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&
For the year ended 31 December 2009 &= —ZF =

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The management considers that the exposure of
the outstanding foreign currency forward contracts
at the end of the reporting period as a result of the
change in foreign currency exchange rate is not
significant as the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged
against US$.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to floating-rate bank borrowings
(see Note 33 for details of these borrowings).
In relation to these floating-rate borrowings, the
Group aims at keeping certain borrowings at fixed
rates. In order to achieve this result, the Group
entered into interest rate swap contracts to hedge
against its exposure to potential variability of cash
flows arising from changes in floating interest
rates (see Note 31 for details). The management
continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation
and will consider further hedging interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings
(see Note 33 for details of these borrowings). The
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider repay the fixed-rate bank
borrowings when significant interest rate exposure
is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly related to the
fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s
bank borrowings.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
balances. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk which relates to its fixed-rate
short-term bank deposits. The Directors consider
the Group’s exposure of the short-term bank
deposits to interest rate risk is not significant as
interest bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest bearing bank balances and bank
borrowings as well as interest rate swap contracts
at the end of the reporting period. The analyses
are prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points (2008: 100 basis points) increase or 10
basis points (2008: 100 basis points) decrease
are used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis points (2008:
100 basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2009 would decrease by
HK$28,328,000 (2008: decrease by
HK$32,353,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its interest bearing bank balances and
variable-rate borrowings; and

o the debt side hedging reserve would
decrease by HK$49,267,000 (2008:
decrease by HK$102,223,000) mainly as
a result of the changes in the fair value of
interest rate swap contracts.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rate had been 10 basis points (2008:
100 basis points) lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2009 would increase by
HK$5,666,000 (2008: increase by
HK$32,353,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its interest bearing bank balances and
variable-rate borrowings; and

o the debt side hedging reserve would
increase by HK$9,854,000 (2008: increase
by HK$102,223,000) mainly as a result of
the changes in the fair value of interest rate
swap contracts.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles and the Group has a team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

The Group has concentration risk on its available-
for-sale investments with 51% (2008: nil) of the
total available-for-sale investments concentrated
in a single financial institution which is listed in the
United States.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the reporting date.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
equity listed securities, which have been impaired
at the end of the reporting period, had been 10%
higher (2008: 15% higher):

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2009 would increase by
approximately HK$36,145,000 (2008:
HK$31,258,000) as a result of the change
in fair value of these available-for-sale
investments; and

° no change in investment revaluation
reserve for the years ended 31 December
2008 and 2009 would be resulted.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
equity listed securities, which have been impaired
at the end of the reporting period, had been 10%
lower (2008: 15% lower):

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2009 would decrease by
approximately HK$36,145,000 (2008:
HK$31,258,000) as a result of the change
in fair value of these available-for-sale
investments; and

° no change in investment revaluation
reserve for the years ended 31 December
2008 and 2009 would be resulted.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
equity listed securities, which have not been
impaired at the end of the reporting period, had
been 10% higher (2008: 15% higher):

° investment revaluation reserve would
increase by approximately HK$87,009,000
(2008: HK$82,730,000) as a result of the
change in fair value of these available-for-
sale investments; and

o no change in post-tax profit for the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 would
be resulted.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
equity listed securities, which have not been
impaired at the end of the reporting period, had
been 10% lower (2008: 15% lower):

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2009 would decrease by
approximately HK$25,818,000 (2008:
HK$50,135,000) as a result of the change
in fair value of these available-for-sale
investments; and

o investment revaluation reserve would
decrease by approximately HK$61,191,000
(2008: HK$32,595,000) as a result of the
change in fair value of these available-for-
sale investments.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Commodity price risk

The Group was exposed to commodity price
risk from the outstanding commodity forward
contracts at the end of the reporting period. The
management considers that the price risks of
these derivative instruments are not significant to
the Group.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at 31 December 2008 and 2009
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated the members of the
board of directors responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank
balances exposed is considered minimal as such
amounts are placed with various banks with
good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk on trade and other receivables with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers. However, the Group is exposed
to the concentration on geographic segment of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). At 31
December 2009, approximately 82% (2008: 83%)
of the Group’s trade and other receivables are
arising from the PRC.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management has monitored the utilisation of bank
borrowings and has ensured compliance with loan
covenants during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. At 31 December
2009, the Group has available unutilised banking
facilities of approximately HK$8,288,173,000
(2008: HK$7,460,317,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
and derivative financial instruments based on
the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash (inflows) outflows are
presented based on the contractual maturities as
the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMTR»)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HBEMREEBEERBIK(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HBE AR ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables RBNE © RFIERBE

At 31 December 2009 RZZERE

t2A=1-H
Non-darivative fiancial HtEEE
[iabilties
Tadeandotherpayables ~ BRREMERER -
Bills payables ERRE -
Bark borrowings #i1E
- fied rate -%8 51
- variahle rate -8 21
-vaiableratehedged by %8 (MAFI%
inteest rate Swap EHALEHR)
contracts 34

Derivatives - net setfement A4 TA-4#E%E
Commodiy forward contracts BRESAL
Interest rafe swap contracts ~ FIZHEAL
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

6.
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Foreign currency forward ~ SNEZERAH)
contracts

Interest rate swap contracts AR EHAL

6.7
33

34

2130166 305,169 - - - 2B 24353%
615,362 - - - - 61532 615362
- 8469 - - V£
286296 1199571 076465 216798 46853  AGTTATS  45076%
30580 B2 1220860 2908563 - 5340445 5166700
3062404 2384651 2206325 5076551 46853 13076784 12,752,968
(634) - - - -6 ()
M) ) - - - B37) (B2
ol04 2400 %58 78450 -8 138389
6308 2385 5B 78450 - BT 13543
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6¢C.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (except for derivatives)
are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input; and

° the fair value of derivative financial
instruments are measured at fair value
by reference to the valuation provided by
counterparty financial institutions for these
instruments.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

6. ®MIA®
6c. A¥E
P EERIBREZ ATERT
PAREE

. BEREGR R L RS
BRBEmSERECMIBEE
M aEz A FES RIS
EmGMRcERERER
BEEE -

. REERESOEEES
RTRASRENN - EX
HMBEERMBAR
(PTETABRINEORFE -
FIRRALRENNERR
BMi5R 52 B ERIA
RIERER &

. TTEEMIARTELES
ERETAZR TR
BRHtZHBER  BRAFE

5

7_1_(/
af

>

BIEERA  NEHR AL
AU BRI MBEERYE
ZREEREAFERE

S

i
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMTR»)
6¢c.  Fair value (continued) 6c. AFHE

Fair value measurements recognised in the REBL BN L EZERZ XNFE

consolidated statement of financial position iE

The following table provides an analysis of financial TRE|REERQNFEEVNSERE

instruments that are measured subsequent to FFrEZEmMIAZDN  BEXR

initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels Sz ATFEIERE—HBRE-

1 to 2 based on the degree to which the fair value is B

observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those ° FH - ABREERRE
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) TRRTERE CRERAR)
in active market for identical assets or P AFERE -
liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those * B BRI IR

S BRAERAEER
(EP{EHE) Sk D2 (BN 5 (R
12 ) R {3 A5 IR
FriS 2 ATEE -

derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Available-for-sale financial assets At HEM B EE

Listed equity securities EilRAES
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RATEFAERZ
Derivative financial instruments BEaBEITEeRIA
Derivative instruments in BEETHREHERZ
designated hedge accounting fTETA
relationships
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 HEZZTTNF+ZA=1+—H81
during the year ended 31 December 2009. FE B-HEEE_RzEHNEE
1THERE -
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7. REVENUE
Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable by the Group from the sale of goods and
services rendered to outside customers, net of discounts,
returns and sales related taxes by the Group, for each
year and is analysed as follows:

Sale of laminates HEBIER
Sale of PCBs SHE BN AR BEAR
Sale of chemicals HELTER
Others (Note) EA (PEE)

Note: Amount included service income of HK$36,156,000 (2008:

HK$26,863,000).

BExE

EEFEAEERSFREHIESHE
B CAHTH - REREEAMBIR) RIE
HIRES 2 P R RS BUFH - AT

7,144,369
7,869,817
7,451,656
1,215,559

23,681,401

M BIERBUAAS6,156,0008 T (= FF)\F
26,863,000/ 7T) °
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110

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performance. In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (HKAS 14, Segment Reporting) required an
entity to identify two sets of segments (business and
geographical) using a risks and returns approach, with
the entity’s “system of internal financial reporting to key
management personnel” serving only as the starting point
for the identification of such segments. The Group’s
primary reporting format under HKAS 14 was business
segments and is currently organised into four main
operating divisions — (i) laminates, (i) PCBs, (i) chemicals,
and (iv) others. The Directors consider that the adoption
of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the
reportable segments for the Group compared with the
primary reportable segments determined in accordance
with HKAS 14, nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed
the basis of measurement of segment profit or loss.

Under HKFRS 8, reported segment information is based
on internal management reporting information that is
regularly reviewed by the executive directors, being the
CODM of the Group. The measurement policies the
Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS financial statements.
The executive directors assess segment profit or loss
using a measure of operating profit whereby certain items
are not included in arriving at the segment results of the
operating segments (share of results of associates and
jointly controlled entities, impairment loss on available-
for-sale investments, loss on disposal of convertible bond
and interest in an associate, gain or loss on disposal
of subsidiaries, gain on disposal of partial interests in
subsidiaries, discount on acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries, discount on acquisition of subsidiaries,
income tax expenses, finance costs, and unallocated
corporate income and expenses).
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. REWEE =)
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) IR AR I A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AT BIRERRDEEID 2 AEEE
and results by reportable segments: EBNEEZ DN

Year ended 31 December 2000 HE-TENE

TZAZT-ALLER
Segment revenue Ailla
Extemal sales WEER
Inter-segment sales ABEIHEE
Tota EH)
Result E+
Segment result %G
Discount on acquistton of YEHBLAE
addtional interests in Ba TR
subsiolaries
(Gain on disposal of parial HERBARDRES
interests in subsiciaries PG

Loss on disposal of subsiciaries K EMBA T2 B

Gain on dlsposal of subsidlaries K EMBAT 2

Impairment loss on AHHERE 2 RERE
avalable-for-sale investments

Unallocated corporateincome—— AAEZ AFMA

Unallocated corporate expenses AR AT

Finance costs BENE
Share of resulfs of assoclates  FE(THEATEE
Share of resus of jointly EIEEREHEREE
controlled entities
Profit before taxation el
Income tax expense FERES
Profit for the year AEERH
Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to DB HEE DR EMEH -

market prices.
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8.
(a)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8.

Segment revenues and results (continued)

REWEE =)
(a) D EBURA R W2k (&)

Year ended 31 December 2008

Segment revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total

Result
Segment result

Impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments
Loss on disposal of convertible
bond
Loss on disposal of interest in
an associate
Discount on acaisition of
additional interests in
subsiolaries
Discount on acaisition of
subsiolaries
Unallocated corporate income
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of results of jointly
controlled entties

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Proft for the year

HE T3 )\%
TZAZ+-ALLER
Ala
WEES 7871151 7860817 7222382 718,051 - 23681401
ABRIHEE 2,647,363 - 41148 123440 (3,181952) -
A 10518514 7869817 7633530 841492 (3181952) 23,681 401
e
i 1533808 586932 666809 10,884 2798433
A ERE 2R
BE (253158
HEMARES ER

(182918
HE-FREARER
- 6,779
WEHB LS ME R
bair

B 71
WEHBLT 2

11,395
FARZDFRA 177,377
APEZ AR (289,148 )
BENA (329,369 )
N 369,807
ElLRRHEERE

(3849
WA 2,325,502
FERRAR (194231)
REERT 2131271

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to

market prices.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. REWEE =)
(b)  Segment assets and liabilities b) SIBEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets IWTAEE2RSBEID 2 AEBE
and liabilities by reportable segments: ENBEZON

At 31 December 2009

Assets

Segment assets

Interests in jointly controlled
entities

Investments in associates

Unallocated corporate assets
-Bank balances and cash
- Deferred tax assets
- Taxation recoverable
- Others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilties
Unallocated corporate liabilities
- Bank borrowings
- Taxation payable
- Deferred tax liabilities
- Others

Consolidated total liabilities

RAREHEE
b i

REERRIZRE

AR NAEE
- iR
-EEHREE
- REHE
—Eft

GRAERE

A
ABAR
AP RERE
-RiTEE
-EERERE
—H#
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. REWEE =)
(b)  Segment assets and liabilities (continued) b) SHBEEREREE)
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals Others Consolidated
EATER  CORIGEE  (LIESR et ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T#T THT THT THT
At 31 December 2008 RZTTNF
+-A=1+-H
Assets EE
Segment assets NBEE 1310226 9,852,236 9562221  2,628443 33353126
Interests i jointly controlled RERZEE
entities JER 10,435
Investments n assoclates REELR RE 686,133
Unallocated corporate assets KAWL AFEE
- Bank balances and cash —RTERRAS 3,365,752
- Deferred tax assets —BRHREE 32,660
— Taxation recoverable —~MRERE 7,063
- Others —Hfh 786,296
Consolidated total assets GREEBE 38,241,465
Liabilties BE
Segment liabilities AHEE (1,171,358)  (1,182,150)  (1,311,940)  (526,149) (4,191,597)
Unallocated corporate liabilities RABRZARER
- Bank borrowings -H{7EE (9,702.271)
- Taxation payable ~[ESIA (383,261)
- Deferred tax liabilities - EEHBEAE (61,329)
- Others —Eth (295,808)
Consolidated total liabilties GReBREEE (14,624,264 )
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Other information

Year ended 31 December 2009

Capital additions
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade and
other receivables
Release of prepaid lease payments
Loss on disposal and write off of
properties, plant and equipment
Share based payment expenses

BIER
TEREH
SEZREMEL
gt A
B
BAEETRRE
HE RHNx
B LR ER
S 5T

8.

REWEE =)
(@]

Heti&r

Laminates PCBs  Chemicals Others  Consolidated
BRER  EORISBR IER At 54
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT TAL THL ThEL FHEL
Year ended 31 December 2008 HEZTTNF
TZA=t-8
IH5E
Capital additions BARER 1,096,936 1,134,768 1,352,956 716,004 4,300,664
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 750,452 514,032 266,061 59,863 1,590,398
Impairment loss recognised HEHREMEY
in respect of trade and RRRAAE
other receivables B 8,101 18,457 13,916 - 40,474
Gain on disposal of investment HEREE 2
properties - - - 143,745 143,745
Release of prepaid lease payments B HEZERE 6,095 6,906 9,087 4,775 26,863
Loss on disposal and write off of HERMBENE
properties, plant and equipment FE RS E BE 608 1,055 1,822 228 3,713
Share based payment expenses ARG AZARS - 2,816 - - 2816
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Other information (continued)
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC
(country of domicile) and Thailand.

The analysis of the Group’s revenue from external
customers is as follows:

The PRC =

(country of domicile) (FEE=)
Other Asian countries Hith MBI xR
Europe M
America =

No external customers of the Group contributed
over 10% of the Group’s revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2009.
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AR B E B R B E (FE
BR)RHE -

REBEIINEP 2 EEFEH NN
T

19,600,756
2,719,879
988,486
372,280

23,681,401
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

(c)

Other information (continued)

The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
other than deferred tax assets, available-for-sale
investments and non-current deposits by location

of assets is presented as follows:

The PRC s

(country of domicile) (FTEEXR)
Thailand =&
Singapore b

REWEE =)

(@]

Hitn& (%)

BRERRIREE  AIHHEERER
FRBETEIN  AEEIFRBEE
REEMEHDIT2IIA0T

23,161,397
256,971
1,599

23,419,967
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. HMEA

Hip A B4 -

Other income comprises:

Dividends from available-for-sale AHEERE ZRE

investments 22,566
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & 7] it HE % E ~ Ui zs

investments -
Gain on fair value changes of KEMENTEES

investment properties 2 5,992
Government grants BT E B -
Gain on disposal of investment HEREME W

properties 143,745
Gain on fair value changes of foreign 4MEREIA LA FEES) 2

currency forward contracts Wz 318
Imputed interest income on AR EF AT B A

convertible bond 602
Interest income FLEHA 62,309
Net exchange gain b T RE 46,492
Rental income MU A 90,072
Others Hi 2,526

374,622

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AVAILABLE-FOR- 10. A[#tHERBFZRERE

SALE INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, impairment REBEE-_TTNF+_A=1+—HBLHF
loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$156,367,000 ER -  ARASEEFEHET ETRA
(2008: HK$253,158,000) was recognised as a result of REMNRAFEBESIRBENEKAX
significant or prolonged decline in the fair values of certain B AhEASEGIHEEREZRE
of the Group’s listed equity investments below their costs. &5 18 156,367,000 B L ( Z T /A F

253,158,000/ 7T) °
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11.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF CONVERTIBLE 11. HEWEERESFRE—RBEELNT
BOND AND INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE bt =l ot |
2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T
Loss on disposal of convertible bond HETTBRRES ZEE - 182,918
Loss on disposal of interest in & — S AR s
an associate 2B - 6,779
- 189,697

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group entered into subscription agreements with
G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (“G-Prop”) to subscribe
for (i) 740,518,325 ordinary shares of G-Prop, which
represented 36.51% of the enlarged issued share
capital of G-Prop, at a consideration of approximately
HK$119,964,000 and (ii) a three-year zero coupon
convertible bond (“CB”) with a principal amount of
HK$108,000,000. G-Prop became an associate of the
Group since then.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
sold its entire holding of 740,518,325 ordinary shares
of G-Prop, to Mass Rise Limited, an independent third
party and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, at a consideration of approximately
HK$120,777,000.

At the same time, the Group also sold the CB to Get
Nice Securities Limited, an independent third party, at a
consideration of approximately HK$109,333,000.

As a result of the above, the Group recognised a loss of
approximately HK$189,697,000 in total, comprising a loss
on disposal of interest in an associate of approximately
HK$6,779,000 and a loss on disposal of CB of
approximately HK$182,918,000 during the year ended 31
December 2008.

—EELF+ A=+ —RALEE
N AEERESECEBRATNEED
ERRIE R - () ARER(EAY119,964,000
TR IE740,518,325 [ & E A% - 15
REZERED BITIRAS6.51% K (i) R
CEZ=FHTIRRKRES([ATRRE
#]) "&£ % 5108,000,0008 7L ° £ E
AUt AREEN—FHBE AR

REBEE-_ZZTN\F+_A=Z+—HILFE
A - A E AR R(EL120,777,000% 7T 15
Fis B £ ERI740,518,325 % L @RI 1) 2
YEXR-—BBYE=ZFRF-BEEARA
AR AT EMEABESENRES
BHRBWBAR) -

RIEF - ANEEDAARRE49109,333,0008 7T
HERBIRES T —BBYLE=H A —
HEHBEHFBRAR -

EREMRA  mEBRBE_TTN\F
TZA=+—BUEFENEL MRS ZE
JB4%E49189,697,000/8 T * HF BHEHE
— ML A Al 2 518 496,779,000 7T
K & ATk B 25 2 E1549182,918,0007%8
5t o

Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 119

STTHAEFR RN IEE



EMBHEMETE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z
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12. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS 12. HEMEBARNBHESZKE
IN SUBSIDIARIES
2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Gain on disposal of partial interest in HEREEERIZER

120

Kingboard Laminates Holdings

BRAR([EEEER])

Limited (“KLHL”) Ein e 2 Was 339,756 -
Gain on disposal of partial interest in HEBEEBEEGR AT
United Hill Group Limited ([Hgsl |) ED1n Mz
(“United Hill") 2 Uzs 282 -
340,038 -
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group REBEE-ZETNF+TA=+—HIEFE

entered into an agreement with an independent agent
to place down 160,000,000 ordinary shares of KLHL,
a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which
is listed on the Stock Exchange, to independent third
parties at a placing price of HK$4.92 per share, giving
a total consideration of approximately HK$787,200,000
before expenses, which amounted to approximately
HK$20,540,000.

As a result of the placement, the Group’s interest in
KLHL was reduced from 74.77% to 69.44% and the
gain on disposal of partial interest in KLHL amounted to
approximately HK$339,756,000.

In addition, the Group also entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of 49% equity
interest in United Hill, which is held by a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of
approximately HK$82,000,000 during the year ended 31
December 2009.

W ANEEE-FEIREAER R
NGRS E4.928 7T MBYE=HE
160,000,000 8% 32 B 1& [E 1k (A B 22 T £
RETMREZEREMB AR ML BB
2+ B3 H 4920,540,0007% JT AT EY 4B
{E49/4787,200,000/8 T °

REEZKRE  A5EFEHFEBEEIR
HIBEAE R 74.77% 8 2 69.44% - 0 A 1tk M
BELEREBERBOER 2 BEL
339,756,00078 7T

B REBE_ZTTAF+_A=1+—8
LFERN AEEE-EBIE=HAA
ERR B - LAAE R B 4982,000,0007%8 7T H
EH—[MEZEREWNBRRIFEZ49%
Bgh I AR A o

As a result of the disposal, the Group’s interest in United M ETTKE - REB AR RER
Hill was reduced to 51% and the gain on disposal of E51% W I 8RS H S Bt I8 20 1) 2

partial interest in United Hill amounted to approximately
HK$282,000.
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13. FINANCE COSTS 13. MERF

Interest on bank borrowings wholly AR AFERNEZHE]
repayable within five years ZEBITEEZFE 300,810
Interest on bank borrowings not SRAFREHEE
wholly repayable within five years ZRITEEZFE 7,005
Other finance charges HEumEER 4,260
312,075
Fair value loss reclassified from AR HE B RTT
equity on interest rate swaps BEZRESRN
designated as cash flow hedge of MEmEIE LM
variable rate bank borrowings BEARNEFDEZ
NEEESE 16,717
Fair value changes of interest rate FEENF AR 2 F R 5 5
swap contracts not designated for ABHRNFEZED
hedging purpose 2,602
331,394
Less: Interest capitalised B BAEF B (2,025)
329,369
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the FRZENMEERARTIR —RIEE+TE
general borrowing pool and were calculated by applying £ RIBTENFUAREREERIZE
a capitalisation rate of 1.2% for 2009 (2008: 3.5%) to AR 2% (ZZTZT)\F : 3.5%)51E o

expenditures on qualifying assets.
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRSMMAX

122

2009 2008
—ZThEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT T
The amount comprises: MIBRE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNED
Charge for the year AEEZHES T 239 38,009
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBERE - (8,890)
239 29,119
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions Hih i m o fHm|
Charge for the year NEF Z7HBELH 242,790 140,689
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBERE (3,154) (1,454)
239,636 139,235
Deferred taxation (Note 34) RFERIA (FI7E34)
Charge for the year REEZH 8,609 24,856
Attributable to a change in tax rate MEEH o ZE - 1,021
8,609 25,877
248,484 194,231

On 26 June 2008, the Legislative Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administration Region passed the Revenue
Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from
17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for
the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the Enterprise Income Tax rate
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, which previously
ranged from 15% to 33%, was changed to 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FRB3HRANR 2
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before REE 7 HIBEBRADER 2 SN T :

taxation as follows:

Profit before taxation BB A e A 2,325,502
Tax charge at the domestic income PAE H P15 R 25%

tax rate of 25% (2008: 25%) (ZZZT)NEF : 25%)

(Note a) FTE 2B (Fizta) 581,376
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  FAIIE BB 2 %

for tax purpose 2 119,145
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERT S 2 %

tax purpose TE (40,871)
Tax effect of share of results of DI E RN BEE

associates M2 (92,451)
Tax effect of share of results of jointly DG T [E | F el 248

controlled entities 2R 962
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBREREE (10,344)
Tax effect of tax holiday (Note b) SRH 2 TS 2 (MisEb) (120,399)
Tax effect of tax losses not AT ERBIEEE 2

recognised M2 12,5615
Utilisation of tax losses previous A AERER 2

not recognised TIEEsE (5,527)
Effect of different tax rates of FAFR B BASNEL A B A [,

subsidiaries operating in HELERBARZ

other jurisdictions/areas other than TERE 8

the PRC (57,738)
Tax exempted profits (Note ¢) BEUEF (MisEe) (202,776)
Withholding tax (Note d) FEIH (FizEd) 9,318
Decrease in opening deferred tax BRI ER 2 F)

assets resulting from IR IR B B

decrease in applicable tax rate 1,021
Tax expense for the year KEEZHEHAT 194,231
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

14.

Notes:

(@

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2008: 25%) represents
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax of which the Group’s operations
are substantially based.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are exempted from PRC
Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from the first profit-
making year in which profits exceed any carried forward tax
losses followed by a 50% reduction in the income tax rate in the
following three years (“Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday enjoyed by
these subsidiaries will expire on or before 2012.

In addition, certain subsidiaries also enjoyed a preferential tax
rate and the preferential tax rate will be gradually increased to the
new tax rate of 25% over five years from 1 January 2008.

Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau
are exempted from profit tax.

The withholding tax represented the 5% withholding tax paid
in respect of the dividend received from an associate, CNOOC
Kingboard Chemical Limited.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

15. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 15. FEFEERF

Profit for the year has been arrived at

AEE N B AR HRR

after charging (crediting): (hE)LATIBE :
Depreciation of properties, plant and WE - BB &R
equipment e 1,589,648
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEEBHE(ERT
(included in administrative costs) AFTERAAN) 750
1,590,398
Net exchange gain b s B R
—included in cost of sales — B AHEKA (47,646)
— included in other income —BEFAEMKA (46,492)
(94,138)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN & 9,349
Cost of inventories recognised as REAZZ
expenses FERKRA 19,368,570
Loss (gain) on fair value change of EmRA AT EES)
commodity forward contracts Z B ()
(included in cost of sales) (BEFASHERA) (2,454)
Impairment loss recognised in respect Tt 5 & H b fE IR
of trade and other receivables R BEREE
(included in administrative expenses) (BRTATTERCA) 40,474
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHHERE 7 EIE
investments (included in (BEFATTEAAN)
administrative expenses) 36,846
Loss on disposal and write off of & RIMEE T -
properties, plant and equipment B M 3%t 2 5B 3,713
Release of prepaid lease payments TEf RS F0E 2 B 26,863
Total staff costs, including directors’ BITNAEEE - B
emoluments (see Note 16) EEM2(RKIE16) 1,545,454
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

16. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 16. EEREE#ME

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve ENSEMNTR(ZEENE  +—F)
(2008: eleven) Directors were as follows: BEEzME0T

Fegs 63
Other emolmerts Eftie
Sores and oer bt 4 R0
Contoufons oretrement ~ RETEH
berefs scheme {5
Peromanc reted Bz
incenie payment o)~ 218 (i)

Totd emduments feag

Fess s - - - - - - - 480 180 180 480 1320
Other emoluments: Hfps -
Stiesandoterbenefts  BEREMET 2606 229 M6 241 6% 208 03 - - - - et
Conrbufons foreffement  Rfi7ETIE
benefts scheme e 102 89 % % 108 8 R - - - - 604
Peromance reated Ik5E%E
inognfive payment (Note )~ 5UB (Fetii) 17000 9500 9500 9M0 8300 850 16% - 140 0 - B

Total emoluments aeg 19708 11888 1 1203 1128 0717 238 0 30 20 280 8129
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

16.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 16. EERES#Me =)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Notes: BfeE -
0} Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert was appointed on 27 February 0] RELEEN_TTNF_A-++HAEZ
2009. T
(ii) Mr. Cheng Ming Fun, Paul resigned on 27 February 2009. (ii) WEANEER_TENF_A-THHEHE -
(iii) The performance related incentive payment is determined with (iii TERIRBREERFIE2EZMEFEZE
reference to the operating results, individual performance and L AARBRIEBETISEEMET -
comparable market statistics during both years.
No Directors had waived any emoluments during the WMEEENHE_ZZNER-_STTNEF
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 and the five TZA=+—BLEFEREEMME - K
highest paid individuals in the Group for the year ended ERNEE_ZEEZAFt+_A=1t—H1t
31 December 2009 included four (2008: four) directors. FERAERSFATENE(ZZEENEF :
NE)RESE °
The emoluments of the remaining one (2008: one) BT—EZALT(ZEZENE: —F) 282
individual were as follows: N
2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET AT
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 2,300
Contributions to retirement IR FFT BIEE TR
benefits scheme 99
Performance related incentive TERIRER) A
payments 9,500
11,899

During both years, no emoluments were paid to or
receivable by the Directors or the Group’s five highest
paid individuals, including Directors, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

RAEFER  EFHAEELERHZSH
AT (BRERES) B C Yk 8 U7 B
& (FRREIRE N RN S 2 8
BYSIERBER 2 1B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = Mzt

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

17. DIVIDENDS 17.

Dividends declared and paid EERRIKERE

xR

Interim dividend for 2009 of —ETNFREBREER
HK30 cents (2008: HK40 cents) T30 (L
per ordinary share (ZZTZT N\ : 405810) 337,247
Final dividend for 2008 of HK30 cents ~ —Z % )\ & R HA B AL
(2008: final dividend for 2007 of T BAR30E(L
HK70 cents) per ordinary share (ZBENF : ZBZF
FREARE B 70840) 586,669
Additional dividend paid in respect of AR HLEBE RS
the previous period as a result of B sR R BB THIR D
new shares issued subsequent matBEHARIRE 2
to the approval of the previous FEIMRE
period’s consolidated
financial statements 3,514
927,430
Dividend proposed EERE
Proposed final dividend for 2009 of EE_ETZNFERY
HK45 cents (2008: HK30 cents) 1% B AR 45811
per ordinary share (ZZEZENF : 307L) 253,422

The final dividend of HK45 cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2009 has been
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 # % —EE L F+ - H=+—HI F/ZF

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. HEREF
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per KN BEA AFEG IR E AR 58 & F)i%
share attributable to the owners of the Company are THEUEETE -
based on the following data:
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHT
Earnings for the purpose of FTESREAREE
calculating basic and &Rz &7
diluted earnings per share 2,396,030 1,705,850

Number of shares

RHEE

2009 2008

—ZThE T N\F
Weighted average number of AESRERRFZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of AR ANRE

calculating basic earnings per share 844,465,583 841,810,349

Add: Effect of dilutive potential ik AAFEST

ordinary shares relating to MARITEZ
outstanding share options 1B iR i
issued by the Company ExzBE
EEE R

2 EER 7,329,438 16,995,886
Weighted average number of STEOREERN
ordinary shares for the purpose of A IR R

calculating diluted earnings per share 851,795,021 858,806,235

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for each
of the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 does
not take into account the outstanding share options of a
non wholly-owned subsidiary, Elec & Eltek International
Company Limited (“EEIC”), as the exercise prices of the
outstanding share options of EEIC were higher than the
average market price during both years.

REE2_ZEZN \F+-A=+—HIEE=
ETEHEF-_A=+—HIFEER &
EREERNNEREERIEEERFNE
NEl— KA REEEBRAG([EEIC])Z
MARITEZEBEBRE AZMTFEEL
B 21T (B - A8 ERD NS FY
(EV=T=00

2009 2008
ZEThE —ZEENF
Additional information on TSR
adjusted earnings per share: MnERt
Basic HAR HK$2.65185c  HK$2.499/87T
Diluted e HK$2.629#7  HK$2.44978 T

Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 129

STTHAEFR RN IEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 18. EBEREF »)
Additional information on basic and diluted adjusted BRIGABRERNREERF 2 M INER T
earnings per share figures have also been presented, AR BHEE AR ZRF R MR EMA
based on the profit for the year attributable to the owners JERE T E MIERINEY) - sEAMtE M
of the Company add/less any non-recurring items, which ™
are calculated as follows:

Profit for the year attributable to PAVNEIESFEDN L)
the owners of the Company REEHF 1,705,850
Non-recurring items: JEEFEIHIEE -
Less: Gain on disposal of partial BE - HEMBAREMS
interests in subsidiaries ez 2 Wiz -
Less: Gain on disposal of subsidiaries iz : HENERR]
2 Was -
Less: Discount on acquisition of W BB AR
additional interests in IMER 2
subsidiaries i | (83,711)
Add: Discount on acquisition of mE - PEREEZ
additional interests in Uk BRI B A )
subsidiaries shared by ERIMER 2
minority shareholders ¥riE -
Less: Discount on acquisition of Wk ERB AR
subsidiaries g (11,395)
Add: Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 1.k : HEKHBARZ
E518 -
Add: Impairment loss on ek AIHEERES
available-for-sale investments RIEEE 253,158
Less: Impairment loss on Wk DERREETE 2
available-for-sale investments AL ERE
shared by minority shareholders ZRIEEBE -
Add: Loss on disposal of convertible nE - HEATRERES
bond and interest in & —FEE
an associate AR EE 189,697
Earnings for the purpose of SRR AREARNES
calculating basic and diluted ARz B
adjusted earnings per share 2,103,599

RS ERAZY BN ESREAR R #
SBAENZ D EER -

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. KBEYXE
HK$’000
T
FAIR VALUE DY¥E
At 1 January 2008 RZZFZNF—H—H 1,197,952
Exchange adjustments Ve 5% 67,363
Additions NE 360,302
Transfer from properties, B - WEREE
plant and equipment (Note i) (B i) 54,811
Increase in fair value NEER N 5,992
Disposals L (359,255)
At 31 December 2008 and RZEZENF+=A=+—H
1 January 2009 MEZZETNF—H—H 1,327,165
Exchange adjustments I H 1,991
Additions B 7,460
Transfer from properties, B - WE REE
plant and equipment (Note ii) (B &) 35,396
Increase in fair value NEER N 51,425
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+_A=+—H 1,423,437

Notes:

0] The fair value of the properties transferred from properties, plant
and equipment at the dates of transfer for the year ended 31
December 2008 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that day by Messrs. Chung, Chan & Associates,
independent qualified valuers not connected to the Group.

(ii) The fair value of the properties transferred from properties, plant
and equipment at the dates of transfer for the year ended 31
December 2009 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that day by Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified valuers not connected to the Group.

GEE

(i

HE_ZTN\FT_A=+—HLLFE %%
HEAYME  BEREREZMERSREARZ
RVAE - TyREAR B EEE 2 B A A
HEMEETIZ ETHEZ EEE -

HE_ZTAFT-_A=+—HLFE %%
HEAME  BERREZMERSEARZ
RVAE - TyREAR B EEE 2 B A A
AHEMHMBEFEERARNZRETHE
2 BAEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 B &3k = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - HA=1+—HIF F/ZE

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2009 had been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. BMI
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited
are members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2008 had been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. Chung,
Chan & Associates, independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Messrs. Chung, Chan
& Associates are members of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

19.

BrEYME )
AEEBRBEYER_STAFE+ A
S+ — B2 AT R AR W RS
B ABREEMPANSETEERA
AR B ITIEE Y EEER - hRIES
SEERARAESIEBMEERE - 2
RIEERERUMEXHBEZ TSR
BET -

FEBREMER_ZZENF+ A
=+ —RZAFEDREREEL EEE
2B AERGEMEEITNZBETH
BZEEER - BETAEBEEFTKFA
BHMEEEE - RRMBEDNZEELUME
RPBEZTSEREE

AEERRRESHERELRELS
MOBEZEMEED  BAAAFE
BAFE - YD ERINEREYE -

A EFTRREYEREERE -

2009 2008
ZSThF ZETENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Property interests situated in BT HNNESFAE
Hong Kong under: 2R
Medium-term lease HRHATE D 5,600 3,840
Property interests situated outside B TBIBA R BB
Hong Kong under: EHE 2 ERER
Medium-term lease FRERFE 49 1,387,037 1,297,600
Long lease REFAEL 30,800 25,725
1,417,837 1,323,325
1,423,437 1,327,165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

20. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20. Y% - BEREE

COsT

At1 January 2008

Exchange adjustments

Addtions

Acquired from acquisition
of subsidlaries (Note 37)

Disposals and write off

Transferred to investment
properties (Note)
Reclassifications

At 31 December 2008 and
1 January 2009

Exchange adjustments

Addtions

Acquired from acquisition of
Subsidiaries (Note 37)

Disposals and write off

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) (HEMEA (12138 -

Transferred to investment
properties (Note)
Reclassffications

At 31 December 2009

A

RZFZNE-F-R 63164 2562730 312100 12368303 318402 143268 2477748 18245724

EinE p426) 76384 3447 T8 18241 6482 251216 940725

T - - 5T G814 3B4S4 286663 3785545

WENBLAMER

(HizEar) - - - BT 41,166 122 199589 338786

HERKH - - (3504) (143799)  (8881)  (12214) - (168.288)

B R e

(fzE) - [0106) - - - - - [0108)

EtpL - 288 856 330258 103207 - (3636,589) -

RZZE\ET2A

“+-BR-TENE

-f-B 60738 279125 304766 16892510 507748 306742 2118627 23072386

Ei A% 8 4,438 88 268% 807 488 3369 3677

T - 5811 19028 883445 708 9383 1711307 2635976

WENBLAMER

(Mzar) - - - 673445 109460 2,965 - 78810

HERKH - - [0008) (344083)  (82262)  (24580) - (431,083)
- - [espt2)  (1714)  (3849) - 469,175)

E L T

(M) - [3354) - - - - - (3354)

58 - 1312 3950 1741238 191,601 - [048,110) -

RZEENETA

=t-B 60826 287971 398173 10400852  7TI26T2 291119 1785193 25507106
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

20.

134

EMBHEMETE

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. 1% - BERRE =)

(continued)
Properties,
Furniture, plant and
Leasehold fixtures equipment
Freehold  Buildings  improve- and Trans- under
[ands for ments  Plantand equipment  portation construction
XA ownuse %  machinery BH>  equipment ZERYE- Total
EEr  RRET  NEEE HREREE KERRE ERRG EERRE fit
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
Thn Thn Thn T Thn Thn Tén Thn
DEPRECIATION AND HERHE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2008 RZTE)\E-F-4 - 312,008 103,089 3,895,680 106,617 76,591 - 449298
Bxchange adjusiments EHBE - 9,288 M50 184732 7,015 553 - 283
Provided for the year TEERE - 56,273 39,523 1,408,384 58,916 26,552 - 1,580,648
Elminated on disposals R R
and wite off - - {BBY) (102864)  [(314) (7.284) - (116846
At31 December 2008and N =EE\E+-F
1 January 2009 ZT-ARZETNE
-A-H - 377,569 152,779 5,386,132 166,234 101,394 - 6,184,108
Bxchange adjustments ERRE - 600 243 8,564 %64 161 - 9,832
Provided for the year TERRE - 57,101 45390 1,621,158 62,124 26,552 - 1811320
Eliminated on disposals it ER R
and wite off - - (19855) (199742)  (18829)  (4241) - (p42667)
Eliminated on disposal HENBAREE
of subsidiaries (Note 38) (Mizr3s) - - - 8251) (555) (426) - (0232)
Elminated on transfer to BREIENER
investment properties i
(Note) (M) - B - - - - - B
At 31 December 2009 RZFENEFTZA
=+-A - 431,542 178557 6,807,856 209,238 122,440 - 7,749,633
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2009 RZFENFTZA
=t+-A 60826 2,447,729 219,616 12,601,99 563,434 168,679 1,785,193 17,847,473
At 31 December 2008 RZFEN\F+2A
=t-A 60,738 2,413,680 241,987 11,506,378 341,514 205,348 2,118,627 16,888,278
Note:  During the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009, the Wizt : HEZZTZN\FR-ZTNF+-A=+—-HIFE "

Group changed the use of certain of its leasehold properties
and rented them out to independent third parties for rental

income. When there was a change in use, upon the transfer from

properties, plant and equipment to investment properties, these
properties were revalued at fair value with a gain on revaluation
of approximately HK$5,579,000 (2008: HK$4,705,000), which

has been credited to the property revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

20.

21.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20.

(continued)

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s freehold lands of
HK$60,826,000 (2008: HK$60,738,000) are situated
outside Hong Kong.

The above items of properties, plant and equipment
other than those under construction are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold lands Nil

Buildings for own use Over the remaining unexpired terms
of leases or fifty years, whichever is
the shorter

Leasehold improvements  Over shorter of lease terms or

10-20%
Plant and machinery 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10-33"/5%

equipment
Transportation equipment 10% - 20%

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21.

All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid for
medium term leasehold land outside Hong Kong.

Mk  BERRW =)

R_ETZhE+-_A=+—8 K&
H#%60,826,0008 L (Z T T )\ 4F :
60,738,000/ 7T ) Sk A ERE L HI T A BB IR
§|\ °

BAERDE  BERRES - L
RS SR 7R A A AR B T HU S b
EEIRITE

SKAERELH RE

BREF RRBRAANFIGRARTT
B EF Bk 504F (LA
BRERYE)

LR AT HIS
10 — 20% (LAERE
EHRZE)

10 - 20%

10 - 33':%

S
BB K 2%

R REBRRME
10% - 20%
HRfTHERKRER

AEEZENEEFIRGAEEAINE
Btz EIEA AN FOE

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEESHWT -
Current assets MBNEE 22,667 32,103
Non-current assets FEMBEE 933,230 1,499,021
955,897 1,631,124
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)
Movements of prepaid lease payments are as follows:

21. WFHEERE =)
BNEERES M -

HK$’000
FAT
At 1 January 2008 RZFEZNF—H—H 1,293,156
Exchange adjustments Ve 5% 69,806
Additions B 61,622
Acquired from acquisition of Wz B BT /BB B T ZEEX
subsidiaries (Note 37) (B5£37) 133,403
Charge for the year REE T (26,863)
At 31 December 2008 and RZEZENFE+_A=+—HK
1 January 2009 —ETZNF—F—H 1,631,124
Exchange adjustments [E H 2,297
Additions NE 21,824
Acquired from acquisition of U BB BT /8 2 B M & BN
a subsidiary (Note 37) (MF7%37) 28,300
Transfer to properties held for EEEFEHEYE(FEE30)
development (Note 30) (Note) (Bisx) (538,144)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) L ETE AR (MiFE38) (69,457)
Charge for the year REETH (20,047)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZTAF+A=+—H 955,897
Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group changed e : BEZTTAFT-_A=+—ALFE &%

BB R ER— B TR ER - B S
AmALE - Al RERGENEERE
538,144,000/ TER ERFEEWE -

its intention to develop a parcel of lands in the PRC for sale
purpose rather than for own use. As a result, the prepaid lease
payments of HK$538,144,000 was transferred to properties held
for development during the year.

The lease term over which the prepaid lease payments TE T EFIBIEN T 354 E50F TS H
are amortised ranged from 35 years to 50 years. By o
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22,

GOODWILL 22, &8
HK$'000
FET
CARRYING VALUE FREE
At 1 January 2008 and RZZFZNEF—H—BK
31 December 2008 ZEEN\F+ZA=1—H 2,005,658
Avrising on acquisition of W iE — IR B A Rl EE A
a subsidiary (Note 37) (FF5E37) 179,849
Arising on acquisition of additional I BEM B A B IME R M A
interests in subsidiaries 102,642
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZENF+-_A=+—H 2,288,149

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill
arising from acquisition of subsidiaries are disclosed as
follows:

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to the cash generating units (“CGU”) of
laminates, PCBs and chemicals business segments. The
carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to the CGUs of
laminates, PCBs and chemicals business segments are
approximately HK$390,781,000 (2008: HK$288,139,000),
HK$1,717,519,000 (2008: HK$1,717,519,000) and
HK$179,849,000 (2008: nil), respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the laminates’, PCBs’ and
chemicals’ CGUs have been determined from value-
in-use calculation. Goodwill is expected to generate
cash flow for indefinite period. To calculate this, cash
flow projections are based on five year periods financial
budgets approved by senior management.

BRI B AR TES 2 BB ZRIER
AFBWENT

BAEARNE  AEESRETERE
R EDRIGEBER R IEREBD 2
ReEFBN([REEESBM]) - HED
FEMEIR - EIRIARE R Rt TEMZE
BoBrReEEEU HEREED
Bl 49 /390,781,000 L ( Z T T\ F :
288,139,000 /& 7T ) -~ 1,717,519,000 &
TL(ZZTZ)\HF 1 1,717,519,000% 7T.) &
179,849,000 TL(ZZT)\F : )8H) °

BRER - BIRGBRREMETER RS
EAERMZ AT E S BIREREEFEA
EBE - RHRERERPELRERE -
RETEEREE ReRE8RANES
EEEMHLE AEMPBIEE REE -
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22,

23.

GOODWILL (continued)

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations for
the CGUs of laminates, PCBs and chemicals business
segments are as follows:

Laminates

BRER
2009 2008

22, w8
BIRER - DRGBR M IERBSE
KB EE SR TREENT

PCBs Chemicals
EN Rl R BE AR {tIES
2009 2008 2009 2008

ZRERAE “TT\F ZBBNE —TT/)\F ZBBNE _TT)N\F

Discount rate IRE 13% 13%
Growth rate HEX 5% 5%

The key assumptions are determined based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industries. The cash
flow beyond the five year period are extrapolated using
zero growth rate.

Since the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
is higher than its carrying amount, the Directors consider
that the carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period is not impaired.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

12% 12% 15% N/ATiERH
4% 4% 4% N/ATEA

TEBRRDBAZEUBERBEREREY
ML ERZMEET A TBEMBRETE
FHEREEEE - BBLFHR RSN
BRTHERMHE

MR REEA BN 2 ATRESER R ER
HE REERAR RESHRBRAZ
P ERREEY & IREARE

23. MBELTZHRE

2009 2008
—EERE —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Cost of investments in associates: B A R Z IR BB
Unlisted in the PRC R EZE EH 211,230 431,089
Share of post-acquisition profits and FERURBE 18 5% R S E Ath
other comprehensive income, net of 2AEWE(IRE
dividends received Uz 2.) 287,089 255,044
498,319 686,133
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. RBEALARIZESE 2)

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had interests R-EENFN _BEENF+_A=1+—
in the following associates: A - AEBEHEE TS QR

CNOOC Kingboard Incorporated PRC PRC 40%  Manufacture and
Chemical Limited AL H H distribution of
HERERECIERAF! methanol
SERDETE
I AE IR EBIR AR Incorporated PRC PRC 49%  Coal mining and
FEaliav F H distribution of
coals
BREARRAH
ERILIBM)EBATF  Incorporated  PRC PRC 25%  Refining and
([BRT) AL F F distribution of
chemicals
RERSHEIER
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of # WEATTIARINEEE SR ERAEREK
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures. vl
* & 2/t T became a non wholly-owned subsidiary during the year * BREINEBE_ZTNF+-A=1+—81
ended 31 December 2009. FERARIEERBHMBARR -
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group HE_ZTNF+-_A=1T—BLFE "
acquired a further 51% equity interest in &/t from REBNUREIBTEBYE=TE—PK
an independent third party at a consideration of HK$1. BERIEISI%RE - BRI AERR
E &L has become a 76% owned subsidiary of the AEET6% 2B AR - WHEFBEHNNW
Company. Details of the acquisition are set out in Note *37(0) °
37(b).
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23.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 1
February 2008, the Group sold its entire holding of
740,518,325 ordinary shares in an associate, G-Prop,
to Mass Rise Limited, an independent third party
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, at a consideration of approximately
HK$120,777,000 and resulted in a loss on disposal of
interest in an associate of approximately HK$6,779,000
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
also established an associate, namely |LFE4 88
SEIR A B AT], in the PRC with capital injection of
approximately HK$29,907,000.

Included in the cost of investments in associates at
31 December 2008 was goodwill of approximately
HK$147,087,000 (2009: nil) arising on acquisition of & &
{t I, the Group’s associate. The movement of goodwill is
set out below:

23.

RBBLATRZRE 2
BE—HABA-ZTN\F-_A—HZE
B - AN BB R(EX120,777,000
ELTREE - BBREQRASEDN
740,518,325 LB R 2 HE 45 —H
BUE=FRRESERAT(REAE
MZEABXEE HE2EBEMNER
B BEHZE-_TZTN\F+-A=+—8
LHFEHBSHE—HBEARERZBE
#6,779,000/8 7T °

HE_ZTN\E+_A=+—HILFE "
REBIFRPEY —HBE QR
THREEREARAA TAERH
29,907,000/ T °

R-EBENE+-A=+—0 RB®E
B2 %A BN B T8 IR S AN S B Bt 2 R R
AL T3l H#E 2 P2 49147,087,0005% 7T (

>

HK$’000

T

At 1 January 2008 RZZFETZNF—H—H 152,820

Eliminated on disposal of an associate & —REH#AS A F)E 3T 44 (6,733)
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEZNEF+_A=+—HK

1 January 2009 —EENF—H—H 147,087

Transfer to goodwill of a subsidiary SR E B AR 2 HE (147,087)

At 31 December 2009 R-ZFTNF+-_A=1+—H -

140 Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

“EENEFR RELTEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. MREELRZRE 2
The summarised financial information in respect of the REFRENT 2 HEERM T ¢
Group’s associates is set out below:

Total assets BERE 3,124,950

Total liabilities BERE (1,736,823)
Net assets BEFE 1,388,127
Group’s share of net assets of AEEELEE QR
associates BESE 539,046
Revenue (Notes a & b) ZEE (Mikakb) 2,219,707
Profit for the year (Notes a & b) NEEa I (M sEakb) 862,899
Other comprehensive income REEEMEEKE
for the year (Notes a & b) (MfzraRb) 61,042
Group’s share of profits of associates A= E EERES AT AEE
for the year (Notes a & b) 2 (i Erakb) 369,807
Group’s share of other comprehensive 78 &= & el 4 A BI ARG E
income of associates for the year Z Btz mEikes
(Notes a & b) (M Eakb) 22,980
Notes: B 5 -
(@) The amounts in 2009 included the revenue, loss and other (@ REIEENF2ZELHERERMCIA=Z
comprehensive income of & &1t T for the period from 1 January TNF-—R—BEREE-ZTThE+=A
2009 to the date of which & /& {t L ceased to be an associate =+ —BHIEFERNTHARE LA B HR
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2009. ZEERE - BEREMEERE -
(o) The amounts in 2008 included the revenue, profit and other (0) RZZTN\FZZEEEEECEA-_TZN
comprehensive income of G-Prop for the period from 1 January F-A—HBESERBE-ZZN\F+=A
2008 to the date of which G-Prop ceased to be an associate of =T —HIEFERNTHAARSEHE AR HRH
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2008. ZERE  RAREMEE RS o
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24, TWHHERSH

Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHEERE BRI
2009 2008
—EEhE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE 2 BARES 566,912 759,923
Equity securities listed in United States ~ AZER i~ R A E 5 619,632 -
1,186,544 759,923
Unlisted equity investments I ETRAKE 20,325 20,325
Total &5t 1,206,369 780,248

At the end of the reporting period, all listed available-
for-sale investments are stated at fair value. Fair values
of those listed investments have been determined by
reference to bid prices quoted in active markets. The
unlisted equity investments are stated at cost as their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

The above unlisted investments represent (i) 10% equity
interest in an unlisted private entity established in the
PRC which is engaged in hotel operation; and (i) 5%
equity interest in an unlisted private entity established
in the PRC which is engaged in property development.
They are measured at cost less impairment at the end
of the reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors are
of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.
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24.

25.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24, nJ#tH&&E 2

(continued)
Included in available-for-sale investments are the following AHEEREBRETYIAERETEHE
amounts denominated in a currency other than the EE S AINE B HE 2 7058

functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate:

us$

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. RiFIEHEEZzER
ENTITIES

HEEHERZ

Cost of unlisted investment in jointly

controlled entities FELETIREKA 15,953
Share of post-acquisition losses JE(L U EE 1 B 1R (23,740)
(7,787)

Amounts due from jointly controlled FEUR R B B8
entities (Note) FIE () 18,222
10,435

Note:  The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, MisE . ERHREGIEEREAEER 28 A
interest-free, with no fixed repayment terms and are not B @RE - BENT RIS RER -

repayable in the foreseeable future.
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25. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. REFERFERREZER 2

ENTITIES (continued)

Included in the cost of investment in jointly controlled RNEFEIES TR ENABERTEEK
entities is goodwill of approximately HK$10,943,000 B AL A4 ) E RS P A 4 A 84910,943,000
(2008: HK$10,943,000) arising on the acquisition of BT (—ZE )\ 1 10,943,000/ 7T) 2 @
jointly controlled entities in prior years. The movement of = o FE s EhE YN

goodwill is set out below:

CARRYING VALUE REE
At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 MN-_ZZNF—H—H -
and 31 December 2009 —EENF+_A=F+—HK
—EENF+=ZA=1+—H 10,943

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had interests RIBENER_TENF+_A=+—
in the following significant jointly controlled entities: B AEERTIEARFEHEEES
RS

50%  Manufacture and sale
of optical discs

Concord Madern Technology  Incorporated ~ Hong Kong
Limited Faizan Bh

RENEARAR BERAHRR
Full Summit Development Incorporated  Hong Kong 50%  Manufacture and sale
Limited Rl BE of optical discs

BEYRERAR BERAHRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
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INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. pPiHREZFISEZES 2
ENTITIES (continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the LAREZES IR 2 AN B 2 SRR E AR AE
Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities which are wZ B E R AT
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:
2009 2008
—EZhE —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Total assets EERE 24,571 33,742
Total liabilities BERR (45,626) (62,472)
Net liabilities BEFE (21,055) (18,730)
Group’s share of net liabilities of NS B PR G R
jointly controlled entities ERBETE (21,055) (18,730)
Revenue L 25,996 27,040
Loss for the year REEEE (2,325) (3,849)
Other comprehensive income AFEREHMEEKE
for the year = -
Group’s share of loss of jointly AREE R R
controlled entities for the year EHIEEAFE Z EE (2,325) (3,849)
Group’s share of other comprehensive — ZN£= B e {5 + B 5 4 = 52
income of jointly controlled entities REE 2 Bfth 2 E W
for the year = -
NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 26. JERBDITE

Non-current deposits represent deposits paid for the
acquisition of properties, plant and equipment and
investment properties, and the deposits will not be
realised within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the amounts were included
in the non-current assets. The deposits can only be
refundable to the Group when the suppliers fail to deliver
the assets to the Group within the timeframe as agreed
with the Group. The Directors expected that the assets
will be delivered to the Group within the next two years.

FRBIHEABEME - BELREN
REBREMEEXNZAE - REFT2HER
EHIRE AR A RBET12(A 8 AT LR -
b RERBEAAFARBDEE - ZFF &
RAEHER AR BAKE T M FRH
AREEXN TAKEE - S RME - &
=R ZFEESRARMFARMN T
AEE -
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27. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 27. EERE
Mining Know-how
right fee Total
RIERE SEABRE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET
COST R
At 1 January 2008 RZEZENEFE—H—H 724,086 3,475 727,561
Exchange adjustments b AR 44,747 - 44,747
Additions NE - 261 261
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEENF+_A=+—H
1 January 2009 E—ZEZNF—HA—H 768,833 3,736 772,569
Exchange adjustments [E 5 7% 698 6 704
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—MKBAT
(Note 38) (M45E38) (769,531) - (769,531)
Disposals s - (137) (137)
At 31 December 2009 RN-EFNE+-_A=1+—8H - 3,605 3,605
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2008 RZZZENF—HA—H - 1,677 1,677
Charge for the year AEESH - 750 750
At 31 December 2008 and HR—ZZN\F+_HA=+—H
1 January 2009 rZZETNF—H—H - 2,427 2,427
Exchange adjustments FE 5 2 - 5 5
Charge for the year REEXH - 688 688
Eliminated on disposals e RS - (187) (137)
At 31 December 2009 RN-EFNE+-_A=1+—8H - 2,983 2,983
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNF+=—A=1+—8 - 622 622
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZN\F+_HA=+—H 768,833 1,309 770,142
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 27. EWEE &)
Mining right has finite useful life of 40 years and is Wi B ErFBFEA40F  FHEE
amortised using the units of production method over the {37 4 R AR R B 48 HR B % 2 4993,000,000
total proven reserves of the coal mines of approximately WEEESY c BE-_TENER_EENE
93 million tonnes. No amortisation of mining right was +TZA=+—HILFE r ARERIDARE
provided during the years ended 31 December 2009 and EZr o WARMABEERRK - R EEE
2008 as the coal mining site was still under construction T THSY
and no production of coal has been commenced.
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group REBEE-_ZTTAE+_A=1+—HItHE
disposed of its mining right through disposal of a B AKBEEEREE—BHBAR ML
subsidiary. Details of the disposal are set out in Note EREE - HEFIBHNMESS(@) ©
38(a).
Know-how was acquired from third parties, has finite useful ME=ZAFWEZEX£NHAEETAFERF
life and is amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years. B WIRERERRTF AR -
INVENTORIES 28. &®
2009 2008
—EZhEF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Raw materials R 2,438,652 1,744,933
Work in progress sl 721,430 594,830
Finished goods R o 294,623 221,571
3,454,705 2,561,334
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. HtMHEHEE

Trade and other receivables and prepayments and
bills receivables

BERAMBUIRS  ANRERERREE

2009 2008

—EZhE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade receivables E S MR 4,400,602 3,985,533
Other receivables and prepayments E b e BR sk R TET IR 1,845,180 1,004,784
6,245,782 4,990,317

Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 147

STTHAEFR RN IEE



#-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 29.
The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days,
depending on the products sold, to its trade customers.

Rttt RE )

AEEGTESEPZEEHRZRR120
H - REFEENEMME o KRS
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at HEREIL BIEUEERZEHE I ITOT

the end of the reporting period:

148

2009 2008
—EBNF  —TTN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THET

0-90 days 0Z90H 3,719,464 2,788,189
91 - 180 days 91%=180H 621,029 1,138,520
Over 180 days 180H A 60,109 58,824
4,400,602 3,985,533

All bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days
at the end of the reporting period.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors
has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for any
customers. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed every year. 91% (2008: 87%) of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
the best credit scoring attributable under the credit
grading system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$405,141,000 (2008: HK$512,083,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss as the Group
considers that these debtors are financially stable and the
management has taken action to recover the outstanding
balances. The Directors are confident that these amounts
are still recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 131 days (2008: 134 days).
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

20. HMIMBEEE =

RBEHEHERER  AEEREZE
SRR 2 BREe DTN T

2009 2008

—EBNF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT T

91 — 120 days 91&120H 122,590 202,112
121 - 150 days 1212150H 168,771 191,019
151 — 180 days 1512180H 53,671 60,128
Over 180 days 180H A L 60,109 58,824
405,141 512,083

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
past due beyond 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables are generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables between 120 and 240
days are made based on estimated irrecoverable amounts
by reference to past default experience and objective
evidences of impairment determined by the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of
the estimate future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivables since the credit was granted and up to
the end of the reporting period. The Directors considered
that the Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

B RBENAEI2408 A -2 FEUERR—
MR E - AR EEHZEREERERSE
HIEL B - BRERN T 12022408 2B 5
EURBR R 2 B - IR ERARREHE
RGBS EAER]  HEZE
HEERREREAERARE BRI R
HErABREeRERER 2 Z58ETH -

EETEZRBGRR 2 I REEER - 5%
ERRLEEEERSHRERAL A
SEERESREERERERZEMNE
B-EEZRR RUEFPME AKBEAE
EXERERERR  BRBZERZS7T R
BEPOH -
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 29. HtIM¥EEE
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIBREEFEZEE

Balance at the beginning of the year FYEH 320,615
Impairment losses recognised on EREI R Z
receivables B R 40,474
Amounts written off as uncollectible EE TR U B 2 FRIE (2,683)
Balance at the end of the year FERER 358,406
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are REREFESERENDREZE S EYNER
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate R BEERRR410,841,0008 T (ZEEN
balance of HK$410,841,000 (2008: HK$358,406,000) F : 358,406,000/ 7T) © ZEHEABR
which have either been placed under liquidation or SR EIET 2508 - AEBRZELE
in financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any BRI A A (R o
collateral over these balances.
Included in trade and other receivables and bills E 5 REAM WA TR KERREBE T
receivables are the following amounts denominated in a NEEEREBBANEEEUIINEETEZ

currency other than the functional currency of the group SRER

entities to which they relate:
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29.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. At 31 December 2009,
the bank balances and deposits carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rate which range from 0.01% to
3.70% (2008: 0.01% to 7.33%) per annum.

Included in bank balances and cash are pledged bank
deposits of HK$105,622,000 (2008: nil) at 31 December
2009 which are pledged to banks to secure short-term
banking facilities of the Group.

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had bank
balances and cash that were either not freely convertible
or were subject to exchange controls in the PRC,
amounting to approximately HK$2,980.7 million and
HK$1,723.5 million, respectively.

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

29.

HtMBEEE»

BITEBRRS
FIRBERS BRI EEBEZHER
BRHAA=EARU T2 RBRTR
HoR-ZBTAE+-_A=+—R 8§77
G R RIRBTTISE R E N F0.01E
23 70B(ZZFZNF : N T0.01EE7.33
E)ite .

R-ZBZEAF+-_A=+—8  Bi7&#%
NI & BIEE E MR TIF5£105,622,000%
TLZETNGF  8A) ZECERRITE
ROMBTER - MERAEEKEHRITR
BWERS -

RIBZNERZZENF+_A=+—
B REBETAEHERLATFEIME
EHFRR 2 RITERER DO R
2,980,700,0007 7T} 1,723,500,000/ 7T ©

RITER LIRS BRETIIASEE LA
ZNBEE B IASNE B ETHEZ R ¢

relate:
2009 2008
—EBEAF —ZEENF
Amount Amount
x| TR
’000 ’000
T T
us$ T 125,833 146,956
Euro BT 6,694 5,717
JPY H 7,348 1,518
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

30. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 30. HRERPE

2009 2008
—EERE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Carrying amount of properties held for — F2EWEKRMIE :
development:
Current assets RENEE 1,980,068 -
Non-current assets FEREBEE - 233,135
1,980,068 233,135
Movements of properties held for development are as FEERMELSOT
follows:
HK$’000
AT
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZTZN\F—H—H -
Additions NE 233,135
At 31 December 2008 and RZEENF+ZA=+—HEK
1 January 2009 “EENF—H—H 233,135
Exchange adjustments N 5 A2 350
Additions B 763,152
Acquired from acquisition of a subsidiary Y& — R F{ /8 A 7] EER
(Note 37) (F+5E37) 445,287
Transfer from prepaid lease payments EEEIBMNAERE
(Note 21) (KzE21) 538,144
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+_A=+—H 1,980,068
Properties held for development are situated in the PRC RZBZNEFERZZZNFF+_A=+—
with medium-term leases and are stated at cost at 31 A SEERMECAPEH - ZHPHBELOE
December 2009 and 2008. B WIRAKARFIER o
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group RZZEEZNFEFDBERARRDEE Z
completed the acquisition of the remaining pieces of lands 233,135,000 T E R X ENERNEN
in the PRC for property development and the properties DHERIENBDEE  AXEER_ZTTN
held for development of HK$233,135,000, which was F+ZA=1+—HILFEETHEEMR
classified as non-current assets at 31 December 2008, PRI T 2R EMERR A o

has been reclassified as current assets during the year.
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30. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 30. #&R¥Y% 2

(continued)

Properties held for development which are expected to FEHRA MG AR E BT AR K 121E
be recovered after next twelve months from the end of RelEzFERME BE2BARDE
the reporting period are classified as current assets as it is E BERAAGFLEEWERIRNAEBLES
expected to be realised in the Group’s normal operating IREIEEAR IR o BT IBETEH - R
cycle. The amount of properties held for development HM&RE BRI RR12E A ER -
classified as current assets that are expected by the YABEZZZENF+_A=+—HILF
management to be realised after next twelve months from ERHEARDEECHLEYESLEE
the end of the reporting period was HK$1,980,068,000 as 1,980,068,000/ 7T

at 31 December 2009.

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. fTE&mIR

Interest rate swap contracts FIEEEA Y
— derivatives under hedge — DR E RS R
accounting ZHETA - (136,961)
- derivatives not under hedge —WIERE ARG TE
accounting SIBRZATAET A - (1,428)
Commodity forward contracts HmEREY 2,454 -
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ JMNERE& 4 1,014 (512)

3,468 (138,901)

Analysed for reporting purposes as: L& AT ¢
Current e
Non-current EiE)

3,468 (1,940)
- (136961)

3,468 (138,901)
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31.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31.

(continued)

(a)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
flow hedges

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and
2008, the Group used interest rate swap contracts
(net quarterly settlement) to minimise its exposure
to certain cash flow changes of its floating-rate
Hong Kong dollar bank borrowings by swapping
floating interest rates to fixed interest rates. The
terms of these interest rate swap contracts were
negotiated to match with those of the hedged
bank borrowings (i.e. same notional amount of
the derivatives match with principal amounts of
bank borrowings, same currency and interest rate
index). The Directors consider that the interest
rate swap contracts are highly effective hedging
instruments and have designated them as cash
flows hedging instruments for hedge accounting
purpose.

During the year ended 31 December 2009,
the hedge was 97% to 115% (2008: 80% to
118%) effective in hedging cash flow exposure
to interest rate movements. Fair value losses of
HK$89,986,000 (2008: HK$144,780,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2009 have been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and are expected to be
released to the consolidated income statement
when the hedged interest expense was charged
to profit or loss quarterly.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, an
amount of approximately HK$95,026,000 (2008:
HK$16,717,000) reclassified from equity into profit
or loss was included in the finance costs in the
consolidated income statement (see Note 13).
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fTEemI A

(a)

RERBHPETRREREH

BE_TTNFR-_FTTNF1=
A=1+—HLLFE  AREEBE
FRERER  FMANXEREH
(BFFEEE)RERTRAELZ
BLTRITEEETHEREEH 2
R - %EH R A 82 IRE
B EERRITERE Z T2 IHK
Y& (Bl fTAET A2 m{EHER
TREZASEAR - BERFNE
EIRHER) - EFERRM TR
BRRBAER M TA XY
HERDAME  BERFLARR
ERELHPTH -

HE_ZTRF+_A=+—H
WEFE - R EZAE EER
BOWREREMS - HHPRIT%
Z15%BM(ZEENF : 80%
£118%) - HEZZTTNF+=
A=+ RALFERAFERBRA
89,986,000 ;L (Z T T )\ F ¢
144,780,000/ 70 ) 7 H A 2 E Y2 &5
R RN SR BT - TBHIE R F
B BTREENNBREREA
Was K EE -

BHE-_TTNAF+-A=+—HL
FE - —ERE495,026,00078 7T
—ZTZT)\4F : 16,717,000/ 7C) F
BnEBEEE  FFARERER
AREE KA (RHIEE13) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. §#fi£€@mTH »)
(continued)
(a) Interest rate swap contracts under cash (a) ReREHPETHNEREHED

flow hedges (continued) (#)

Included in bank borrowings as disclosed in Note RREEERBLLE - MIsE33ATH
33 were bank loans of HK$4,296,400,000 (2008: BUHRTEERER S TEY MIE
HK$5,166,700,000) which were under cash flow TER1TE 4,296,400,0005 7T ( —
hedges and the major terms of the interest rate ZZF)\F : 5,166,700,000/8 )
swap contracts under cash flow hedges at the M SRS R E LRI TR =5 H

end of the reporting period are as follows:

ARz EEETAT

Outstanding Notional Receive
contracts as at amount  Maturity floating Pay fixed
KU B Rk
HHzER EE HHA RS eSS
HK$°000
THET
31 December 2009 100,000  Within 1 year HIBOR 3.61%
“EENF+-A=t—H —FR EEROIAERFS  361E
1,946,400  Within 1 to 2 years HIBOR 2.34% t0 3.88%
—ZEWER ERRITAERS  2.34EZE3.88E
2,250,000  Within 2 to 3 years HIBOR 2.66% to 4.04%
ME=FA BEBRTRAERS 2.66EZ4.04E
31 December 2008 266,700  Within 1 to 2 years HIBOR 3.61%
—ZEEN\F+-A=t—H —ZWER EEROTRAERFRS  361E
2,800,000  Within 2 to 3 years HIBOR 2.37% t0 3.03%
ME=FA ERRITARRKS  2.37EZE3.03E
2,100,000  Within 3 to 4 years HIBOR 2.66% to 4.04%
=EMER BEBRTRERS 2.66EZ4.04E
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31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Interest rate swap contract not under cash
flow hedges

During the year ended 31 December 2008,
the cash flow hedges for an interest rate swap
contract did not qualify for hedge accounting.
As a result, a loss in fair value of that interest
rate swap contract amounting to approximately
HK$2,602,000 (2009: nil) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2008.

At 31 December 2008, major term of that contract
which did not qualify for hedge accounting under
cash flow hedges was as follows:

31. fT1&EemIA =

(b)

FREREBEFETRREREN

HE-_TTN\F+ZA=+—8H
IHFE - ORI EEHEHZHR
SRMEBHARTHFEEPGEE -
Bt ZEFERPEHOQFE
8518 492,602,000/ T ( ZZEZE N,
FORAREBE-_TTNF+=
A=+—RLFEZHEAEREERE

7
o ©

R-ZBNE+ZAZ+—R &
AHARSRELA T HR g
2 ANZZERRIT -

Outstanding Notional Receive
contracts as at amount  Maturity floating Pay fixed
KU B Rk
HEZAH EE HHA FE S FRES

HK$°000

THET

31 December 2008 300,000  Within 1 year HIBOR 3.40% t0 3.74%
—ZEN\F+-A=t—H —FR ERRITAXRFS  340EZR3.74E

At 31 December 2009, the Group did not have
outstanding interest rate swap contract not under
cash flow hedges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. #fT$€MTIT & &
(continued)
(¢) Commodity forward contracts not under (c) Wk AHAETHEINREARER

hedge accounting

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and
2008, the Group entered into commodity forward

contracts to hedge against part of the Group’s
exposure in copper price fluctuations. At the
respective maturity dates, the contracts are settled

net in cash with the issuers. The major terms
of the outstanding contracts at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

At 31 December 2009

Contract amount

‘K

BE_TTNFR-_FTTNF+=
A=1+—BILFE  AREFTTIH
mBEMAL - ABIR AR BAS
BRI ER - NEEHB -
FEBHEREIT AR SRR
B ZERNBEHHEERE BRA
Mz AN ERGTOT ¢

o

R=-ZFNF+=A=t+—H

aHeE
Currency Quantity Maturity Commodity forward price
&% HE EHA BmEE
Us$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 31 January 2010 Sell at US$6,574/metric tonne
= 500 A HE S —Z-ZF-R=+—H REANES,5TAETIEE
US$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 1 February 2010 Sell at US$6,613/metric tonne
% 5007 A —ZE-TF_H—H 5 ANE6,613E T E
US$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 1 February 2010 Sell at US$6,606/metric tonne
v 5002 MALH —E-TF-A—H G ANE6,606E T &
Us$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 1 February 2010 Sell at US$6,577/metric tonne
= 500 AHE S —T-ZF-A—H REANES,5TTETILE

At 31 December 2008 R-ZBENF+ZA=+—H
Contract amount
BHEE
Currency Quantity Maturity Commodity forward price
&% HE EHA BmELE
Us$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 3 March 2009 Sell at US$3,617/metric tonne
e 500 AHE S —ETAFE=A=R 1RGAME3,617TETLE

Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 157

STTHAEFR RN IEE



For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31.

(continued)

(d) Foreign currency forward contracts not
under hedge accounting
During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group entered into foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge against part of the Group’s
exposure in foreign currency fluctuations. At the
respective maturity dates, the contracts are settled
net in cash with the issuers. The major terms of
the outstanding contracts at 31 December 2008
were as follows:

At 31 December 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 B &R = MizE

fTEemI A

d) WU ETEIIRZIMEES

‘K
BE_TT/\F+t-_A=1+—HLt
FE - AEERFIUNERBEL
VA ST 7 55 B2 O SR B 2 #B 5)
b - REFEE - ZEELEE
TARBREFEEE - ZER =
ZZNFF+ZA=+—BHKRIH
ZERNZEBERMT

R-EEBN\E+=-A=+—H

Notional amount Maturity Forward contract rates
[l FHA BHANER

9 contracts to buy US$1,000,000 each Within 1 year US$1 to HK$7.710

N EHMEEE1,000,000E T2 6 4 —FR 122U H7.710%8 T

9 contracts to buy US$1,000,000 each Within 1 year US$1 to HK$7.695

N EHIEE,000,000E T2 A4 —FRX 12E 7T H.7.695% 70

9 contracts to sell US$2,000,000 each Within 1 year US$1 to HK$7.710

N &5 52,000,000 T2 4 4 —FR 1ETTHT7.71087T

9 contracts to sell US$2,000,000 each Within 1 year US$1 to HK$7.695

N EH HE2,000,000E T2 6 4 —FR 1370 4.7.69578 7T

At 31 December 2009, the Group did not have
outstanding foreign currency forward contract not
under hedge accounting.

The above derivatives were measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period by reference to the valuation
provided by counterparty financial institutions for these
instruments at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EZEANFE+ = H=—+—HIFZ

32.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 32. ¥SRHEMEMIESREMNEE
BILLS PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables at RESELERAIL  EFERNEZRZE
the end of the reporting period: AT

0-90 days 0-90H 1,084,914
91 - 180 days 91-180H 498,968
Over 180 days 180HIA L 165,795
1,749,677
All bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days at N PR A FE AT IR BR ) 5 SR B 4k
the end of the reporting period. FIEH0B T A o
Included in trade and other payables and bills payables Zo R H N RS ENEEaE T
are the following amounts denominated in currencies AE BT AL S AN E G
other than the functional currency of the group entities to -

which they relate:

46,157

JPY H 266,537
Euro BT 36,894
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. #HfTES

Bank loans RITER 9,030,123
Trust receipt loans EEUIEER 672,132
Bank overdrafts BITIEX 16
9,702,271
Carrying amounts repayable: AEEZRAE
On demand or within one year JEERKIN—FA 2,596,995
More than one year but not more —F LA BN EBEBERF
than two years 2,145,242
More than two years but not more MELA EERBB=F
than three years 2,504,083
More than three years but not more =FLA HETBBINF
than four years 2,187,835
More than four years but not more WMFELA BT BART
than five years 222,759
More than five years REM 45,357
7,105,276
Total &5t 9,702,271
The bank borrowings are unsecured and bear interest at RITEEAEER - WIRTISHET L -

market rates.

Included in the above bank borrowings are the fixed- RZZEZNF+_A=+—H ' L#liiR1T
rate bank borrowings of HK$101,646,000 (2008: EEREARRENRERE BT —F
HK$7,937,000) at 31 December 2009 which are W1E & 2 F 2 3R1T8 E101,646,000% 7T
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting (ZZZT)\F : 7,937,000/ 7T) ° FEEIRIT
period. The fixed-rate bank borrowings carry interest HEFEENT486EE7T25ETF(ZF
ranging from 4.86% to 7.25% (2008: 6.66%) per annum. ZN\F :6.66F) -
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33.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The rest of the bank borrowings are variable-
rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from
HIBOR+0.4% to HIBOR+2.0% (2008: HIBOR+0.4% to
HIBOR+2.0%) per annum.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank

borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rates IR F&
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional

currency of the group entities to which they relate:

33.

RMITEE )
BRTRITEERZEEE  FRENTE
FBIRTTRAZERBMN0.4BE BB RITRENR
BI20E(ZZTTN\F : HBRITRER
BEN04EZFBRITAZERFEM2.0E) T
% °

AEBRTEEZERNE(HERDAD
FF)GBELT -

6.66%

6.66/E2

2.25% 10 3.85%
2.25[2%3.85[2

RITEEREBETIASEER 2B
ERAINERHEZ 28
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 # & —ZEZ

34.

162 Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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DEFERRED TAXATION
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current

NEF=AEF—ALFEE

34. EIERIEA

TRBEABERERARTRSEPEAE T
RZEBEEHBRRE(BEE)ARES

and prior reporting periods: B
Undistributed
Accelerated Write-down ~ Revaluation profits of
tax Tax of of Hedging  an associate
depreciation losses inventories  properties instruments —FEEAT Total
NERERE  HHER  FEME  WRER HWIRE ZROREA ai
HKS'000 HKS000  HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000  HK$000 HK§ 000
TEL Th ThL ThIL ThL ThL Titn
At 1 January 2008 N-FFN\F-A-A 39,564 (9,303) (23,090 ) - - - (Al
Exchange agjusiments ERdE 2302 (437) - - - - 1,865
Acquistion of subsidaries YeENB LR - - - 9,858 - - 9853
Charge to consoldated inome REEGAUERY
stafement for the year (Note 14 Hib(H) 3,305 1,12 8480 2,64 - 9318 24,856
Effect of change intax rate Note 14) ~ REEEZF2(H14) - - 1021 - - - 1,021
Credit to equty for the year TARFEER - - - - (18,525) - (18525)
Released to consolicated income BOAFERANER
statement for the year - - - - 1,746 - 1,746
Utlised during the year KEEREA - - - - - 0318) [0318)
At 31 December 2008 and R-EEN\E+-A=1-H
1 January 2009 R-EEnE-F-A 15171 8628)  (13589) 12494 (16779) - 18,669
Exchange adustments ExiEE 8 12) - . - - 51
(Credi) charge to consolidated income  AFEHANERZ
statement fo the year (Nofe 14) (BE)Zim(HE) (3544) (3882) (159%) 1209 - 5,53 8,609
Credit o equiy for the year TARERER - - - - (1,099) - (1,099)
Released to consoldated income BOAFERANER
statement for the year - - - - 12,208 - 12,208
Utlised during the year KEECHA - - - - - (5,539) (5539)
At 31 December 2009 RoBRAETZAZT-A 460 (12522)  (15185) 2458 (156%0) - 299

For the purposes of the presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the

ETEEHBEERABRRESS BB
MKRETAEMELEE - U TRAZFR
TR SR BAEM IS R R R E

analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting DHT
purposes:

2009 2008
—EEAEF —ETN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIEBE 56,418 51,329
Deferred tax assets EEFHIBEE (33,499) (32,660)
22,919 18,669




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

34. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 34. BERE2)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries since 1
January 2008 amounting to HK$1,940,256,000 (2008:
HK$1,053,525,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2009, deferred tax assets of (i)
approximately HK$12,522,000 (2008: HK$8,628,000)
in relation to unused tax losses; (i) approximately
HK$15,185,000 (2008: HK$13,589,000) in relation
to write-down of inventories and (iii) approximately
HK$15,650,000 (2008: HK$16,779,000) in relation to loss
on cash flow hedges recognised in hedging reserve have
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position.

At 31 December 2009, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets arising from tax losses amounting to
approximately HK$177,694,000 (2008: HK$92,286,000)
due to the unpredictability of the future profit streams.
All tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. The
Group also has unrecognised deferred tax assets of
approximately HK$6,128,000 (2008: HK$6,833,000)
in relation to loss on cash flow hedges recognised in
hedging reserve due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

PRICERMGRERAE BT NF
—A—HER - BRERRESHE AR
H A BRE 25 1 i B R 2 BB Bk E N
e ARBZHBMNBATAE_ZZN
F— R — BRI S B 2R E
& 51,940,256,000 70 ( Z T T )\ F -
1,053,525,000/8 7T ) * AL B W RFZE
FRIERGEMBERERIELRE  REARK
SEEITHIBERREE R BEARH
FRESZE R AT RE T 0 A RAS SR [ o

RZZEZhF+-A=+—8  (EEXH
AR IEEE 2 EERIBEE EX)12,522,000
BIL(ZZTZ)\F : 8,628,000/87T) : (i)E
MR & 2 EEF 1B & & £915,185,000
B (ZE T \F 13,689,000 7T )

K(ilERARESREL PEIB 2 RTH B
& E#15,650,0008 L (Z T )\ F -
16,779,000 7T ) B R AR EAR & BT iR
RKWER -

R_ZETNE+-_A=+—H8 A&£EE
AERECRIEEE - REREXE
BEH177,604,0008 L ( Z T )\ F ¢
92,286,000/ 7 ) 2 BiIEE B PTE 4 2 R 2K
i ABOR o 2 ST IR 1R A R AR A e o
BEoh - AEEFE R E R EEPER 2R
SREAEEEE AERELETIBEE
#16,128,0007% 7T (= ZZ )\ : 6,833,000
) - REBERTEA AR TEF IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & - EEAFE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B&F

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HREEI0ETL

LiEk

Authorised ET 1,200,000,000 120,000

Issued and fully paid BEIRER

At the beginning of the year RER 838,099,046

Exercise of share options TEELERE

(see Note 36) (RMizE36) 11,300,000 1,130

Shares repurchased and cancelled BEREERR (10,138,000) (1,014)

At the end of the year RER 839,261,046 83,926
The Company did not repurchase any of its own shares HE-ZTNF+-_A=T—RHIEFEE "
on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 AN B A A B 22 T [ L AR B ARAAT AR A

December 2009.
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35.

36.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE

35. B&Ex)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as

BE-FE\Ft-A=+-ALEE
AATRBRABEDEAS BT -

follows:
Number of
ordinary shares Price per share Aggregate
of HK$0.10 each BRBHER consideration
Month of BREE0.10ET Highest Lowest paid
repurchase &6 A4 ZERBRYE & Bk EBERERE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT THL
January —A 281,000 30.50 30.35 8,560
October +A 9,615,500 18.30 8.93 152,613
November +—H 241,500 11.90 9.03 2,734
10,138,000 163,907
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. R PABE B BF A8 o
SHARE OPTIONS 36. B
(@) Employees’ share option scheme of the (a) EATEEBEEERESE

Company

The Company adopted its first share option
scheme on 11 May 1998, and such share option
scheme was terminated upon the adoption of its
second share option scheme (2002 Scheme”)
on 2 July 2002 for the duration of 10 years. In
view of the recent changes to the Listing Rules,
a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 23 March 2009. The 2002 Scheme was
accordingly terminated on the same day without
affecting the rights of holders of any options
granted and outstanding under the 2002 Scheme.

RARR—NANNFRA+—BE
MEBEEEERESE - AEZ
BABREAZENR T _F+A
—HRARME—_BEAH+F2EL
BRETE( 2 F5r 8 Dm
#RE o PR B R A2 B
ZAN/NETE & Nl = W Sl |
ZT=ABMAZARERERERIR
gEE— BB B (5%
FTED c ZETZFFEIMAE LM
RRABKRIL - —TT 87
TR BB R ERITE 2 BT
BB AZERL TS ZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 # % —EE L F+ - H=+—HI F/ZF

36.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

Under the Scheme which is valid for a period of
ten years, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to subscribe
for shares in the Company to eligible participants
(“Eligible Participants”) who contribute to the long
term growth and profitability of the Company.
Eligible Participants include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interests (“Invested Entity”),
including any executive director of the Company,
any of such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (ii)
any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier
of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and (vi) any person or entity who from time to time
determined by the Board as having contributed or
may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group based on his or its performance and/
or years of service, or is regarded as valuable
resources of the Group based on his/its working
experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors. The subscription price for the
Company’s shares shall be a price at least equal to
the highest of the nominal value of the Company’s
shares, the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of an offer of the grant of the options and
the closing price of the Company’s shares quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the date of an offer
of the grant of the options. The options must be
taken up within 28 business days from the date of
grant upon payment of HK$1 and are exercisable
over a period to be determined and notified by
the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of acceptance of the
offer of the grant of the options but shall end in
any event not later than ten years from the date of
adoption of the Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

36.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group (excluding options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group) must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme. The limit on the number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
The total number of the Company’s shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each grantee (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Scheme or
other schemes of the Group in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant must not exceed
1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the date
of grant unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

In accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme
and the Scheme, share options issued by the
Company vest at the date of grant.

There was no share options granted under the
Scheme since its adoption. At 31 December 2009,
the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding
under the 2002 Scheme was 9,144,000 (2008:
14,622,000), representing 1.08% (2008: 1.74%) of
the shares of the Company in issue on that date.

36. fBEMEEE =)

(a)

FARREELBRETE(E)

RR %A 8 R A B E A
AR TROZBEBRE(T
BEREZA 8 RAEE T EAM
AR ZIGERE KRB ELBIE)
BT A T 2 ARNA RN 4
2 AR BRBARARNIEZ
PR HE ETRMI10% - AR
Bkt & AR B A a1
BERHRARITEREFTRZE
SRR TEM A BT Z AR A
BNBERE  TEEEARFT
REEITIRN30% - REEREA
HIEEA+ @A R - FiREZ
BRI E A &R T &
ERAZBEBRE(RBEDITR
KA RITEE 2 BB AT (E
M7 RS FEITZ AR AR &
g TEEBARRNELAHE
BITRMD1% - BRIFEAARBR
RERAEIE - BIER

RE-_FT_FirEI Rkt 825
R ARBAEITZELBERER
RHAMERE -

BZT IR AT - BB TR
EREZETEIEL - RZTENF
+-—A=+—H8 " RE-_ZTZT_F
FTEIE B M AR ITE 2 BB
5 2 &0 8B %9,144,000 %
(ZZTZT\F : 14,622,000 8% )
BERRRARNE B 2B E#TRN
1.08% (=TT /)\F : 1.74%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 &= —ZF =

= —==

36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

Company (continued)

Employees’ share option scheme of the

NE+ A=+ —AIEE

36. fBEMEEE =)
@  AATEESSLERESEE)

A summary of the movements of the share options FR - _EE-FHEIBTZEL
under the 2002 Scheme for the year is as follows: AR RE B an T -
Grantedto  Granted to
Directors employees Total
By¥ES BTES &t
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZEENF—A—H
(Note) 2 () 12,017,800 13,904,200 25,922,000
Exercised during the year RERTTE (5,803,200)  (5,496,800) (11,300,000)
Balance at 31 December 2008 R _ZTZT)\F
and 1 January 2009 +-A=+—H
RZZEENGF
—A—BzH#% 6,214,600 8,407,400 14,622,000
Exercised during the year RERTTE (2,300,000)  (3,178,000)  (5,478,000)
Balance at 31 December 2009 RN-ZZEAFE+-A
=T—RAzEH 3,914,600 5,229,400 9,144,000
Note:  The above share options were granted on 11 October MiRE s BMESEEBRER TEETFTA
2002 at an exercise price of HK$3.74 per share. These ToREL - TEEAEMRITLE
options are exercisable during the period from 15 T REEEBREIR-_FTZ
October 2002 to 2 July 2012. FHATHRAE=F—-FtA=
B HEARATE

During the year ended 31 December 2009, options
to subscribe for 5,478,000 (2008: 11,300,000)
shares in the Company at HK$3.74 per share were
exercised. The weighted average closing price
of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately
before the exercise dates was HK$13.10 (2008:

HK$20.66).
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 # 2 —FEZFNF+ _-HA=+—HILFZ

36.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
The 2002 Elec & Eltek Employees’ Share Option
Scheme (the “2002 EEIC Scheme”) which was
adopted from 12 November 2002 for the duration
of 5 years, had been terminated in November
2007 without affecting the rights of holders of any
options granted and outstanding under the 2002
EEIC Scheme.

EEIC has since 1997, had in place share option
schemes to acknowledge the contributions of and
to motivate employees to contribute to EEIC and
its subsidiaries (“EEIC Group”). With the expiration
of the 2002 EEIC Scheme in 2008, the directors of
EEIC wished to have in place a new share option
scheme to replace the expired 2002 EEIC Scheme
for the purpose of providing an opportunity for
employees who have contributed significantly to
the growth and performance of the EEIC Group to
participate in the equity of EEIC so as to motivate
them to greater dedication, loyalty and higher
standards of performance, and to give recognition
to past contributions and services as well as to
align the interests of employees with the interests
of shareholders.

The 2008 Elec & Eltek Employees’ Share Option
Scheme (the “2008 EEIC Scheme”) was approved
by the shareholders of EEIC at the extraordinary
general meeting of EEIC held on 21 April 2008
and was adopted and took effect from 9 May
2008 upon approval by the shareholders of the
Company.

36. fBEMEEE =)

(b)

EEICEEELBIRAETE
ZTE-FEEICEBEEBRME
B[ ZZTT-FEEICFEI DR =Z
ToF+—A+ZHEH - AHR
FERZTTEF+—AKILE
MW E T~ FEEICA B
TEREEARTEECERERS
ANZAEAAI R o

B—NLhLt&F#  EEICERIMEL
BREE - UEEREEIEER
EEICKEMBARI([EEICEE ) 1E
LEE - BN T T FEEICFTE
RZZEZN\FER  EEICEEEE
BRI ERERT S UEKE
fEimez —EZT —FEEICHE - §&
Mm% AEEICEME R REEIELE
RERZBRERMKE - 2HEEIC
2w WEHBEEENBH
REREHERKERR - HEE
BENEBRBRBIELEE - R
1 B Fllz= BLRR R 7 2548 -

—ZTT)\FEEICEBELBRE
([ —ZTN\FEEICFTE )R =F
TNFMNAZ+—RAEEEICKRERER
EEICRRERFERIAR S EHAERS - I
RARRBRRIEBRNR T NF
HEANBBERY -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

36.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
(continued)

The 2008 EEIC Scheme which shall be
administered by the committee of directors of
EEIC as authorised by EEIC’s directors, is open to
full-time employees and directors of any company
within EEIC and its subsidiaries, the parent group
and of an associated company of EEIC, subject to
certain conditions being satisfied.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme entitles the option holders
to exercise their options and subscribe for new
ordinary shares in EEIC either at an “Exercise
Price”, which equals to the average of the last
dealt prices for an EEIC share for a period of 5
consecutive market days immediately prior to
the relevant date of grant, or at a discount to the
Exercise Price as defined earlier, whereby the
discount shall not exceed 20% of the Exercise
Price.

Options granted at the Exercise Price or discount
to the Exercise Price is exercisable after the first
or second anniversary respectively of the date of
grant and expiring on the fifth anniversary of the
date of grant.

The duration of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is 10
years and the total number of shares in EEIC
that may be issued shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of EEIC shares in issue as at the
adoption date or subject to certain conditions
being satisfied, 15% of the total issued shares of
EEIC excluding treasury shares from time to time.
The total number of EEIC shares issued and to be
issued upon the exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the total number of EEIC shares
in issue from time to time.
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EMBHEMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 # 2 —FEZFNF+ _-HA=+—HILFZ

36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
(continued)

Share options may be accepted within 30 days
after the relevant date of grant accompanied
by payment of S$1.00 (or its equivalent) as
consideration by the participants, but the grant of
share options do not confer rights on the option
holders to any dividend entitlement or to vote at
any shareholders’ meeting.

In accordance with the terms of the 2002 EEIC
Scheme and the 2008 EEIC Scheme, share
options issued by EEIC vest over five years from
the date of grant.

There was no share options granted under the
2008 EEIC Scheme since its adoption. However,
there are outstanding share options under the
2002 EEIC Scheme and a summary of the
movements of the outstanding share options
under the 2002 EEIC Scheme for the year is as
follows:

36. fBEMEEE =)

(b)

EEIClEE BRI 8I (%)

BRI AT A AR I B e AT
30H A28 E X 1.0087 KT
(REZEERRETAER
g 2 B ERET S TER
TR B ANMERE R AR B sk AT AR
RARERRZRER] o

RIE-— T T FEEICEHEI R =
N\FEEICET BB & - EElC%’éﬁE’\J
BEBREAE L AR EFA
5 o

B T )\FEEICFH 2R AT -
BMEELERERE _STNF
EEICEHEIRE - At - BRF AR
BT FEEICEHEIREZBE
B - FN_TZ _FEEICFTE
BN AT 2 BEBRE . #5)
BEmT -

Grantedto  Granted to
Directors employees Total
BTE= BTEE Mgt
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZEENF—A—HBZ
(Note) Eea(piE) 3,892,800 6,794,200 10,687,000
Lapsed during the year RER L - (1,353,200)  (1,353,200)
Balance at 31 December 2008 HN=—ZTZEN\FE+_-A
and 1 January 2009 =t+t—ARZZETNEF
—A—Rz& 3,892,800 5,441,000 9,333,800
Lapsed during the year RE R - (207,600) (207,600)
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZZEZEAF+_A
—t+—Hz#&% 3,892,800 5,233,400 9,126,200
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 36. BEMKE )
(b)  Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC (b) EEICEEEHEERETE(E)
(continued)
Note: P& -
The interests in share options arise by virtue of ZEREBREEGHUTHRESE
(i) 4,055,000 share options accepted by the Directors and i) ZERRDERNE-_TTREXA
5,745,000 share options accepted by the employees ZtHHAREERAEERES DR
of the Group on 24 June 2005, and would entitle # 494,055,000 5,745,000 &
the relevant directors and employees to subscribe SEREMER - ZSELBRE
for shares in EEIC at an adjusted subscription price MrEHEEERIEBRT - REEIC
of US$2.033 per share after the 1 for 5 bonus issue R-ETRFE+A+=HK—ttH
effected by EEIC on 13 October 2005 (“Bonus Issue”). HAERITHAAREIT (ALREETT )
The share options are exercisable in whole or in part BIRKARREBSER2.033% T
at the staggered manner within 5 option periods, WRABEEICH D - BEERED B
commencing on 26 November 2006, 26 November BE-ZENF+—A-t+~H =
2007, 26 November 2008, 26 November 2009 and TZTHF+—HA=-+HB ZTZ
26 March 2010 respectively and all ending on 24 May NE+—A=Z+8  ZETLEF
2010; +—A=Z+X"BR=ZZ—ZTF=
A+ "BREE-_ZT—-ZTFFHA
ZTmA R EEEERERER
DERITRE AR IS ¢
(ii) 150,000 share options accepted by the independent (i) ZERRENEEICE LI EMITE
non-executive directors of EEIC on 29 September FERAZEERFAA-THLBEER
2005, which would entitle the relevant directors to 150,000/ 8 SeFERAE T HER - 2%
subscribe for shares in EEIC at an adjusted subscription BEERER TEBESEN - N4
price of US$2.375 per share after the Bonus Issue. MREATIRIRICARREBER2.375
The share options are exercisable in whole or in part EILRBEEICHD » B EAER]
at the staggered manner within 5 option periods, ARBZZTRFALARR - ZTZF
commencing on 5 September 2006, 5 September +HENAER  —EEN\FNAR
2007, 5 September 2008, 5 September 2009 and 5 A ZZTAFNARBR=F—T
July 2010 respectively and all ending on 4 September FrARRRE-_Z—ZTFNAMNA
2010; and IFFEE B ER R N D BRI T(E 2
BRERBD &
(iii) 1,020,000 share options accepted by full-time (iif ZEEEBRERZENEEICK
employees of EEIC and its subsidiaries on 12 December ENMBRAREBEEN T F
2006, which would entitle the relevant employees to + = A+ = H# #11,020,00017 &
subscribe for shares in EEIC at a subscription price of SBREMES - ZSELABERE
US$2.400 per share. The share options are exercisable My EHESHET  ERABETR
in whole or in part at the staggered manner within 4 2.400ZETURBEEEICH D - ERIER
option periods, commencing on 13 November 2008, BADRBE_ZEN\FT—A+=
13 November 2009, 13 November 2010 and 13 A ZTZAF+—A+=A- =
September 2011, respectively, and all ending on 12 T—ZF+—A+=AR=F——
November 2011. FAA+=BRE=-Z——F+—

At=RALmEEEEREREAN
DEATEREREFED ©

There was no share option exercised during the E_TT)\FRZFTNF T
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009. A=+—HILFE  BESTRE
SRR AE
The share options were granted on 24 June 2005, BEBREER-_FTAFAA
29 September 2005 and 12 December 2006. The Z+WmA - ZETRFALAZ=TA
estimated fair value of each share option granted ARZ—ZFTAFT_AT=AE
on those dates were approximately HK$1.58, de REFRHRE 2 EHELRE
HK$1.55 and HK$2.56 per share respectively. ez EARFEDNORER

1,588 7T * 1.558 7L X 2.5678 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

36. BEMKE )
(b) EEICEEEBEBRETE (&)

(continued)
These fair values were calculated using the ZEAFETIZZEEBENTE - 18
Trinomial Lattice Model. The inputs into the model XAEFHEZBENOT :
are as follows:
Share option grant date
BERBRERLAEN
12 December 29 September 24 June
2006 2005 2005
“EERE C—TTIF —BTEIF
+=ZA+=B hA=+RB RA=t@mA
Share price at grant date REABZRE US$2.74%7T  US$2.92%7T  US$2.53% T
Subscription price REE US$2.403 7T  US$2.85% 7T US$2.44% 7T
Expected volatility TEHIR I 36.6% 21.2% 25.4%
Expected life jERE 5 yearst 5 yearst 5 years4E
Risk-free rate R\ 1| & 3.7% 4.2% 3.7%

The original subscription price of the share options
granted on 29 September 2005 and 24 June 2005
were adjusted to US$2.375 and US$2.033 respectively
as a result of the Bonus Issue.

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of EEIC’s share price over the
previous five years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on the best
estimate of the management, for the effects of non
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense
of approximately HK$1,427,000 (2008:
HK$2,816,000) for the year ended 31 December
2009 in relation to the share options granted by
EEIC.

AREITAIRETT MR =T ER
FNAZANAR-FEZEHENA
S AR ELEREZ R
RBEE SR HER2375F TR
2.033%7T °

TEHIRIRIREEICREBERF 2 E
SERIRETE - RAPTAIEA F IR
EREzRELERIFERN 1T
(BRI M RIRE BA X MERE

REBRBE_ZZNE+_A
=T —HIFFEHREEICE L 2Bt
I AETERR 401,427,000 L (=&
T\ :2,816,000/8 7T ) B 4848 -
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36.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL
The share option scheme of KLHL (the “KLHL
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of
KLHL and the shareholders of the Company on
18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007 respectively.
The KLHL Scheme has been taken effect after
obtaining the approval from the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

The KLHL Scheme would be valid for a period
of 10 years. The directors of KLHL may, at its
discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares
in KLHL to eligible participants who contribute to
the long-term growth and profitability of KLHL and
include (i) any employee or proposed employee
(whether full-time or part-time and including any
executive director), consultants or advisers of or to
KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“KLHL’s
Invested Entity”) in which KLHL and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “KLHL Group”)
hold an equity interest; (ii) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any
KLHL’s Invested Entity; (i) any supplier of goods
or services to any member of the KLHL Group or
any KLHL’s Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of
the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity;
(v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
KLHL Group or any KLHL'’s Invested Entity; and
(vi) any shareholder of any member of the KLHL
Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the
KLHL Group or any KLHL's Invested Entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

36.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL
(continued)

The subscription price of KLHL'’s share in respect
of any option granted under the KLHL Scheme
must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares of KLHL as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares of KLHL
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (i)
the nominal value of the shares of KLHL.

The option may be accepted by a participant within
28 days from the date of the offer for the grant of
the option upon the payment of a consideration
of HK$1. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by
the directors of KLHL to each grantee, and in the
absence of such determination, from the date
upon which the offer for the grant of the option
is accepted but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. The directors of KLHL may, at their
absolute discretion, fix any minimum period for
which an option must be held, any performance
targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options
can be exercised upon the grant of an option to a
participant.
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36.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL
(continued)

The total number of shares of KLHL which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the KLHL Scheme and any other
share option scheme of KLHL (excluding, for this
purpose, options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of
KLHL in issue as at the date of approval of the
KLHL Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of KLHL which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
KLHL Scheme and any other share option scheme
of KLHL must not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of KLHL from time to time.

The total number of shares of KLHL issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the share capital of KLHL then
in issue unless approved by the shareholders of
KLHL and the Company in general meetings.

No share option was granted pursuant to the
KLHL Scheme since its adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. WEEMELT
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group HE_ZTAF+_A=+—HILFEE "
had the following acquisition of subsidiaries: REFBWE TIMB AT :
(a) In March 2009, the Group acquired 51.02% (@) R-ZETZNF=ZA AEEFA—
equity interest in a company, principally engaged EBUE=ZFRE—RHEBNRE
in manufacture and distribution of PCBs, from an 89 K o 8 B Rl 4R B8 iR 2 A A
independent third party for a cash consideration Z251.02% 0% BEeRELH A
of approximately HK$62,392,000. This acquisition 62,392,000 7T © WLIHKELIES
has been accounted for by the purchase method SEHEARR -
of accounting.
The net assets acquired in the acquisition are as IWWHEFTEE A B EFEMT ¢
follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value
WRBHREGATZ
REERATE
HK$'000
T
Net assets acquired: BABEFE :
Properties, plant and equipment ME - WE N GRIE 156,716
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A ERERTK R
and prepayments TES IR 88,591
Inventories FE 29,763
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRERS 67,052
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAbFETRER (216,965)
125,157
Minority interests DY R E R (62,765)
Total consideration satisfied by cash LIRS 2 R (E 62,392
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEEE 2 IRERAEEE
Cash consideration paid ENEERE (62,392)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITESRLIES 67,052
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents WEE—FENB AR ZRE R
in respect of the acquisition ReEEERRASHE
of a subsidiary 4,660
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37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

@)

(continued)

The above subsidiary contributed revenue of
approximately HK$356,661,000 and profit of
approximately HK$17,271,000 to the Group
during the period from the date of acquisition to
31 December 2009.

In September 2009, the Group acquired a further
51% equity interest in E&{b T, a company
principally engaged in refining and distribution of
chemicals, from an independent third party at a
cash consideration of HK$1. Upon completion of
the acquisition of further 51% equity interest in
ERILT, BRI has become a 76% owned
subsidiary of the Company. This acquisition has
been accounted for by the purchase method of
accounting. Goodwill of HK$179,849,000 was
arisen as a result of the acquisition.
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37.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. WEMELATE &)
(o)  (continued) (o) (#&)
The net liabilities acquired in the acquisition and WEMBABRFERMEEA R
the goodwill arising on acquisition, are as follows: ZmT
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value
WWEB ARG BATZ
FREERAYE
HK$’000
FHT
Net assets acquired: BAEEFHE:
Properties, plant and M - B M
equipment 629,154
Prepaid lease payments B E FIE 28,300
Non-current deposits JEmBIET & 43,789
Inventories EN—Y 495277
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EM IR &
and prepayments FEfI 08 96,003
Bank balances and cash WITHEB RIS 15,301
Trade and other payables 5 MEAMEMIRR (1,181,264)
Bank borrowings IRITIEE (170,242)
(43,682)
Goodwill arising from acquisition WHBFTE A 2 98 179,849
Transfer from interest in an associate ERARN—EBE AR 2R (136,167)
Total consideration BRME -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: IWHBE A 2 RS MAJFEE -
Cash consideration paid BENRERE -
Bank balances and cash acquired BARTERERES 15,301
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents WEE—FEB AR ZRE R
in respect of the acquisition ReFEBERNFRE
of a subsidiary 15,301

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

The above subsidiary contributed revenue of
approximately HK$1,181,077,000 and profit of
approximately HK$42,931,000 to the Group
during the period from the date of acquisition to
31 December 2009.

FHlMBRARAKBBEERERE
—ETAFTZA=+—HL
HEHASEEEEEMAOA
1,181,077,000 % 7T K ¥} 7 5 & 5
FIE R 4942,931,0008 7T °
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37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

©

In February 2009, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest in a company, principally engaged in
property development, from an independent third
party for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$412,294,000. The consideration was paid
in full by the Group in 2008 and the amount
was included in non-current deposits as at 31

37. BB AT (2)

(©

RZZEZNF_A  ~EEE—F
BUF= B -REEREDE
BRZABZ100%E - He R
B4 /5412,294,000/8 7T - A& E
REZBENFR2HEERE - B
REGFAZZEENF+ZA=+—
BZ3EmBE € - WBKERMR A

December 2008. This acquisition has been BELENAG-
reflected as purchase of assets and liabilities.
The net assets acquired in the acquisition are as WEEFTEABEFENT «
follows:
HK$'000
T
Net assets acquired: BAEEFE:
Properties held for development FIEREYE 445,287
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A ERAR
and prepayments SEENE e 3,244
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIIR S 104
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A IR (36,341)
Total consideration satisfied by MIERBET & 2 R B
non-current deposits 412,294
Inflow of cash and cash equivalents WEE—RENBARELZ
in respect of the acquisition REMAFE -
of a subsidiary:
Bank balances and cash acquired

The above subsidiary did not contribute any
revenue to the Group and contributed loss of
approximately HK$350,000 to the Group during
the period from the date of acquisition to 31
December 2009.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF F/ZE

37.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. WEMELATE &)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group HEZZET)\F+ZA=+—AHLFE "

had the following acquisition of subsidiaries: AEBWETHIHB AR :

(d) In January 2008, the Group acquired 75% equity (d) RIEZENF—F  KEBER—%#
interest in a company, principally engaged in BUE=HWE—EEENERE
manufacture and distribution of PCBs, from an R SHENRIARBE R 2 A R 2 75% %
independent third party for a cash consideration of 1 e REH A134,667,00078
approximately HK$134,667,000. This acquisition JC o WIEWBIREESEEALR -
has been accounted for by the purchase method U B8 B /B A B 2 3758 498,091,000
of accounting. The discount on acquisition BILTORBE_ZENF+ A
of the subsidiary amounting to approximately =+ HIEFEZHFRERERARE
HK$8,091,000 was recognised in the consolidated o
income statement for the year ended 31
December 2008.

The net assets acquired in the acquisition, and the WEEFTBE A BEFEANMELXZ
discount arising on acquisition, are as follows: WraEmT
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value
BWRBHREGATZ
REERATE
HK$’000
T
Net assets acquired: BAEEFE :
Properties, plant and equipment Wz - BB MERE 209,348
Prepaid lease payments FENRERE 3,704
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A ERERTK R
and prepayments A A 189,973
Inventories rE 43,169
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBREIRE 27,411
Trade and other payables B 5K HA IR (209,013)
Bank borrowings HITEE (74,248)
190,344
Minority interests DY R E R (47,586)
Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary Uk BE — T B A F) 2 3Ted (8,091)
Total consideration satisfied by cash UIRE T2 2R E 134,667
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEELA RS R F5
Cash consideration paid ENESRE (134,667)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITESRERS 27,411
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Wi —REIMB AT Z RS K&
in respect of the acquisition ReSEEB R LFE
of a subsidiary (107,256)

The above subsidiary contributed revenue of
approximately HK$384,150,000 and profit of
approximately HK$9,184,000 to the Group
during the period from date of acquisition to
31 December 2008.

B AR EWERRRE-E
TNAF+ - A=+ HILHEYA
£ B2 E5E R4 A384,150,000
BLTRYAREEENEBRY
9,184,000/ 7T, ©
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37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. UWEBIEB AT (&)

(e) In January 2008, the Group acquired 100% equity () RZZEENF—A - AEER—F
interest in a company, of which the principal BUE=FWE—FAAR(ZAA
activity of its subsidiary is engaged in manufacture ZHBAREENERERHET
and distribution of industrial raw materials, from an ERMR) Z100% 5% - e R (E
independent third party for a cash consideration of #9/51,941,000% 7T © Lt 1B UL HE 1%
approximately HK$1,941,000. This acquisition has BEeEAR-
been accounted for by the purchase method of
accounting.

The net assets acquired in the acquisition are as LIEYEEFTIE A 2 BEFEWT -
follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value
WUEE S R & BFaTZ
REERATE
HK$’000
T
Net assets acquired: BABEFRE
Properties, plant and equipment W - BRE KR 110,633
Prepaid lease payments BREERE 64,019
Non-current deposits EmEET B 52
Inventories FE 858
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A ERERTK R
and prepayments TES IR 7,720
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 1,827
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMERIRR (182,668)
Total consideration satisfied by cash MRS T2 R E 1,941
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEA 7RSSR F5E
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (1,941)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARTEBREES 1,327
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Ytk —FREIMi B AT 2R S K&
in respect of the acquisition ReFEEL RLFE
of a subsidiary (614)

The above subsidiary contributed revenue of
approximately HK$167,930,000 and loss of
approximately HK$12,251,000 to the Group
during the period from date of acquisition to
31 December 2008.
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37. ACAQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. WFEMEBAT =)

(f) In June 2008, the Group acquired 100% equity () RZZEZNGFERNA KEER—H
interest in a company, principally engaged in BUE=HWE—EETENERE
manufacture and distribution of electronic raw RpHEFRMEZ A 2100%
materials, from an independent third party fEAE - IR RE 4 540,620,000
for a cash consideration of approximately I o I IBINEEIRE B @A AR o

HK$40,620,000. This acquisition has been
accounted for by the purchase method of

accounting.
The net assets acquired in the acquisition are as ILTBUBFTIE A 2 EEFENT ¢
follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value
WRBHRE AT Z
REERATE
HK$'000
AT
Net assets acquired: BAEEFHE:
Properties, plant and equipment Wz - BB MEE 13,428
Inventories FE 18,987
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A BRI
and prepayments TEfFRIE 67,815
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 61,514
Trade and other payables B 5 R EA IR (121,124)
Total consideration satisfied by cash UIRE T2 2R E 40,620
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEE 2 RS MAFE -
Cash consideration paid ENESRE (40,620)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARTTEBNIES 61,514
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents WEE—REHB AR ZIRE X
in respect of the acquisition ReFEERRAFRE
of a subsidiary 20,894
The above subsidiary contributed revenue of B AR ERERHEE"T
approximately HK$12,389,000 and loss of ZNF+_A=+—RHILHMEHE
approximately HK$1,586,000 to the Group £ B & X% 5 B 4 512,389,000
during the period from date of acquisition to BT URRNEBETREED
31 December 2008. 1,586,000/ 7T °
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37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. UWEBMIEB AT (&)
(@) In July 2008, the Group acquired 100% equity  (g) RZZEZENFELAH  AEEE—BBILE

interest in a company, of which its subsidiaries ZHWE—RAR(ZARZHBARER
are principally engaged in manufacture and REAERDHEFE) Z100%k# - R4
distribution of methanol, from an independent HAB 4 /5183,699,00058 7T » &[] A AN E
third party for a cash consideration of 52:%49183,699,000/8 7T Z B 3K © thIB UL EE
approximately HK$183,699,000 together BRBESEAR - WEHB AR ZIT:E
with the assignment of the loans to the Group #13,304,0008 T REBE T N\F+=
amounting to HK$183,699,000. This acquisition A=+—RALFEZHFEWREANER °

has been accounted for by the purchase method
of accounting. The discount on acquisition
of subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$3,304,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31

December 2008.
The net assets acquired in the acquisition, and the WHEFTEE A Z BEFBENMTEA Z YT
discount on acquisition, are as follows: N
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value
WWBH R EBATZ
FEEHERATE
HK$’000
AT
Net assets acquired: BAEEFHE:
Properties, plant and equipment WE - BE RS 5,377
Prepaid lease payments JENAERE 65,680
Trade and other receivables B 5 REAMERERR R
and prepayments TEI IR 115,403
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRERE 11,324
Trade and other payables B 5 R H AR (928)
Loans from a former shareholder I (183,699)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBEAE (9,853)
3,304
Assignment of loans from a former MRS E i
shareholder to the Group BTGS2 B3 183,699
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B A B 2 I8 (3,304)
Total consideration satisfied by cash MRz R E 183,699
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEA ZIRE R F5E
Cash consideration paid BRERE (183,699)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARTESHREE S 11,324
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents  WEEMIB AR ZHE &
in respect of the acquisition ReFEFLREFE
of subsidiaries (172,375)
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37.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(9 (continued)
The above subsidiary did not contribute any
revenue and contributed loss of approximately
HK$1,059,000 to the Group during the period
from date of acquisition to 31 December 2008.

If the acquisition in respect of items (a) to (c) had
been completed on 1 January 2009, total group’s
revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$25,310,271,000 (2008: HK$23,859,314,000 in
respect of items (d) to (g)), and profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$2,865,332,000 (2008:
HK$2,135,560,000 in respect of item (d) to (g)). The pro
forma information is for illustrative purpose only and is
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2009 in
respect of items (a) to (c) and 1 January 2008 in respect
of items (d) to (g), nor is intended to be a projection of
future results.

37.

4 {0 RN IE )

(@ (#)
FHMEATEWERREE T
EN\F+ZA=+—HILHBYEAR
SEEREIEIAaER AKX
S BT REIEX)1,059,0007 7T °

WEE@ECBRER-_ZEZTNF—A
—HEX  AFEEBAEETIROR
25,310,271,0008 T (=TT NF : H#E
(A)E(9)IEM E 44 28,859,314,000%8
TL)  AFEEF 4 A2,865,332,000%
T(ZTENF  REBEMZE(QHEMS * L5
2,135,560,000/& 7T ) © 1= & KHE A
ZA - WARRBESE (QZE(C)ERBEE N
ZETNF—A—HEREE(d)E(g)EK
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38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. HEMBELTR

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group HE-ZTEZNF+T-_A=+—HLFE

had the following disposal of subsidiaries: REBEETHIHBEAR :

(a) In September 2009, the Group disposed of its (@) ZETNFENA AEERBIE
entire equity interest in a company, principally = E—BEEXEAEER
engaged in mining of coal, to an independent third 2Rl aEikiE - BeREOR
party for a cash consideration of approximately 404,358,000/ ¢ - M EHHE 2
HK$404,358,000. The net assets at the date of HEFENT ¢

disposal are as follows:

HK$’000
AT
Net assets disposed of: gz EEFENT -
Properties, plant and equipment ME - WE MR 50,659
Prepaid lease payments JENAERE 3,924
Intangible asset mEEE 769,531
Non-current deposits IEMBNFT 2 89,386
Inventories FE 771
Other receivables E bR K 93
Bank balances and cash WITHEBR LIRS 162
Other payables HAbFERTERR (67,819)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (187,152)
659,555
Loss on disposal EELE ZEE (2,672)
Minority interests DEIAR TRRERS (252,525)
Total consideration, satisfied by cash DRSS 2 R E 404,358
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZESRAFEE
Cash consideration received BHRSRE 404,358
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERITEBRER S (162)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HE—FBARIZIRE M
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary REeFBEBAARNFH 404,196
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38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

38. HEREBLAR 2

In September 2009, the Group disposed of its (o) ZETNFENA AEERBIE
entire equity interest in a company, principally =HHE—MEENRELELDH
engaged in manufacture and distribution of ERZ AN DI - HERE
coke, to an independent third party for a cash 49 4181,509,000/8 7T - MHEH
consideration of approximately HK$181,509,000. B EEFENT ¢

The net assets at the date of disposal are as

follows:

HK$’000
T
Net assets disposed of: &z EEFENAT
Properties, plant and equipment W - WE REE 365,264
Inventories FE 93
Other receivables Ho U R R 2,657
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRRE 2
Other payables E A BRIK (60,337)
307,579
Loss on disposal HEELE ZEE (74,098)
Minority interests DR R (61,972)
Total consideration, satisfied by cash MRS T2 R E 181,509
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZEESRAFEE
Cash consideration received BYRSRE 181,509
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERITEBRER S )
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HE—RHfBARZRER
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary

REFERBRAFE 181,507

Annual Report 2009 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 187

“EENFFE BECIRE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 B &R = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —EF/F+ - H=1—HIF FZ

38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. HEMELF @)

(c) In September 2009, the Group disposed of its (c)
entire equity interest in a company, principally
engaged in the manufacture and distribution of
methanol, to an independent third party for a cash

ZETAFNA  AEERBLE
SAEE—BEERERERDH
Rz ARz 2HliE - ReE
#49/5170,164,000%8 7T - ML ER

consideration of approximately HK$170,164,000. B EEFENT
The net assets at the date of disposal are as
follows:
HK$’000
FAT
Net assets disposed of: &z EEFENAT
Properties, plant and equipment W - WE REE 10,796
Non-current deposits IEREE 2 126,193
Other receivables Hfth R AR 5K 106,866
Other payables HAbFERTERFR (3,588)
240,267
Loss on disposal & FTE A 2 B8 (30,044)
Minority interests DEREE T (40,059)
Total consideration, satisfied by cash NEESINZERE 170,164
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HE—MRBARZERE R
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary: BeEEERRAFEE
Cash consideration received BYRSRE 170,164
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38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@

In September 2009, the Group disposed of its (d)
entire equity interest in a company, principally
engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of chemical products, to an independent third

38. HEMELF @)

ZETAFNA  AEERBLE
SAEE—BEERERERDH
{CIEMZARZ2IMIE - Be
REBHAT73,114,000/87C - &

party for a cash consideration of approximately AEZEEFENT
HK$73,114,000. The net assets at the date of
disposal are as follows:
HK$’000
T
Net assets disposed of: &z EEFENAT
Properties, plant and equipment W - WE REE 10,796
Non-current deposits IEREE 2 52,389
Other receivables Ho U R R 25,442
Other payables HAbFERTERFR (1,218)
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRERS 1
87,410
Gain on disposal MERTEE 2 Was 3,172
Minority interests DR R (17,468)
Total consideration, satisfied by cash MRS T2 R E 73,114
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZEESRAFEE
Cash consideration received BYRSRE 73,114
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERS MRS SEIEE 1)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HE—RHfBARZRER
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ~ R&HEIE R RARE 73,113
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38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(e) In September 2009, the Group disposed of its
entire equity interest in a company, principally
engaged in manufacture and distribution of
electronic raw materials, to an independent third

)

38. HEREBLAR 2

ZETAFNA  AEERBLE
SAEE—BEEREEERDH
BETRMEZ AR Z2HER - B
S RIBEH AH42,497,000/8 7T ° FAHH

party for a cash consideration of approximately EHHZEEFENT :
HK$42,497,000. The net assets at the date of
disposal are as follows:
HK$’000
T
Net assets disposed of: & EEFENAT
Properties, plant and equipment ME - WE NGRE 12,234
Inventories FE 19,305
Trade and other receivables B 5 K HAM
and prepayments FEUTBR SR 23,986
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBREIRE 22,423
Trade and other payables B 5 R EA IR (35,451)
Total consideration satisfied by cash MRS 2 R E 42,497
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZESRAFEE
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 42,497
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERS KRS EETEE (22,423)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary
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38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

()

38. HEREBLAR 2

In August 2009, the Group disposed of its entire ) ZETNFENA - AEERBIE
equity interests in companies located in Inner ZHEERASRHEIEREEER
Mongolia, which are principally engaged in the DI TERZ AR 2R
manufacture and distribution of chemical products, B e R EH AE215,689,000/8 7T ©
to an independent third party for a total cash REEBHZAHEEFENT ¢
consideration of approximately HK$215,689,000.
The combined net assets at the date of disposal
are as follows:
HK$ 000
FAT
Net assets disposed of: FrtE s EEFENT -
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB LRE 10,194
Prepaid lease payments FERNEERIE 65,533
Other receivables H fth FEUER SR 127,926
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRERS 2,501
Other payables HAbFERERK (11,535)
194,619
Gain on disposal & PR A 2 Wias 21,070
Total consideration, satisfied by cash MRS 2 R E 215,689
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZESRAFEE
Cash consideration received BHERSRE 215,689
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERS KRS EEEE (2,501)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEMNBARIZIRE R
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReFEERRAFRHE 213,188
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39.

40.

COMMITMENTS

39.

Capital expenditure contracted for

but not provided in the consolidated BREMERTAER
financial statements in respect of RGBT EREREL
acquisition of properties, plant BBz EATH
and equipment

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40.

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008,
the Company’s subsidiary, Kaiping Elec & Eltek No.3
Company Limited (“KPEE#3”) is involved in potential
lawsuits, claims and proceedings with one of its PRC
customers amounting to approximately HK$34,017,000
(equivalent to RMB30 million), arising from some negative
feedback from the end users of the assembled products
using PCBs supplied by KPEE#3.

Based on the legal advice obtained by the Group, the
Directors are of the opinion that the aforementioned
claim has no merit and the potential lawsuit will not have
a material adverse effect on the financial position of the
Group.
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B ME - BE &

i
2009 2008
—EThE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#IT T
625,174

BRRAMR
HE_ZZNER-_ZTZENF+ A
=T—BIEFE  ARAIZHBARRT
KA ZEETFE=BRQE([KPEE#3])
BLH —Z R EEFH % 34,017,000% 7T (48
Z 7 A R #30,000,0007T) 2B EFA -
HERERRF  FHRREKAP I
KPEE#3 & 2 ENRIAR ISR 3SR 2 EE i 2 B
E&HE -

REAEEMELREER  EFRA
BRBARREZADEE  BEFLDETE
HAREEFBARRERERTNTE -
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41.

OPERATING LEASES 41. EEWEH

RS EHEM -

The Group as lessee:

Lease payments charged to the FAREHFERRTNR

consolidated income statement 2 HER

during the year

— for premises . E 3 18,960

— for plant and machinery — R Rt 2s 20

18,980

Under the leases entered into by the Group, all lease RIEAREEET L 2L - RTERLNNRZ
payments are fixed and predetermined. SREHREERERET -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future RREAEERE R - AEBEIRBET AT
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases H2EEHON BRI N 2 BONREAR
are payable as follows: T HAR AT -

Within one year F

After one year but not later than R—FHER
five years 1ER

After five years RhFk
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41. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor: BRAREE M
Rental income credited to the RERNFTALR
consolidated income statement Z WA
during the year, net of outgoing =ENGFE
amount of approximately 20,400,000
HK$20,400,000 (2008: —ZFFEN
HK$15,979,000) 15,979,000

The Group’s investment properties are rented to
outside parties for periods up to seven years at fixed
predetermined amounts. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive
the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year »n A

After one year but not later than R—FEER
five years

After five years RAFE
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40. EEHH )

allimk
29

T

F

BIT) 74,093

AEBEZREMEORAREE 2 EHEHE
EETFINFAL  BERER/LF - R
SHRERER  AKRBERBFEILA
%) AR BREEZ REBEONRAT

48,403

26,873
1,565

76,841




42.

43.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s bank deposits of
HK$105,622,000 (2008: nil) are pledged to banks to
secure the banking facilities of the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which was registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) which was established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group and are invested in funds under the control of
independent trustees. Employees who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme are members of both the ORSO Scheme and
the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after December 2000 are required to join the
MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and
the state-sponsored pension schemes of approximately
HK$74,239,000 (2008: HK$71,794,000) are charged to
the consolidated income statement.
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42,

43.

HEEH
MN-ZBEAFE+-A=+—8  KREHIR
1713 5105,622,0008 TL(Z 2T )\ F : 8
BERTIRIT - ERAEERITRE MK
Hn e

RFEFIRHE

RREBERHIEABEGIN_FTTF
ToARZzEGIM BRI ([RES
FtEl)) - RS EERAREZEE
DRFA - WIRERBBILEEAZES
g - RRUBEEFE A2 mix
RARGHEIZEER - RESKABERAGE
KBREFEIZKE  MABR-FZTT
FroAZEMARKEZ BB LA
SNREEEE

KRB ERRZEBE /T ERTEEZ
BREBRAKBENTEKE - ZFEMER
AARFHE X M2 X —B D HLRARKE
g UXNBERREN - AEBE RN S
BT 2 ME—EERIASPAFHEN -

MBS ERRGTE - RESFTEIRBIRED
RIKRE RGBS 2 R E) /74,239,000
BIL(ZZZ)\F : 71,794,000/70) + I
BirE MG R AR -
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. FATBTEMELATFHE

OF THE COMPANY
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 RAABFEMRBATIN-_ZEZTNER=-Z
December 2009 and 2008 are as follows: ENFT_A=F—HZFBEHOT :

Fogang Kingboard Industry Ltd. PRC" RMB878,100,000 47,60+ Manufacture and distribution
HEREEXERAR e AR¥:878,100,0007C of copper fol
BER DI
Jamplan (BVI) Limited British Virgin US$1,000 100" Investment holding
Islands* 1,000%7T RERKR
ERRLES
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates PRC! 1S$29,466,000 7477 Manufacture and distribution
Co. Limited I - 29,466,000 T of laminates
EE(BR)RERERAT SERDHERADR
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper PRC" 1S$17,936,546 7477 Manufacture and distribution
Laminates Co. Ltd. HE 17,936,546% T of laminates
BE(BR)ERARERDF SERHEERAER
Kingboard (Hebei) Cokechem PRC" RMB96,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co. Limited HE AR %96,000,00070 of coke
BB ELERAR RERDHEER
Kingboard (Hebei) Chemical PRC! RMB357,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co. Limited HE AR#357,000,0007C of chemicals
BB TRRAR] RERDHIIER
Kingboard Natural Gas Chemical PRC ! US$18,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
(Chong Qing) Limited HE 18,500,000% T of methanol
BERARICI(ER) HERHHERE
BRAF
RUBREEERAT PRC! 1S$19,640,000 100 Property developments
g 19,640,000% 7 BHELR
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44, FAFEEMEATFE 2
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Heng Yang Kingboard Chemical
Co., Ltd.
EHERE L ITBRAR

Kinghoard (Lian Zhou) Fibre
Glass Co. Limited
REEN B ERAR

Kinghoard (Lian Zhou) Copper
Foll Limited
BB (EMWERRAR

Kinghoard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited®

Kingboard Investments Limited

RERABRAR

Kingboard Laminates Holdings
Limited
BERERERERAR

Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen)
Co., Ltd.
TP ERERERAR

Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical
Co., Ltd.
BE(IHMIERAR

PRC'
RE

PRC!
4

PRC!
4

Bermuda #
ARE!

Hong Kong #
BN

Cayman Islands *

RERHE

PRC"
o

PRC"
o

HK$30,000,000 100 Manufacture and distriution
30,000,0003 7T of caustic soda
BUER DGR
1US$13,700,000 7477 Manufacture and distrioution
13,700,000% T of glass fabric
HERDERBG LR
1US$64,000,000 47,60+ Manufacture and distribution
64,000,000% 7T of copper foi
HERHERE
US$72,250,000 47,60+ Investment holding
72,250,000% ¢ RERR
HK$8,000 100 Investment holding
8,000% 7T RERR
HK$300,000,000 7477 Investment holding
300,000,000/ REER
HK$189,491,052 7477 Manufacture and distribution
189,491,052/ of laminates
HEL A HERRAR
1JS$28,000,000 7477 Manufacture and distrioution
28,000,000% 7T of chemicals
BERDHICIER
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44, FAFEEMEATFE 2
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC" 15$32,010,000 7477 Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. A 32,010,000% T of laminates
EERER(BWERAE HERS HEARR
Techwise Circuits Company Limited Hong Kong # HK$4,000,000 90 Investment holding
HEGKARAR BN 4,000,000 RERR
Express Electronics (Suzhou) PRC" 1J5$20,200,000 75 Manufacture and distribution
Company Limited I 20,200,000 of PCBs
HEBT(EMERAA SERDHEIRIRER
Elec & Eltek International Bermuda/ HK$122,467,240 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong? 122,467 24078 T REER
N ZERREBERAR BRE/BA
Elec & Eltek International Singapore # 1S$98,656,000 3 7155 Investment holding
Company Limited @ HTONE ¢ 98,656,000 T ® REER
HZEEBARAT ¢
Kai Ping Elec & Eftek PRC? 1S$27,850,000 67.97  Manufacture and
Company Limited HE 2 27,850,000 distribution of PCBs
ATRHERESFERAT SERDHERIRHER
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No. 2 PRC? 1S$21,670,000 67.97  Manufacture and
Company Limited HE 2 21,670,000% T distribution of PCBs
AT EAZEEFE_ER AT SERDHERIRHER
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No. 3 PRC? 1J5$86,960,000 67.97  Manufacture and
Company Limited HE 2 86,960,000 T distribution of PCBs
AT EAZEEFE=ER AT SERDHERIRHER
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No. 5 PRC? 15$30,075,100 67.97  Manufacture and
Company Limited HE 2 30,075,100% T distribution of PCBs
RTEAZEEFERERAT SERDHEIRIRER
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44, FAFEEMEATFE 2
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Elec & Eltek (Guangzhou) PRC? 15$70,596,000 7012 Manufacture and
Electronic Company Limited R 2 70,596,000% ¢ distribution of PCBs
KFIZE(BMEFERAA SERA BEHRISAR
Guangzhou Elec & Eltek Microvia PRC? 1S$24,800,000 7012 Manufacture and distribution
Technology Limited HE 2 24,800,000% 7 of PCBs
BMGKNZE AR RER AR RE RN REARIRAR
Guangzhou Elec & Eltek High PRC? 1JS$25,000,000 7012 Manufacture and distribution
Density Interconnect Technology i 2 25,000,000 T of PCBs
No. 1 Company Limited BUER A BENRISHR
BMNGNZREEEENEE -
BRAT
Elec & Eltek (Thailand) Limited Thaland Baht780,000,000 7155 Manufacture and distribution
%E 780,000,000 4% of PCBs
SER A RERIRSAR
Pacific Insulating Material Thaland Baht650,000,000 7155 Manufacture and distribution
(Thailand) Limited %E 650,000,000%%4% of PCB raw materials
SERD BERISAR
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

* The Company directly holds the equity interest in Jamplan (BVI)
Limited. The Company’s equity interest in all other subsidiaries is
held indirectly through Jamplan (BVI) Limited.

# These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operations.

+ These companies are non wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited and are regarded as non
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company because the Group
has control over the financial and operating policies of these
companies.

@ These companies are listed on The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

A This company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures.

8 Included treasury shares of US$896,000.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.
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FAFERMBLTFE

AT EER A Jamplan BVI) Limited 2 f54E  AAFR
FTE E b M8 A R 2 A9 35 i Jamplan (BVI) Limited i
EHE -

HEARERRAR - WESEZ T EEE MM -

IS AR AREEERZERBRAR 22 ERANEB
R WEAREELZEN BN B REERRERE
B - BARAARRFFEEMERF -

IERBRIINEEFZSHBRAR LD

L ARIREEBARSMARARER L
ISR ETYAINEG B E DA BKSL -
IERBTIARIE AR EDETAERBEIRKIL
B IEETF % 17896,000% 7T °

ERAFIREZRATIEFEAEEERE
FEEZARRMBAR - EERBA/IIL
HiMBRRIZHBERNITE

BB A RN F R AR EEITENER

S o
Ag °©
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. FREAERH
The Group entered into the following significant NREFEAEBEATEERNETZIEAR
transactions with related parties during the year: ST
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAT
Sales of goods to a minority m—REfB ARz
shareholder of a subsidiary DERRIEEE R 326,862 477,381
Purchase of goods from a minority m—EEB AR Z
shareholder of a subsidiary VHIRIREE R 92,468 81,958
Driling service provided by a minority ~ —fEIftEBA T2 A&
shareholder of a subsidiary AR IR (B FLAR TS 2,712 18,148
Purchase of goods from an associate A —[E & A RIRE SR 287,464 417,809
Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments RZZBZNF+A=+—H0 EFKkH
at 31 December 2009 was an amount due from a fth, 8 U B 50 % TR R TE B A E R MY B A )
minority shareholder of a subsidiary of approximately DEIR R FHIAA 109,135,000 L (=T F
HK$109,135,000 (2008: HK$104,804,000) which was in J\F 1 104,804,000/ 7T) « NEE M AR
trade nature. The Group allowed credit periods of up to BEATREZEEBERA1208 - BIAH
120 days, depending on the product sold to its related HEZEMRME °
parties.
Included in trade and other payables at 31 December RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H EFHK
2009 was an amount due to an associate of HMENERBREREMN —HBE QT
approximately HK$26,173,000 (2008: HK$11,595,000) FRIE 426,173,000 T (Z TN\ F -
which was in trade nature. The related party offers credit 11,595,000) ° BRIEA LAAREEK T Z
periods of up to 120 days to the Group. FEEHRKRA1208
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45,
(continued)
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits PSEEEEY ]
Post-employment benefits RINEREF
Share-based payments LARAD T A5 30

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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157,666
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46.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The following significant events took place subsequent to
31 December 2009:

@)

On 23 December 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement to acquire a further 24% equity interest
in its subsidiary E&{ET from an independent
third party at a consideration of HK$1. This
acquisition has been completed in January 2010.

On 14 January 2010, the Group announced
a possible discloseable transaction by way of
spin-off and separate listing of its subsidiaries
principally engaged in production and distribution
of coke and coke-related products (included in the
Chemicals operating segment) on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Details of which are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated
14 January 2010.

On 1 March 2010, the Directors recommended
a bonus issue of warrants (“2012 Warrants”) with
a right to subscribe HK$40.00 in cash for each
new ordinary share of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company at an initial subscription
price of HK$40.00 per ordinary share, subject to
adjustment, on the basis of one 2012 Warrant
for every ten existing ordinary shares then held.
Details of which are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 2 March 2010.

46.

HEMMEEH
THEAEUN BT NAE+_A=+—
A%t

@) AEER-_ZTNE+-_A=-+=

HEl e BB E=HE—F
UL BB T B R B B R L T24% % #E
REBIET - WEKER =T —
TFE— AR °

—T-TFE-A+tWA - AEEE
o BB D I E A B R A
FRBYL L2 AIREEITRATRE
X5 HAREBUEEHERNA
BMERG AMEIERELD )
HBER AR —E—FF—H
T E TR R o

REEE])  EEBERHERA
TOOBRREBRMHEE - =F
— ZERIREE o AN RN
R T IAIR £40.00/8 TR V)2
R E TR 140.00% 7T (7] T 73
B) BB A RRBRATER010E
TTZF D - BRFBERRARA]
M_E—TF=-_AAZAM
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Financial Summary

B

RESULTS %i&

Revenue ] 13,098,354 16,773,348 20,025,112 23,681,401
Profit before taxation B ANER) 1,788,802 7,596,154 3,717,184 2,325,502
Income tax expense FriefEx (139,970) (240,435) (245,030) (194,231)
Profit for the year REERF 1,648,832 7,385,719 3,472,154 2,131,271
Attrioutable to: D%
Owners of the Company VAYNSIESZ=DN 1,435,809 7,068,015 2,778,321 1,705,850
Minority interests DER RS 213,023 287,704 693,833 425,421
1,648,832 7,355,719 3,472,154 2,131,271

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BSER &R

Total assets BELE 10,360,822 28,121,051 34,941,986 38,241,465
Total liabilities EVE (9,714,079)  (9,108,130) (12,715,190)  (14,624,264)
0,646,743 19,012,921 22,226,796 23,617,201
Equity attributable to owners AR EEA A
of the Company JE(EHER 8,232,167 15,958,925 18,277,703 19,354,046
Share option reserve of —RMBAREE
a subsidiary BRRERE 3,047 9,764 12,862 13,715
Minority interests SYRRER 1,411,529 3,044,232 3,936,231 4,249,440
9,646,743 19,012,921 22,226,796 23,617,201
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JN.JD)  KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2nd Floor, Harbour View 1, No. 12 Science Park East Avenue, Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, Hong Kong
B HAEBREEE 2R KER 125088 KE 1 E24E
Tel E3F : (852) 2605 6493 Fax &K : (852) 2691 5245

E-mail £ : enquiry@kingboard.com Web site 481t : http://www.kingboard.com
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